y Lant Ken
EALTH
CARE
DISTRICT

Regular Meeting Agenda
09/07/2021
REVISED AGENDA

EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGULAR MEETING
8101 Bay Ave. CALIFORNIA CITY
Our mission is to expend financial resources to help residents of the
District satisfy their healthcare needs.

09/07/2021 5:00PM

Special Notice

Teleconference Accessibility

Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20 issued by Governor Newsom in response to the COVID-19 outbreak
and as a precaution to protect both staff, our constituents, and elected officials, the East Kern Health
Care District will hold its board meeting via teleconference or the most rapid means of communication at
the time. The public may participate in the teleconference by clicking on the link below:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9571124702

Meeting ID: 957 112 4702

Public comments may be made through teleconference when prompted by the President during the
public comment period. Public comments may also be provided through email by emailing
eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com during or prior to the meeting.

Please indicate comments on the subject line.

If you have difficulty connecting to the teleconference line, please call 669-900-6833
or email eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
2. CALL TO ORDER

3. ROLL CALL
Director Rubi Foley
Director Richard Macedonio
Director LaMiya Patrick
Director Lois Peralta
Chair Karen Macedonio

Staff Present: Alex Lemieux- Legal Counsel
David Aranda, BHI Consultant

Linda Cook, Finance Manager for EKHCD I



Public Present:
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA Action Item:

Motion Second

Action

S. COMMENTS BY THE BOARD PRESIDENT

6. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS:
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on
any matter not on this agenda and over which the Board has jurisdiction. Please be
advised that the Brown Act prohibits action on items that are not listed on the
agenda. The board may set such items for consideration at some future Board
meeting,

7. CONSULTING REPORT: BHI Management Consulting
David Aranda

8. REPORT FROM FINANCE MANAGER: Linda Cook

9. CONSENT CAI.EN DAR (All items with CA are considered Routine.)
=  CA-1. Approval of bills to pay for August 2021: CA

Approve Warrants: 5 EFT’s, and check #’s 35740-35759,
Payroll ACH’s for a total amount $37,516.29. (August) See
attached Check Detail and Petty Cash Report (No

Transactions).
= CA-2. Approval of Financial Reports: Profit and Loss report CA

for July, Bank Balances with Interest Report and deposit
Detail reports for July, 2021.

= CA-3. Approval of minutes for August 3. 2021 Regular CA

Meeting.

Motion Second

Action

ACTION ITEMS:
OLD BUSINESS

10. Approval by the Board of the Finance Committee and set the OB/Action 2
day of the month when the committee will meet. Item:




Motion Second

Action

11. Approval of the resignation of R. Macedonio, as Secretary, and
the appointment of Director Foley as Secretary to the EKHCD
Board of Directors.

Motion Second

Action

ACTION ITEMS:
NEW BUSINESS

12. Approval of Resolution 21-08-01, Reserve Guideline Policy for
EKHCD.

Motion Second

Action

13. Approval of EKHCD Resolution 21-09-01, Amendment to
Administrative Code Section 1-3.007 regarding incompatible
Offices.

14. Presentation and approval of an Employee Handbook for the
EKHCD employees.

Motion Second

Action

15. Approval of the Finance Manager & Office Manager’s Job
Descriptions for EKHCD.

Motion Second

Action

16. Discussion and approval to spend money for the following
capital items:
A. Rooftop AC $8,000
B. Sprinkler System Inspection, Fire Extinguishers
$3,400
C. Fire Monitoring $4,000
D. Cement Pad at Adventist Health Modular $2,000

OB/Action
Item:

NB/Action
Ttem:

NB/Action
Item:

NB/Action
Item:

NB/Action
Item:



Motion Second

Action
17. Discussion and possible approval of Adventist Health request for NB/Action
EKHCD to expend $30,241.00 for the painting of the interior of Item:

the building (not the modular) and replacing flooring that was
not replaced via an Adventist Health Care District Grant

Motion Second

Action

COMMITTEE REPORTS:

ADHOC LEASE COMMITTEE REPORTS:

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:

Director: Rubi Foley:
Director: Richard Macedonio:
Director: LaMiya Patrick:
Director: Lois Peralta

Chair: Karen Macedonio:

DIRECTORS COMMENTS FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS:

Director: Rubi Foley
Director: Richard Macedonio:
Director: LaMiya Patrick:
Director: Lois Peralta

Chair: Karen Macedonio:

STAFF COMMENTS:

Linda Cook:
David Aranda:
Alex Lemieux:

ADJOURNMENT:

Motion
Second Time

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: October 5, 2021 5:00 pm. 8101 Bay Ave California City, CA

“Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related modification or accommodation,
including auxiliary aids or services, that is sought in order to participate in this agendized public meeting should be directed
to the District’s office at (760) 373-2804 or Cell (661) 220-6100 at least 48 hours prior to said meeting.”

Agenda posted 09/03/2021



East Kern Health Care District — Organizational Management (Report for August 2021)

Board of Directors August 29, 2021
East Kern Health Care District
California City, CA 93505

From: David Aranda, Sr. Associate

BHI Management Consulting
(661) 300-1231

Subject: Report from BHI Management Consulting (BHI) regarding work for East Kern
Health Care District (District). The report describes activities resulting in effort hours
for the district in the month. This report from BHI Management Consulting covers
work from July 29, through August 29, 2021. Invoice #021-27 capture this work. 30 hrs.
of Mr. Aranda’s time. Please look over the attached timesheet, I will be happy to
answer any questions.

Pending Items and Projects:
Assist the Board in hiring an Office Manager and training that person.

1. Assist the Board in hiring and office manager and training that person.
. Assist the Board in developing a mission statement.

3. Assist the Board in developing both short term and long-term goals for the
district to develop for the benefit of the community the district serves.

4. Continue to obtain fire department compliance for the Bay Ave. Building,

Please note that I contacted California City Public Works Director

Joe Barragan and he has stated that the large piping by the Street is the district’s

responsibility. I have stayed in touch with Fire Chief Kosick

to let him know we are working on meeting code compliance for the Bay Ave.

Building.

Continue to work with the tenants on needed improvements.

Address utility issues at the N. Loop address.

7. Work with SoCalREN (I need some information and guidance on this from

the President)

8. Assist in any way possible regarding the lease agreements, extensions etc.

. Determine how to move forward with the Cancer Fund that benefits the community.

10.  Look at possible grants that would benefit the community that EKHC would be
eligible for.

11.  Work in collaborating with other agencies.

12. Follow up in developing policies the district needs.

13. Follow up on items that have not been responded to, i.e., California City Lighting
Assessment issues, State Fund close out and Occupancy permit for the Bay Ave.
Building. Follow up with contacting someone knowledgeable with the Historical
Society regarding District property.

2 5




East Kern Health Care District — Organizational Management (Report for August 2021)

Please note that I have looked at July and August 2021 timesheets from both myself and Linda. I
have the following report regarding my review of timesheets.

1. David worked 30 hours each month.

Linda worked 59 hours in July and 51 hours in August. (estimated)

2. David’s time was roughly broken down to 23/29 in administrative work and 7/9 in board
work. Linda’s time was 15/14 board work, 22/9.25 Financial and 22/29.75 administrative
work.

Considering a few things, the hours each month as broken down would probably be typical of the
workload for the District EXCEPT for Community Outreach work and special projects the district
undertakes. The administrative hours noted above include the work involved in caring for the
needs of the tenants on N. Loop.

Overall, the estimate in percentages for the different functions would be 55% Administrative,
27% Board work and 18% Financial. These are estimates based on reading time sheets and
considering that some jobs could be considered financial or administrative, i.e., going to the bank
to make deposits.

In a perfect scenario Linda would perform about 15-20 hours per month of financial work (keep
in mind this does not include the work the CPA firm is doing). The Office Manager would be
70-80 hours per month in accomplishing administrative functions, board functions and additional
duties regarding community outreach, interaction with special projects and other agencies. I
believe that a combined 100 hours per month of work on the payroll would allow the district to
function smoothly and accomplish good things for the community.




Timecard: David Aranda, BHI Consulting

Period 7‘2%(2_\ ~ %/ZQIZ‘\

DAY .
OF TIME TIME | HOURS
WEEK DATE BEGIN END |WORKED EXPLANATION
7/29/2021 0.5  [prepare BHI report and timesheet
2-Aug nc__ |emails KM/RM and phone calls
8/2/2021 0.5  |vendor phone calls
8/2/2021 0.5  |discussion with Brent
3-Aug 3 Board meeting/prepare prior/phone calls
4-Aug 4 p&p manual/job descriptions/meet with KM/RM/Fire Vend
5-Aug 1 meet with AH contractors/picture pipe on Bay
5-Aug 0.5 |phone Alex/Linda/Classic Lock/Landscaping
8/6/2021 nc__|texts with shipper of copier
7-Aug 0.5 |job descriptions/application review with Linda
8-Aug 0.5 |draft reserver policy based on CSDA manual
8/9/2021 2 meet Moses Carpet/Linda ads/Cal City discussions
11-Aug 1 ph calls various vendors and Linda
8/12/2021 1.5 |ASI work/Painter discussion/Joe Cal City
13-Aug nc__ |ph calls on fire vendor
15-Aug 1 e mails/ph calls/ Brent
16-Aug 2.5 _ |copier delivered/fire vendor/ADT/Carpet vendor
8/17/2021 0.5 |picked up quote carpet/BHI discussion
25-Aug nc phone call from Cal City Attorney
26-Aug 2 ASI/Agenda/Fire Vendor
8/27/2021 4 ASlI/Agenda/Linda
28-Aug 4.5  [BHI report/time card/time breakdown
30




Linda Cook Agenda ltem# 8 September 7, 2021

EKHCD Report

Accomplishments:

See timesheets attached.

Going Forward:

> Provide administrative assistance to David for all of the items
listed on his pending projects list.

> Continue updates to list of Office Procedures created for New
Hire.

> Continue to keep the day-to-day operations, such as
correspondence, A/P, deposits, QB postings, board meeting
preparation, website updates and payroll coordination with Moats
going forward.



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

PERIOD: Aug 1, 2021 - Aug 15, 2021

TIMECARD FOR LINDA COOK

Day of week

Date

BEGIN

END

HOURS
WORKED

EXPLANATION

SUNDAY

8/1/2021

12:00

12:30

0.5

Checked email; Reply to emails; Resent signable timecard to LaMiya with changes;

Various correspondence

MONDAY

8/2/2021

a:00

8:15

0.25

Check emails: Reply to emails; Forward emails to Rubi & David, etc

Telephone conference with David

MONDAY

8/2/2021

11:00

12:00

Respond fo Karen's email regarding WIFL: Forward LaMiya's retumed, signed

timecard to Karen; Review of 5 more emails; Print acopy of the Board packet io

deliver to David tomorrow moming; Print a copy of the Steve O plumbing quotes

for David

TUESDAY

8/3/2021

4:45

5:45

Prepare for Zoom Board Meeting; Attend Zoom Board Meating and take Minutes

WEDNESDAY

8/4/2021

8:00

3:30

7.5

Office housekeeping, shredding, empty trash; Prepare file labels for new files for

Steve O Plumbing Quotes & Correspondence & Check Registers; Look up

accounts 6330 & 6386 and correct issues; prepare print outs to show Karen what

was contained in those files; Send email with explanation; correct and print

minutes that were approved for signing; Print invoices that were in email; Print

and prepare 2 resolutions for signing; Type a To-Dolist from the Board Mesting

S0 as not fo miss anything; Type up minutes from 8/3/21 Board Mesting (45 Min)

Post Deposits; Hole punch Board Packet from 8/3 Meeting and put in binder,

Forward LC Contract to Alex again and CC Karen; Calls to Frontier fo

try fo resolve what the prior charges were for (15 min); Explained that |

could do a spreadshest fo try to find out why we always carried

the balance forward, but it would it be worth the time?

Prepare signed checks for mailing; scan check with invoice into

AP file created; make photocopy of the check, siuff envelopes

Go fo the post office and pick up mail; drop water payment off

at City of Cal City; mail payments; Revise job description given to me by David

to fit my position as Finance Manager.

FRIDAY

8/6/2021

7:30

8:45

1.25

Open mail (10 min); re-do employee handbook with changes

12:49

1:49

Review books in QB Online; review and balance to prepaid expenses; close YE

enter close date.

|MONDAY

8/9/2021

8:00

2:00

Open Office; Disable Alarm; Turn on Computer and bring up emails; Begin going

thru emails and responding; search through archieve files for various documents;

Type Resolution 21-08-01 (20 min) for David; Re-do employment application fo

make applicable to EKHCD(40 Min); Type lefter for David to EK Historical Society

{Approx 5 min); perform backups to computer of files on my USB drive (20 min);

Make new labels for Contract files; work on organization of files; make new lables

for AIP missing folders; Work on writing office procedures written document; Meet

with locksmith, and show him around the building and the doors needing re-keyed;

Leave and go to the post office and bank; stop back by to check on locksmith;

WEDNESDAY

8/11/2021

8:00

11:30

3.5

Update and prepare job description for new office manager position; Email David;

Run 3 ads for the position; post and update the website; reconcile bank accounts;

work on office procedures directions; Print OMLO invoice from email;

WEDNESDAY

8/11/2021

2:00

2:30

0.5

Correspondence with AV Press & David

{FRIDAY

8/13/2021

8.00

10:30

25

Download Zoom recording; Copy zoom link and email to directors; Update Website

with Zoom recordings; Confirm CSDA ad; Update Website with signed minutes;

Review website for other out of date information, and correct & update; Work on

Office Procedures handbook. Check and print necessary emails.

///z //

Athorized by RchgrdMacedonio

&) ¢ / 202y

15
/w
s
4
7

4

Linda Caok, Employee



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

PERIOD: Aug 16, 2021 - Aug 31, 2021

TIMECARD FOR LINDA COOK

Day of week

Date

BEGIN

END

HOURS
WORKED

EXPLANATION

MONDAY

8/16/2021

8:00

12:30

4.5

File keys, sign key received doc; Typed up documents for David; Typed up

Agenda for September; Interacted with Fire Sprinkler Testers and searched for

documents as to alarm code for sprinklers; helped with copier delivery and set up;

created monthly rent invoices, and mailed; Printed reports for July, copied

bank statements for board packet; Entered incomming invoices received; emailed

copies of Payroll produced to CALPERS guy; Scanned timecard and sent to Lynn;

Went to bank to deposit; went to post office for mail, etc ete

WEDNESDAY

8/18/2021

7:15

8:30

1.25

Revise Agenda; Respond and answer emails; Prepare ASI's thus far; Send Reso

& Employee handbook to Alex; Send updated agenda and ASI's to David

WEDNESDAY

8/18/2021

2:30

3:30

Work thru Karen's email, trying to make changes to the agenda as she is asking.

FRIDAY

8/20/2021

7:30

10:30

Go thru emails; responses, etc. Work on Agenda for special mesting as requested

by Karen; submit social security info to CalPERS: Inpput Payroll check information

forwarded from Lynn @ Moats; Call to LAIF regarding adding an account to transfer

funds from; Downloaded form and filled in as much as possible; Updated all A/P

in preparation for Checks to print. Contacted Streamline regarding question of

back door access with IPADS.

FRIDAY

8/20/2021

2:45

3:00

0.25

Answer and respond to emails; Call from David regarding meeting with Cleaning

lady; Re-Do special Mesting Agenda and re-send to Karen.

MONDAY

8/23/2021

8:00

1:15

5.25

Work on trying fo set up copier- No CD drive in computer to load drivers, etc???;

enter Payroll in payroll spreadsheet; Re-Align Printer for printing checks

Work on LAIF form; Sign onto Microsoft and update auto debit information for

annual subscription fo process; Prepare Thank you letter; prepare key form

updates to monthly payee sheet; Go online to obtain, water bill, SCE bill, Waste Mgmt

bill, and enter for payment; meet with cleaning lady and Rubi, go to the Post Office

WEDNESDAY

8/25/2021

12:020

1:00

Print added Utility checks & all checks waiting to print for after board mesting; Go

thru emails; correspondence with David A.

FRIDAY

8/26/2021

7:15

9:15

Updates & preparing ASI's; Updates to Agenda, set up zoom meeting and add to

agenda for September; Emails to David Aranda; print Job Descriptions and

employee manual for the board packet; prepare and email directors timecards

FRIDAY

8/26/2021

10:30

11:30

Telephone Conference with David Aranda regarding agenda & AS!'s; Revisions

to agenda & ASI's per David; send various emails; print various emails & respond;

print LaMiya & Karen's training certificates and add to timecard; wait for response

from Karen on ADHOC meeting dates.

FRIDAY

8/26/2021

5:00

6:00

Work on ASI's added; David Report, etc; Go thru emails answering each; revisions

to imecards for diractors

SATURDAY

8/28/2021

9:45

10:30

0.75

Read thru David's report, add changes, and corrections to original report. Print

timecard and add thru dates; scan and send both to Brent for review; add both fo

board packet.

MONDAY

8/30/2021

8:00

2:00

Work on setting up printer/copier-Succes!!; correspond and send timecards for

signing to directors; Meet with Lois for her to sign timecards and issue key to office;

print additional checks; check bank account for any EFT's that came thru to make

sure they are on the report; correspond with David, and finish up Agenda; Post

agenda on the front door; open the mail at the office; prepare checks for depositing;

enter more involces and print checks; Correspond with Karen regarding LAIF;

scan all director timecards to Karen for signature; re-do AS! for agenda item 15;

scan Supuleveda Invoices to David; various filing; fill out EDD form sent on LaMiya

complete, copy and mail original back; stop by and check the mail and do deposits

on way out. Open mail-prepare another deposit; print copy at home.

TOTAL

27

Athorized by: Karen Macedonio

Linda Cook, Employee



5! T SFALTS (ARE ASTRICY PERQE dug 16 3023 - Aug 31, 20
TIMECHRD FGR UNDA SO0
! i )
I ELT B
{ &Ean =i 55 3?&@5’% SO Byt s, Tyec up o
g " Foaas Y Sy @
S— o

0 Aor e coneek i-’gr*;j FEFTIOG TNEE s, raes

‘rx,‘mci?”:}‘(‘&ﬁ ;wﬁ:gd e uTeEE SR

O el esriaaa G o o e .

i AET R et “sw"“n"?d l;*;“.’b;

-5
s
i
it
bt
w
nd
1)

[y e

T3 TSR Eaged,

§I e 2 5o B

. SC——

e
i3
i e * 3
: SE =
e ffoesss e85 A oo x s .

| Cwning é'“aan A’aia'
Joi mmvw&w e ‘&vﬁs&”;aﬂu} iR Ry

,,.;.,x ’ﬂ Mgcfzh

UL T Gl ECARS ~Rairg, L

$0r. eregye. casgoienTs afh Dand &

] ...‘ﬁs;!,.ﬂ*whf e 5 Adeonia, dut uo S0 SSRGS A SO0

& 2505 Toumeen

*ﬁ?:.##i SRS ""x..is, ;ﬁ‘i&sﬂ.r.: & mE & 'EEE:?"L.

(o] ’&%&&"%ﬁfi‘ﬁﬁr‘

v DReE 2oo 28t hanges. aRY Sirecions o ungewl egne P
TR T AT oS Wit and werd Salh Ko DRed Y meiw st D

bofaderd ;éi"x‘f.'f

L] g S0 0 BRI O RN e -Rianis” Somednas il BRG UINRCANTS He
: i egyns,mm: ‘céeﬁ il L‘Ji“f"ﬁﬂz -#;ﬂ ‘r’;cam; ard G5 km l.,
e L
} i ,_.x’ TESS TN NG IV {l‘am errral A S ‘mgzr@wq ,.»7 F

IR | R 20 BIVECKY ROGNTL 1 HATED 1Y SUFELOD 1890 5. K 2ENE B U3

: i = %;-.m_m:zs ol wrias Gy S EDG i sant op z,-& wd

] J.r;.k,-'_-.-. 205 207 T oagnal Tack, sé:wa?az-:n'a* ey & vkl 2 i diseaes

i gy e

¢

f "“3

zrga{ngk, imglyss

7@ ££Eica5w'€r’



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Check Detail
August 2021
Date Transaction Type Num Name Cir Amount
1135 Mission Bank Checking
08/04/2021  Bill Payment Debit CSDA Cc -200.00
Classes for LaMiya & Karen
08/11/2021  Bill Payment Debit CSDA C -105.00
Job Listing for 1 month-Office Manager
8/26/2021 Bill Payment Debit Zoom -14.99
8/25/21-9/24/21
8/6/2021 Bill Payment Debit T-Mobile -43.85
8/23/2021 Bill Payment Debit Microsoft Office 365 -69.99
Annual Renewal
08/12/2021  Expense Direct Deposit Richard Macedonio C -182.30
PAYROLL Director Fees July1/08/12
08/12/2021  Expense Direct Deposit Linda Cook Cc -1,095.97
PAYROLL PAYROLL 7/1/21-7/15/21
08/12/2021 Expense Direct Deposit Rubi Foley C -177.30
PAYROLL Director Fees July
08/12/2021  Expense Direct Deposit LaMiya Patrick (o3 -273.45
PAYROLL -Director Fees July
08/12/2021  Expense Direct Deposit Lois Peralta Cc -91.15
PAYROLL Director Fees July
08/12/2021  Expense Direct Deposit Linda Cook C -937.49
PAYROLL PAYROLL 7/16/21-7/31/21
08/12/2021  Expense Direct Deposit Karen Macedonio Cc -182.30
PAYROLL Director Fees July
08/16/2021  Bill Payment (Check) Direct Deposit Linda Cook ~037.49

PAYROLL PAYROLL 8/1/21-8/15/21

12



08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

35740

35741

35742

35743

35744

35745

35746

35747

35748

35749

35750

35751

35752

35753

35754

35755

Thugs to Bugs Pest Control Co. Inc.
August- Bay Avenue

Olivarez Madruga Lemieuz O'neill LLp
Legal - July

Digitech
July Monitoring

Frontier
7128/21-8/27/21

Steve O Plumbing
Invoice 2256 Bay Avenue Toilet Repairs

Sharper Landscaping Services, Inc
North Loop Landscaping August

Streamline
August 1-August 31 Website Hosting

Nigro & Nigro
Progress Billing Audit Work -6/30/21 Fiscal Yr

Senior Citizen Association of California City
August

Mobile Modular
Rent 9/1-9/30

City of California City
7/14-8/13 Water both locations

Waste Management Corporate Services, Inc.
8/1-8/31 Service

SCE

8000222683, 8001112753, 8001112989,
8001658860, 8001959862 7/9-8/8 Services

D. David Hebebrand
July/August Service

Streamline
September 1-31 Website Hosting

David Aranda

Reimbursement: Register LaMiya for CSDA Conf

$675.00

-200.00
-882.00
-42.99
-166.68
-450.00
-440.00
-50.00
-6,000.00
-250.00
-638.98
-1,360.84
-515.91

-2,003.94

-250.00
-50.00

-846.45

13



08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

08/31/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

Bill Payment (Check)

35756

35757

35758

35759

Rembursement: Locksmith: Classic Lock/Key
$171.45

SDRMA

Workers Comp 2021-2022 $1007.53
Liability 2021-2022 $13,519.89
Mojave Desert News

Ad for Office Manager 8/19, 8/26

Steve O Plumbing

Inv# 2278 Repair Ballcock & Flapper on toilet close
to wall

BHI Management Consulting
August Billing - 30 Hours, 130 Miles

Monday, Aug 30, 2021 11:26:32 AM GMT-7

-14,527.42
-27.00

-130.00

-4,372.80

-37,516.29

14



East Kern Health Care
District

Petty Cash Log

For 03/30/2021 through 08/30/2021 Balance $98.59
Date Receipt No. Description Amount Deposited Amount Withdrawn Charged to Received by Approved by
3/30/2021 Balance Forward $98.59
4/30/2021 No petty cash used in April
5/31/2021 No petty cash used in May
6/30/2021. No petty cash used in June
7/30/2024. No petty cash used in July
8/30/2021 No petty cash used in August
Total 0 $98.59 $0.00
BALANCE:
$98.59
REIMBURSMENT CK $0.00

10



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2021

TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets

Bank Accounts
1135 Mission Bank Checking 125,650.46
1140 Mision Bank Cancer Fund 28,954 .45
1143 KC Fund #42160 780.87
1145 Cancer Fund CD 11,962.03
1150 Local Agency Fund 672,819.95
1151 LAIF FMV 3,032.16
1155 Bank of Sierra 232,628.70
1156 Mission Bank MM3 0.00

Total Bank Accounts

Accounts Receivable
1200 Accounts Receivable
1201 Taxes Receivable - Kern County
1290 1290 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
1400 Interest Receivable
1498 Prepaid Expenses
1499 Undeposited Funds
Inventory Asset
Uncategorized Asset
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets
1500 Land
1510 Buildings
1511 New Flooring-9300 North Loop
Total 1510 Buildings

1513 Modular Building-N. Loop (Adventist Health)

1520 Furniture & Equipment

1530 Improvements

1550 Accumulated Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

s —
B s ————————

Accrual Basis Monday, August 16, 2021 11:37 AM GMT-07:00

$1,075,828.62

3,761.97
0.00

0.00
$3,761.97

0.00
-687.42
-900.00

0.00

0.00

$-1,587.42

$1,078,003.17

178,205.00
1,310,740.00
17,500.00
1,328,240.00
16,537.59
0.00
250,251.00
-682,174.00
$1,091,059.59

$2,169,062.76

16

12



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2021

TOTAL
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 Accounts Payable 4,571.61
Total Accounts Payable $4,571.61
Other Current Liabilities
2050 Accrued Expenses 0.00
2110 Deferred Compensation 0.00
2125 Other Current Liabilities 0.00
2130 2130 Note Payable - Dalffe 0.00
2140 Lease Deposit 5,000.00
Total Other Current Liabilities $5,000.00
Total Current Liabilities $9,571.61
Total Liabilities $9,571.61
Equity
2900 Retained Earnings 2,172,613.70
3000 Opening Bal Equity 0.00
Net Income -13,122.55
Total Equity $2,159,491.15
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $2,169,062.76

17

Accrual Basis Monday, August 16, 2021 11:37 AM GMT-07:00 2/2



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
Budget vs. Actuals: 2021.2022 Brd Apprvd Budget - FY22 P&L

July 2021
JUL 2021 TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET
Income

4010 Property Tax Revenues 780.87  16,666.67 -15,885.80 4.69 % $780.87  $16,666.67 $ -15,885.80 4.69 %
4030 Lease Income 7,711.97 5,833.33 1,878.64 132.21 % $7,711.97  $5,833.33 $1,878.64 132.21 %
4040 Interest Income 250.00 -250.00 $0.00 $250.00 $ -250.00 0.00%
Total Income $8,492.84 $22750.00  $-14,257.16 37.33%  $8492.84 $22,750.00  $-14,257.16 37.33%
GROSSPROFIT ) T $849284 $22,750.00  $-14,257.16 37.33% $8,492.84  $22,750.00 $-14,257.16 37.33%

Expenses
6155 Directors Fees 1,500.00 -1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $ -1,500.00 0.00%
6160 Dues and Subscriptions 83.33 -83.33 $0.00 $83.33 $-83.33 0.00%
6170 Groundskeeper 440.00 333.33 106.67 132.00 % $440.00 $333.33 $106.67 132.00 %
6180 Insurance 687.42 687.42 $687.42 $0.00 $687.42 0.00%
6185 Liability Insurance 1,250.00 -1,250.00 $0.00  $1,250.00 $ -1,250.00 0.00%
6190 Work Comp 250.00 -250.00 $0.00 $250.00 $ -250.00 0.00%
Total 6180 Insurance 687.42 1,500.00 -812.58 45.83% $687.42  $1,500.00 $-812.58 45.83%
6240 Miscellaneous $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
6241 Donation- Senior Center Association 250.00 250.00 $250.00 $0.00 $250.00 0.00%
Total 6240 Miscellaneous 250.00 ©250.00 $250.00 $0.00 $250.00 0.00%
6243 Modular Unit Rental 638.98 700.00 -61.02 91.28 % $638.98 $700.00 $-61.02 91.28%
6270 Professional Fees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
6280 Legal Fees 882.00 916.67 -34.67 96.22 % $882.00 $916.67 $-34.67 96.22 %
6282 Consulting-Shawn Sprague 350.00 -350.00 $0.00 $350.00 $-350.00 0.00%
6283 Prof Services Accounting 250.00 125.00 125.00 200.00 % $250.00 $125.00 $125.00 200.00 %
6284 Professional Services- District Secretary 3,333.33 -3,333.33 $0.00 $3,333.33 $-3,333.33 0.00%
6285 Audit Expense 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 100.00 % $6,000.00  $6,000.00 $0.00 100.00 %
6286 Consulting-BHI 4,300.00 4,500.00 -200.00 95.56 % $4,300.00  $4,500.00 $ -200.00 95.56 %
6289 Consulting-Linda Cook 750.00 1,666.67 -916.67 45.00 % $750.00 $1,666.67 $-916.67 45.00 %
Total 6270 Professional Fees 12,182.00  16,891.67 -4,700.67 7212%  $12,182.00 $16,891.67 $ -4,700.67 72.12%
6281 Board Meeting Costs-Zoom Mtgs 14.99 14.99 $14.99 $0.00 $14.99 0.00%
6300 Repairs & Maintenance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
6310 R&M- North Loop Bldg 905.00 1,083.33 -178.33 83.54 % $905.00  $1,083.33 $-178.33 83.54 %
6320 R & M - Bay Ave Bldg 95.00 166.67 -71.67 57.00 % $95.00 $166.67 $-71.67 57.00 %
6330 Alarm Monitoring-Bay Ave Bidg 42.99 125.00 -82.01 34.39 % $42.99 $125.00 $-82.01 34.39 %
Total 6300 Repairs & Maintenance ©1,042.99 1,375.00 -332.01 75.85 % $1,04299  $1,375.00 $-332.01 75.85 %
6350 Conference and Travel 418.67 -416.67 $0.00 $416.67 $-416.67 0.00%
6380 Travel 71.68 71.68 $71.68 $0.00 $71.68 0.00%
Total 6350 Conference and Travel 7168 41667 -344.99 17.20% $71.68 $416.67 $-34498  1720%
6390 Utilities $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
6340 Telephone 385.16 175.00 210.16 220.09 % $385.16 $175.00 $210.16 220.09 %
6400 Gas and Electric 1,618.48 750.00 868.48 215.80 % $1,618.48 $750.00 $868.48 215.80 %
6410 Water 2,177.72 666.67 1,511.05 326.66 % $2,177.72 $666.67 $1,511.06 326.66 %
6420 Trash 515.91 541.67 -25.76 95.24 % $515.91 $541.67 $-25.76 95.24 %
Total 6390 Utilities 4,697.27 2,133.34 2,563.93 220.18 % $4,607.27  $2,133.34 $2,563.93 220.18 %
6500 Office Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
6550 Office Supplies 250.00 -250.00 $0.00 $250.00 $ -250.00 0.00%
Total 6500 Office Expenses 250.00 250,00 $0.00  $250.00 $-250.00 0.00%
6555 Rent Expense 2,000.00 2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0.00%
8560 Payroll Expenses 418.87 -416.67 $0.00 $416.67 $-416.67 0.00%
Total Expenses $22,025.33  $25,600.01 $-3,574.68 86.04%  $22,025.33  $25,600.01 $-3,574.68 86.04 %
NET OPERATING INCOME $-13,53249 $-2,850.01 $-10,682.48 47482% $-13,53249 $-2850.01  $-10,682.48 47482%
NET INCOME $-13,53249 $-2,850.01 $-10,682.48 47482% $-1353248 $-2,850.01 $-10,682.48 47482%

Accrual Basis Wednesday, August 25, 2021 12:41 PM GMT-07:00

18

17



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Deposit Detail
July 2021
DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM CUSTOMER VENDOR MEMO/DESCRIPTION CLR AMOUNT
1143 KC Fund #42160
07/28/2021 Deposit Property Tax Monies for July 780.87
v011577607 Voucher 011577607 780.87
1155 Bank of Sierra
07/02/2021 Deposit Westpoint Physical Therapy R 900.00
41547 Westpoint Physical Therapy -900.00
07/07/2021 Depasit R 1,736.97
20058183 Adventist Health- Modular Unit -738.97
20058183 Adventist Health -998.00
07/14/2021 Deposit T.Rifenberg R 150.00
128 T.Rifenberg -150.00
07/19/2021 Deposit R 2,500.00
9902 T.J. Sri, M.D. -1,600.00
41596 Westpoint Physical Therapy -900.00
07/28/2021 Deposit R 2,100.00
11012 Bartz Altadonna Community Health Center -500.00
9929 T.J. 8ri, M.D. -1,600.00

[

Monday, August 16, 2021 11:41 AM GMT-07:00 1M



East Kern Health Care District Account Balances

Checking Account Balances as of July 31, 2021

Account Name: Account Balance Interest Rate
Mission Bank Checking #3904 $125,650.46 N/A
Bank of Sierra #6398 $232,628.70 N/A
KC Fund 42160 (not yet transferred) $780.87
Total: $359,060.03

Cancer Fund Account Balances as of July 31, 2021

Account Name: Account Balance Interest Rate
Mission Bank Cancer Fund Checking #252 $28,954.45 N/A
Cancer Fund CD #2810 $11,962.03 0.20%
Total: $40,916.48

LAIF Account Balances as of July 31, 2021

Account Name: Account Balance Interest Rate
Local Agency Investment Fund $672,819.95 0.33%
LAIF FMV (See attached from Auditor) $3,032.16
Total: $675,852.11

Grand Total of Account Balances per bank as of July 31, 2021

Bank Name:

Mission Bank Grand Total: $166,566.94
Bank of Sierra Grand Total: $232,628.70
Local Agency Investment Fund: $675,852.11
KC Fund 42160 (not yet transferred) $780.87
Total: $1,075,828.62

Grand Total of Accounts as of July 31, 2021

Grand Total: $1,075,828.62

20



@i missioN BANK

P()EBOX:317 "Jﬁmz:mwm
Bakersfield CA 93302-0317
1 (888) 965-7783

[Eeae
|
i
<

EQUAL HOUSING
L.ENDER

2850575
EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT bate 7/30/21 Page 1
PO BOX 2546 Account Number XXHXHXHHX 3004
CALIFORNIA CITY CA 93504 ' Enclosures 27
1%
CHECKING ACCOUNTS
BUSINESS CHECKING Number of Enclosures 27
Account Number XXXXXXXXX3904  Statement Dates 7/01/21 thru 8/01/21
Previous Balance 164,595.05 Dpays in the statement period 32
Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger 149,967.06
32 Checks/pebits 28,222.88 Average collected . 149,967.06
Monthly Service Fee .00
Interest Paid .00 b
Ending Balance 136,372.17 ¥ See reconchiation

withdrawals and Electronic Debits
Date Description Amount

7/07 PCS SVC T-MOBILE 43.85-
WEB 0000450304 21/07/07
0377094
TRACE #-021000025813066

7/20 BILL PAYMT SO CAL EDISON CO 1,618.48-
WEB 4951240335 21/07/20
700487827592
TRACE #-091000011463639

7/22 INTERNET  WASTE MANAGEMENT 515.91-
WEB 9049038216 21/07/22
043000092415206
TRACE #-043305134803490

7/26 DBT CRD 0939 07/23/21 99801989 177.44-
CITY OF CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA C CA C#5214

7/26 DBT CRD 1105 07/25/21 51308366 14.99-
ZOOM.US 888-799-9666
WWW.ZOOM.US  CA C#5214

Checks in Serial Number Order

S 0 x

0% ¢

AT

*000%Y0%08601 0

IV

Date cCheck No Amount Date cCheck No Amount
7/13 35689 17.73 7/15 35704 130.78
7/19 35697% 250.00 7/22 35705 56.13
7/20 35698 350.00 7/20 35706 170~
7/19 35703 367.99 7/20 35707 10, SOQI

* Denotes missing check numbers

1348




EAST KERN H
PO_BOX 2546

FET SR UIN DAINK

EALTH caARE DISTRI

cT

Date—7 [’%/léi
Account Number

EQUAL HOUSING
LENDER

Page 2

CALIFORNIA

CITY ca 93 504

BUSINESs CHECKING

Enclosyres

XXXXXXXXX3904 (Continued)
Checks in Serial Number Orger

Date Check No Amount
7/20 35708 882.00
7/14 35709 200.00
7/14 35710 600.00
7/15 35711 700.00
7/08 35712 200.00
7/09 35713 500.00
7/20 35714 350.00
7/13 - 35715 638.98
7/23 35716 27.24
7/19 35717 250.00

* Denotes missing check numbers

Daily Balance

Date Balance pate
7/01 164,595.05 7/14
7/07 164,551.20 7/15
7/08 163,951.20 7/16
7/09 160,156.20 7/19
7/13 154,573.13 7/20

If you have been paying multipl

unnecessary fees,

discuss your options, Report any di

Come in or call

Check nNo

Date
7/13 35718
7/13 35719
7/09 35720
7/16 35722%
7709 35723
7/14 35724
7/08 35725
7/15 35726
7/14 35727

Information

Balance Date

153,373.13 7/22
152,342.35 7/23
151,902.35 7/26
151,034.36
137,163.88

€ overdraft fees we offer

; XXXXXXXXX39Q4
: 27

Amount
541.26
4,385.10
2,995.00
440.00
300.00
200.00
400.00
200.00
200.00

Balance
136,591.84
136,564.60
136,372,317

1349




8/11/2021

EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
1135 Mission Bank Checking, Period Ending 07/31/2021
RECONCILIATION REPORT
Reconciled on: 08/11/2021

Reconciled by: Linda Cook
Any changes made to transactions after this date aren't included in this report.

Summary usp
Statement beginning balance 164,595.05
Checks and payments cleared (32) -28,222.88
Deposits and other credits cleared {0) 0.00
Statement ending balance 136,372.17
Uncleared transactions as of 07/31/2021 -10,721.71
Register balance as of 07/31/2021 125,650.46
Cleared transactions after 07/31/2024 0.00
Uncleared transactions after 07/31/2021 475.87
Register balance as of 08/11/2021 126,126.33
Details

Checks and payments cieared (32)

DATE ) TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD)
05/31/2021 Bill Payment 35698 Shawn Sprague -350.00
05/31/2021 Bill Payment 35689 Kem County Auditor - Controlier -17.73
05/31/2021 Bill Payment 35697 Senior Citizen Association of ... -250.00
08/30/2021 Bill Payment 35723 Rubi Foley -300.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35727 Karen Macedonio -200.00
06/30/2021 Bilt Payment 35726 LaMiya Patrick -200.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35725 Lois Peralta -400.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35724 Richard Macedonio -200.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35722 Sharper Landscaping Service... -440.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35720 Linda Cook -2,995.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35719 BHI Management Consulting -4,385.10
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35718 Employment Development De... -541.26
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35717 Senior Citizen Association of ... -250.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35716 Witts -27.24
08/30/2021 Bill Payrment 35715 Mobile Modular -638.98
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35714 Shawn Sprague -350.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35713 Rubi Foley -500.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35712 Lois Peralta -200.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35711 LaMiya Patrick -700.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35710 Richard Macedonio -600.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35708 Karen Macedonio -200.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35708 Olivarez Madruga Lemieuz 0'... -882.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35707 Nigro & Nigro -10,500.00
086/30/2021 Bill Payment 35706 Thugs to Bugs Pest Control C... -170.00
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35703 Digitech -367.99
06/30/2021 Bill Payment 35704 Frontier -130.78
08/30/2021 Bill Payment 35705 David Aranda -56.13
07/06/2021 Bill Payment ACH300003351891 Tmobile -43.85
07/13/2021 Bill Payment 038-0164217427507 City of California City -177.44
07/19/2021 Bill Payment ACH300005394505 SCE -1,618.48
07/21/2024 Bill Payment ACH300005394506 Waste Management Corporat... -515.91
07/26/2021 Bill Payment ACH 20210728 Zoom Video Communications, ... -14.99
Total -28,222.88
\

Additional Information 23
Uncleared checks and payments as of 07/31/2021

DATE TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD)

12




8/11/2021

DATE TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD)
05/03/2021 Bill Payment 35687 Special District Leadership Fo... -65.00
07/31/2021 Bill Payment 35730 Frontier -130.78
07/31/2021 Bill Payment 35729 Digitech -42.98
07/31/2021 Bill Payment 35728 Linda Cook -750.00
07/31/2021 Bill Payment 35731 D. David Hebebrand -250.00
07/31/2021 Bill Payment 35732 Olivarez Madruga Lemieuz O'... -882.00
07/31/2021 Bill Payment 35733 Sharper Landscaping Service... -340.00
07/31/2021 Bili Payment 35734 Reliable Air Cond.&Heating ~805.00
07131/2021 Bill Payment 35735 City of California City -2,000.28
07/31/20214 Bili Payment 35736 Senior Citizen Association of ... -250.00
07/31/2021 Bill Payment 35737 Mobile Modular -638.98
07/31/2021 Bill Payment 35738 BHI Management Consulting -4,371.68
07/31/2021 Bill Payment 35739 Steve O Plumbing -95.00
Total -10,721.71
Uncleared checks and payments after 07/31/2021

DATE TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD)
08/04/2021 Bill Payment ACH 20210727 CSDA -200.00
08/11/2021 Bill Payment Debit210811 CSDA -105.00
Total -305.00
Uncleared deposits and other credits after 07/31/2021

DATE TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD)
08/04/2021 Transfer 780.87
Total 780.87

24

22



|

I

i

|

H

M

I

1l

I

L 0

Ll

I

*0001L 01

LA

®: Mission Bank

PO Box 317
Bakersfield CA 93302-0317
1(888) 965-7783

EQUAL HOUSING
LENDER

2850572
EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT Date 7/30/21 Page 1
CANCER ASSISTANCE FUND Account Number KXXXXXXXX2526
PO BOX 2546 Enclosures
CALIFORNIA CITY CA 93504
CHECKING ACCOUNTS
BUSINESS CHECKING Number of Enclosures 0
Account Number XXXXXXXXX2526 Statement Dates 7/01/21 thru 8/01/21
Previous Balance 28,954.45 Days in the statement period 32
Deposits/Credits -00  Average Ledger 28,954.45
Checks/pebits .00  Average Collected 28,954,45
Monthly Service Fee .00
Interest Paid .00
Ending Balance 28,954.45

Daily Balance Information

Date Balance
7/01 28,954.45

If you have been paying multiple overdraft fees we offer products to help you avoi
unnecessary fees. Come in or call your Business Banking Center at 1-888-965-7783 t
discuss your options. Report any discrepancies on your statement immediately.

d
o

20

1345




*» 000LO0OLOSYLOODZRBSO ¥

i dupovitor lovwrd v 34 leaat STROSE0

% BANK % SIERRA @ T“M
PO BOX 1930 FQUAL HOUSIRG (kml:mu FDIc
Porterville CA 93258 VLTS

(888) 454-2265

9913605 Date 7/30/21 Page s

East Kern Health Care District
P O Box 2546
california City CA 93504

Checking Account

Public Demand Number of Enclosures 0
Account Number XXXXXX6398  Statement Dates 7/01/21 thru 8/01/21
Previous Balance 226,141.73 Days 1in the statement period 32
4 peposits/Credits 6,486.97 Average Ledger 229,063.95
Checks/Debits .00 Average Collected 228,884.67
Service charge .00
Interest Paid .00
Ending Balance 232,628.70
== : : | &  Deposits and Credits
= Date Description Amount
== 7/07 Business Deéposit 15736797
=== 7/14 Business Deposit 150.00
== 7/19 Business Deposit 2,500.00
= 7/28 Business Deposit 2,100.00
= . et . ' Daily Balance Information
= Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance
= 7/01 226,141.73 7/14 228,028.70 7/28 232,628.70

—— 7/07 227,878.70 7/19 230,528.70

Keep Climbing

20

MEMBER FDIC NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION



8/20/2021

* MISSION BANK

" Cancer Fund CD

Account: CD 0003 Current Time: 08/20/21 9:51:41 AM

Account Transactions-MISSION BANK

Current Balance: $11,964.06

Date ¥ Ref/Check No Description Debit Credit Balance
07/15/2021 Interest Added Back $1.97 $11,962.03
Totals: Transactions: 1 Debits: $0.00 Credits: $1.97

https://www.netteller.com/login2008/Views/Retail/AccountTransactions.aspx

27

17



California State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, cpA

Local Agency Investment Fund
P.O. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
(916) 653-3001

EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

ADMINISTRATOR
P.0. BOX 2546
CALIFORNIA CITY, CA 93504

Tran Type Definitions

Account Number: 20-15-002

July 2021 Statement

Tran Web
Effective Transaction Type Confirm Confirm
Date Date p Number Number Authorized Caller Amount
7/15/2021 7/14/2021 QRD 1679238 N/A SYSTEM 548.89
Account Summary
Total Deposit: 548.89 Beginning Balance: 672,271.06
Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 672,819.95

28



Hle Home  insert

T e e,

0L ) ' . B
5 A B8
e e R

T _EASTRERM HEAITH CARE DISTRICT
2_)AIF Bakanca

2_6fs0j200

4 ‘
5 _LAIF8alanceat6/20/200  cres
)

7_Applydarket Value Ady,

o

s" AIF Balanceat /3072070
w0

stfrvviiare a0
2

Page Layout
(i} srovecreo visw Excarefus—6les rom the Matermet can otz e, Unlers

Formuias  Datw  Reviem View  Help  Asrabat PDFelement
o1t nesdto adR, s sofer e sty  Protectsd Vies. :E_;iﬁmia;g;
2 3 £ G H 3 K
8197
617,196.75
ey Difference Pr NV &) i the PRAA LAIF
3 303216 -~ 303218 caer rer Bal i Y aisgetothe lune
—— 303216 TG a3
Retlitor il o

Eashin County B4V 24)

LAIF - Fair Value
LAIF - Amortized Cost

FV/Cost =

$ 101,607,078,218.36

®

$ 101,110,343,832.82

100.

912794940%

Pooled Money Investment Account Market Valuation Report Attached

-]

1 — )
4

State of California
Pacled Money investment Account

Market va!_uaﬂan

) ZIIWISSTAIS | S SACSTNRTIRAZ |5 SCOBOESnES BR
Beoles: z L T Y ZRIAS 008 SRO TS ISETER IG5
g F ol Apency
Sas 5 TE5 4 5 AW TG 43050 3Tt g 2088a B
| MBS-ReMcy S 1roenwe i s ITETCITEIG 18 042 R 78 mEIR S
Dabertans: & TeMI IS5 6] & 208807 II2AT R 2303 210Dl B350 97
Deburkows FR % 1S - i3 - -
L Dhirdumns CL. 5 ELCSOPOINRED S ¢OMSIDIOOSI0LS | 102739950000 BETERIGO
M"ﬁ;@";._____-—-________’ 8570800 (0I5  § IBEIZSSTEGASES|S 16817801 nnote .
3" pRupnabenst Deernsns E SIEOERNS3TTI 5 & TOEABE R BUEI60 8OO HG 33eE3anys
- g Beverdines PRE S noamnasaly DI ARIRE L 2B IDEFTITY B SES 53
2 | CDe i ¥EDE TR s scomsoeecs) o SO MGIN0TE] S 02 132 0000% IIRER2 T
b Bioies £ 200,000 005 o | 30, L% STaa s
Z°{Chs e YEDe 8 gmmmz& 3 _127ng4mzanpaie 12708 2% S3e B LGSR ST O
2 Panes 3 Ex3. Xy 1KY TIRMSTASWI G FTARSBO IO AR

LAF FMV



® A\ Cast Ken
EALTH

- CARE
DISTRICT

Regular Meeting Minutes

08/03/2021
MINUTES

EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING
8101 Bay Ave. CALIFORNIA CITY
Our mission is to expend financial resources to help residents of the

District satisfy their healthcare needs.

08/03/2021 5:00PM

Special Notice

Teleconference Accessibility

Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20 issued by Governor Newsom in response to the COVID-19 outbreak
and as a precaution to protect both staff, our constituents, and elected officials, the East Kern Health
Care District will hold its board meeting via teleconference or the most rapid means of communication at
the time. The public may participate in the teleconference by clicking on the link below:

https://usmweb.zoom.us/j/9571124?02

Meeting ID: 957 112 4702

Public comments may be made through teleconference when prompted by the President during the
public comment period. Public comments may also be provided through email by emailing
eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com during or prior to the meeting.

Please indicate comments on the subject line.

If you have difficulty connecting to the teleconference line, please call 669-900-6833
or email eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY RICHARD MACEDONIO
2. CALL TO ORDER AT 5:01 PM

3. ROLL CALL BY LINDA COOK:
Director Rubi Foley, Present
Director Richard Macedonio, Present
Director LaMiya Patrick, Present
Director Lois Peralta, Present
Chair Karen Macedonio, Present

Staff Present: Alex Lemieux- Legal Counsel, Present
David Aranda, BHI Consultant, Present
Linda Cook, Finance Manager for EKHCD, Present 3 D



Public Present: None
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA Action Item:

Motion by Director Rubi Foley, Second by Richard Macedonio
Approved: All Ayes
Director Rubi Foley, Aye
Director Richard Macedonio, Aye
Director LaMliya Patrick, Aye
Director Lois Peralta, Aye
Chair Karen Macedonio, Aye

5. COMMENTS BY THE BOARD PRESIDENT

6. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS:
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on
any matter not on this agenda and over which the Board has jurisdiction. Please be
advised that the Brown Act prohibits action on items that are not listed on the
agenda. The board may set such items for consideration at some future Board
meeting.

7. CONSULTING REPORT: BHI Management Consulting
David Aranda, Received and filed.

8. REPORT FROM FINANCE MANAGER: Linda Cook, Received and filed.

ACTION ITEMS: CONSENT CALENDAR

9. APPROVAL OF BILLS TO PAY FOR JULY 2021: Action
Approve Warrants 6 EFT’s, and check #’s 35728-35739 for a total Item:
amount $13,543.29. (July) See attached Check Detail and Petty
Cash Report (No Transactions).

10. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL REPORTS: Profit and Loss report Action
for June, Bank Balances with Interest Report and deposit Detail Item:
reports for June, 2021.

11. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR JULY 6,2021 REGULAR Action
MEETING AND JULY 12,2021 SPECIAL MEETING Item:

Motion to approve all consent Calendar items by Director LaMiya
Patrick, Second by Director Rubi Foley
Approved: All Ayes
Director Rubi Foley, Aye
Director Richard Macedonio, Aye 3 'l
Director LaMiya Patrick, Aye



Director Lois Peralta, Aye
Chair Karen Macedonio, Aye

ACTION ITEMS: OLD BUSINESS

12. INSURANCE: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2021-07-03, A Action
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION TO THE Ttem:

DIRECTOR OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS, STATE OF
CALIFORNIA FOR A CERTIFICATE OF CONSENT TO SELF-
INSURE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION LIABILITIES:
APPROVE APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF CONSENT
TO SELF INSURE AS A PUBLIC AGENCY EMPLOYER SELF-
INSURER

Motion to approve Resolution 2021-07-03 by Director LaMiya
Patrick, Second by Director Lois Peralta
Approved: All Ayes

Director Rubi Foley, Aye

Director Richard Macedonio, Aye

Director LaMiya Patrick, Aye

Director Lois Peralta, Aye

Chair Karen Macedonio, Aye

ACTION ITEMS: NEW BUSINESS

13. 14. DISCUSSION AND DIRECTION REGARING PERSONNEL ?ction
tem:
Motion to create Employee Handbook, and Develop Job Application
for the Office Manager Position by Director Richard Macedonio,
Second by Rubi Foley.
Approved: All Ayes
Director Rubi Foley, Aye
Director Richard Macedonio, Aye
Director LaMiya Patrick, Aye
Director Lois Peralta, Aye
Chair Karen Macedonio, Aye

14. 13, DISCUSSION AND DIRECTION REGARDING INVESTMENTS Action
AND LAIF AND APPROVAL OF AN UPDATED RESOLUTION Item:
2021-01-04

Motion to approve the update to Resolution 2021-01-04 by Director
Lois Peralta, Second by Director Rubi Foley

Approved: All Ayes 3 2
Director Rubi Foley, Aye



Director Richard Macedonio, Aye
Director LaMiya Patrick, Aye
Director Lois Peralta, Aye

Chair Karen Macedonio, Aye

15. 16. DISCUSSION REGARDING POSSIBLE ATTENDANCE AT Action
VIRTUAL WORKSHOP: FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT FOR Item:
SPECIAL DISTRICTS.

Motion to send LaMiya and Karen to the Virtual Workshop on
Financial Management for Special Districts held August
8 & 9™ By Richard Macedonio, Second by Director LaMiya Patrick.
Approved: All Ayes

Director Rubi Foley, Aye

Director Richard Macedonio, Aye

Director LaMiya Patrick, Aye

Director Lois Peralta, Aye

Chair Karen Macedonio, Aye

16. 13. DISCUSSION AND DIRECTION REGARDING THE Action
CURRENT LEASE AGREEMENTS Them:
Present Karen Macedonio appointed herself and Director Lois Peralta
to be the AdHoc Committee for Reviewing the Lease Agreements and
creating a spreadsheet.

Approved: All Ayes
Director Rubi Foley, Aye
Director Richard Macedonio, Aye
Director LaMiya Patrick, Aye
Director Lois Peralta, Aye
Chair Karen Macedonio, Aye

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:
Director: Rubi Foley

Director: Richard Macedonio:
Director: LaMiya Patrick:

Director: Lois Peralta
Chair: Karen Macedonio:

DIRECTORS COMMENTS FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS:
Director: Rubi Foley
Director: Richard Macedonio:
Director: LaMiya Patrick:
Director: Lois Peralta
Chair: Karen Macedonio:

33



STAFF COMMENTS:
Linda Cook:
David Aranda:
Alex Lemieux:

ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Director LaMiya Patrick, Second by Director Lois Peralta at 6:49 PM.

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: September 7, 2021 5:00 pm. 8101 Bay Ave California City,
CA

“Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related modification or accommodation,
including auxiliary aids or services, that is sought in order to participate in this agendized public meeting should be directed
to the District’s office at (760) 373-2804 or Cell (661) 220-6100 at least 48 hours prior to said meeting.”

Agenda posted 05/24/2021

Karen Macedonio, Board President LaMiya Patrick, Vice President

34



AGENDA SUPPORTING INFORMATION AGENDA #10

Subject:

Submitted by:
Requested by:
Meeting Date:
Background:

Approval by the board of the Finance Committee
and set the day of the month when the committee
will meet.

David Aranda, BHI Consultant
President Macedonio
September 7, 2021

At the August Board of Directors meeting there
was mention of the Finance Committee getting
back to meeting once a month on a regular basis.
This agenda item is the formal process for the
Board President to appoint two board members to
the Finance Committee. As noted in the
Administration Code, page 7 under committees,
“in absence of objection by a majority of the
Board, the President’s action shall be final.”

Recommendation: The Board President should set the finance

committee made up of two directors and attempt
to obtain a commitment from the two board
members regarding a regular day each month
when that committee will meet.

30



AGENDA SUPPORTING INFORMATION AGENDA #11

Subject:

Meeting Date:
Submitted by:
Requested by:
Background:

Approval of the resignation of Director R.
Macedonio, as Secretary, and the appointment of
Director Foley as Secretary to the East Kern
Health Care District Board of Directors.

September 7, 2021
David Aranda, BHI Consultant
Board President K. Macedonio.

Due to Board resignations around March of 2021
the East Kern Health Care District had three active
directors. With that, there was a need for some
directors to take on more than one position as
outlined in the Administrative Code so Director R.
Macedonio, took on both Secretary and Treasurer.
Now that there are five board members serving,
another director can take one of those positions. It
was my understanding that Director Foley has

~spoken to the Board President about taking on the

position of Secretary to the Board of Directors.

Recommendation: The Board should move to approve the

resignation of Director R. Macedonio as Secretary,
remaining as Treasurer and approve Director
Foley to serve as Secretary to the East Kern
Health Care District.

A note for the Boards attention. On page 6 and 7
of the district's administrative code there is a
listing of responsibilities for the various board

30



positions. It would be prudent for the board to
have a future agenda item discussing the
responsibilities and memorializing those for the
benefit of the district and future board members
and officers. Many Districts have Board members
that have certain positions, but staff performs the
actual duties, i.e. recording and drafting of the
minutes so clarification would be helpful for all.

34



AGENDA SUPPORTING INFORMATION AGENDA #12

Subject:

Submitted by:
Meeting Date:

Background:

Approval of Resolution 2021-08-01, Reserve
Guideline Policy for East Kern Health Care
District.

David Aranda, BHI Consultant
September 7, 2021

Common sense and good business sense lend
itself to any business including governmental
agencies to have reserve money available for
emergencies, contingencies, capital needs and
special project. The State of California, several
years ago was “shocked” at how much money
independent special districts had in reserves
overall and threatened to grab it when the State
was in dire financial shape. That prompted
California Special Districts Association to put
together a pamphlet outlining a Reserve Guideline
Policy for each respective independent special
district, especially those received property tax
money.

The attached Resolution follow the guidelines
outlined in the pamphlet and is a safeguard in
protecting the money the district has in reserves
and in justifying to the State and to our
constituents the reasons for the need of such
reserves.

Legal Counsel has reviewed the policy.

Recommendation: Approve Resolution 2021-08-01. Please note
that this is NOT a policy regarding handling monies of the district.

38



RESOLUTION No. 2021-08-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, DESIGNATING ACCOUNTS AS
RESERVE ACCOUNTS PURSUANT TO ARTICLE X111 B, SECTION 5 OF THE
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

WHEREAS, the East Kern Health Care District wishes to insure the financial and operational integrity of the
District, The East Kern Health Care District has established an account in LAIF to provide contingency, emergency

and reserve funds of which funds may be expended for specified purposes including improvement, expansion,
replacement or repair of district facilities and to supplement the district’s fiscal requirements in years of inadequate

funding:

WHEREAS, by vote of the people of the State of California, on November 6, 1979, Article XIil B was added
to the California Constitution. Section 5 of said Constitutional Amendment provides for establishment of contingency,
emergency, unemployment reserve, retirement, sinking fund, trust or similar funds as deemed reasonable and

proper.

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District and its constituents that the foregoing account be
maintained which accounts or funds are reasonable and proper.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS BOARD AS FOLLOWS:

1.

The East Kern Health Care District considers a reserve policy for the District to be a critical part of
the overall mission statement.

The East Kern Health Care District is an Independent Special District with the responsibility of
health and welfare for Eastern Kern County. The District each year presents, and operates a
balanced budget and attempts to avoid borrowing money and pay for services rendered from
existing funds.

The East Kern Health care District sees a need for a reserve fund in LAIF to make capital
improvements as needed to maintain the assets of the District and buildings critical to the providing
of medical providers in Eastern Kern County. Also a reserve fund would be needed for a year of
shortfall in revenue for operating expenses and finally for the board to provide health care agencies
with funding for special emergency occurrences.

The East Kern Health Care District is responsible to the constituents in Eastern Kern County and
will be open and transparent in regard to the purpose of reserve funds and monthly financial
transactions.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this September 7, 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

Karen Macedonio, President LaMiya Patrick, Vice Present

3P



8/27/2021 Gmail - RESOLUTION AND BOARD ITEMS

M Gma]! East Kern Health Care District <eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com>

RESOLUTION AND BOARD ITEMS

5 messages

East Kern Health Care District <eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com> Wed, Aug 18, 2021 at 8:17 AM
To: Alex Lemieux <ALemieux@omlolaw.com>

Cc: David <daranda300@gmail.com>
Good morning Alex;

Attached is a resolution that is on the agenda, David said to forward to you for pre-approval. He also wanted me to check
with you on the status of the handbook review. With that said, | am attaching the proposed resolution, the Handbook, and
the draft agenda for the September meeting.

Thanks,

Linda Cook

East Kern Health Care District
Consultant

Phone 760-373-2804

Cell: 661 220-6100

Fax 760-373-1054

PO Box 2546

California City CA 93504

3 attachments

7 Resolution 21-08-01 Designating Reserve Accounts.DOC
= 44K

EKHCD Employee Handbook With Markups.docx
841K

@ September 7 2021 regular meeting agenda.docx
75K

Alexander Lemieux <ALemieux@omlolaw.com> Wed, Aug 18, 2021 at 2:36 PM
To: East Kern Health Care District <eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com>
Cc: David <daranda300@gmail.com>

Good Afternoon Linda — | have no issues with the proposed resolution. Regarding the handbook, | have forwarded it to

my colleague that specializes in employment law for a once-over. | don't really anticipate any issues since its already
been vetted.

Alex Lemieux

OLIVAREZ MADRUGA LEMIEUX O'NEILL, LLP

500 S GRAND AVE, FLOOR 12, LOS ANGELES, CA 90071
TEL: 213.213.9835 « FAX: 213.744.0093

[Quoted text hidden] ' D

East Kern Health Care District <eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com> Wed, Aug 18, 2021 at 3:27 PM
To: Alexander Lemieux <ALemieux@omlolaw.com>

hitps://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=764e5719d1 &view=pt&search=aIl&permthid=thread-a%3Ar7593835846339864095&3impl=msg~a%3Ar758887839. . 12



8/27/2021 Gmail - RESOLUTION AND BOARD ITEMS
Cc: David <daranda300@gmail.com>

Alex,

Thank you.

Linda Cook

East Kern Health Care District
Consultant

Phone 760-373-2804

Cell: 661 220-6100

Fax 760-373-1054

PO Box 2546

California City CA 93504

[Quoted text hidden]

daranda300@gmail.com <daranda300@gmail.com> Fri, Aug 27, 2021 at 11:45 AM
To: East Kern Health Care District <eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com>

Can you put this e-mail with the agenda items for both employee handbook and reserve policy? Thanks David.

[Quoted text hidden]

East Kern Health Care District <eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com> Fri, Aug 27, 2021 at 1:04 PM
To: David <daranda300@gmail.com>

Will do.

Linda Cook

East Kern Health Care District
Consultant

Phone 760-373-2804

Cell: 661 220-6100

Fax 760-373-1054

PO Box 2546

California City CA 93504

[Quoted text hidden)

41

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=764e5719d1 &view=pt&search=aIl&permthid=thread—a%3Ar7593835846339864095&3impl=msg-a%3Ar758887839 e 22



AGENDA SUPPORTING INFORMATION AGENDA #13

Subject: Approval of Resolution 2021-09-01, Amendment
to Administrative Code Section 1-3.007.
Regarding incompatible offices.

Submitted by: David Aranda, BHI Consultant
Meeting Date: September 7, 2021

Background: After some questions surfaced from the City
Attorney for California City, Legal Counsel
recommended a resolution be approved and
added to our current Administrative Code
regarding findings that serving on the City Council
simultaneously with EKHCD would not be and
incompatible office.

Legal Counsel has reviewed both our
Administrative Code and the Government Code
regarding these findings.

Recommendation: Approve Resolution 2021-09-01.

42



RESOLUTION No. 2021-09-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, AMENDING THE
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTION 1-3.007 REGARDING

INCOMPATABLE OFFICES

WHEREAS, the East Kern Health Care District has had reasonable inquiries into
a director holding office with the East Kern Health Care District, at the same time
as the office of City Council Member.

WHEREAS, the East Kern Health Care District would like clarify that individuals
can serve concurrently two offices in California City without it being considered
incompatible as per Governmental Code Section 1099.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS BOARD AS FOLLOWS:

1. THE EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT FINDS THAT
MEMBERSHIP ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE EAST KERN

HEALTH CARE DISTRICT IS NOT AN INCOMPATABLE OFFICE WITH
THE CITY COUNCIL OF CALIFORNIA CITY.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this September 7, 2021 by the following
vote:

NOES:
ABSENT:

Karen Macedonio, President LaMiya Patrick, Vice Present

43



AGENDA SUPPORTING INFORMATION AGENDA # 14

Subiject:

Submitted by:
Meeting Date:
Background:

Recommendation:;

Presentation and approval of an employee handbook
for the EKHCD’s Employees.

David Aranda, BHI Consultant
September 7, 2021

David Aranda prepared a draft marked up copy of the
Stallion Springs Employee Manual to Linda Cook, who
then did the redlining/additions/questions on a pdf that
David then sent to Director Foley and Alex, legal
counsel for the district. The time that David spent on
this to date was one hour.

The desired outcome of this discussion is to have a
comprehensive employee manual that allows current
employees and future part-time and full-time
employees understand the expectations of the Board
of Directors and the benefits provided by the District.

Please find a copy of the draft manual attached.

Discuss and approve the East Kern Health Care
District's Employee Manuall.

A4



COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
B

A Dot fon B
‘ﬁEALTH CARE DISTRICT

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

45



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
L INTRODUGTION oo onsnsmussmsmmssssssisssassasinsanss sobsosunessreivsssiiisnssmsannssossabionssibbvssidsifoossronsassoss 11
A. Welcome To Our DISEIICT! ......ooveeeeeeeeee et s e ee s seese e eeaen 11
B. Handbook Purpose -
H; EMPEOYMENT cccvucuscsumimimssmmsssssmsissismsmitasmnininssssnsissnsivisssnsois soassnosssrsasibaiisrs s it aviasivessores 3
A. Equal EMPIOYMENT .....c.ovcuieeeierirircriecisisteessessssssesses e s ssss s sasensesssaesesaesens 33
B. Pre-Employment PrOCESS.......cccveverreirieeeeeinesesssesessnssessesesesevessenesesesesenesnees 33
C; At-Will EMPlOYMENt SAtUS ....cceereieieeeeriiseaessses s eesss e seneseseeesesesenssessssnsssnes 4
D. Immigration Law Compliance ....
E. INtroduCtOry PETiOq .. ciciee ettt ceee st ss e ee e eeene 4
F, Employment ClassifiCations .........ccuccrereerrvcirirerrerensniseseissssssssssssesssssssssssesssenes 55
G. Persofinie]l REGOIAS c.cvnmmsmn i i bamiss o s ke s bossos] 66
H. Employee REfOreNCes . usiamsmnsssusiimsmusiissmsmssnssssnsensssassassissass N 76
L Job Vacancies/Postings/Transfers ............ucoveveveeeereeerereeeneneeeeeeeeeseseneseeesesesesseseens 77
L. Employment 0f REIGLIVES .........ceveveerererrireicreree et s s 77
K. Reductions In FOIce ......covvruverrunnnne
L. Outside Employment 8
M. Use of DiStrict MaterialS......c.ccevrueuererereererenessiceeseseesaeeesescaesesesesessesetessceesee e 88
1L CONDUCT AND BEHANTOR . cic.usziesmssnsnsssns sossossmssissssssssssssssssssis e sssssssessssssssssssnisin 99
A. General Condict GUIASHNES.....couvmmmssimivsiisivsmsomssmmsmiae sssduissns i iussisrsisiisn 99
B. Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation Reporting ...............c.coevvvemnnece. 114
C. ADT-BULIYINE covinsssssicissasisnsssaissmssinsssiioinisvissssssnssosssisesos 1545
D. Communication “Open Door” Procedure 1616
E. Performance EVAIUSHON. ..o sonssesmsrsssssssssssrmssorsans 1616
F. Correntive ACHON . cycsinsisinsmisisiaiiiassisisss iismsitorsnsiodnssasssatissossisssalessesdnsons 1747
IV COMPENSA TION c.cusiuussasusssssmssssinsssstsssassrsisiasd s iiavisssssihss sonssisasnssessy bussistives srsqhsshng 1818
A. Pay Periods 1818
B. Payroll Deductions.... 1818
C. TErMINAtIoN PaY o mvesmims i m s natins S s T s s eraaiass 1818
D. Salary Range; Cost Of Living AQJUSIMENTS ......eeveerueeeireieeeeieeieecereeseeeseesnseeneens 1818
E. MECTIE RAISES iusimsisvesssassvatessesssssossssssdessvissasb sasnsanssnsssenssass susnsssssass sonsvsrssssssnssionss 1848
65261.00001\30567852.1 _i_

46



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)
Page

F.

G.

H.

L

J. 21
Vi BENEETTS .covcuuciscsisssossessisesssnsstsensisaseisntisios ssseiissssss fiises asssnsisssscisssistiossassosnsiostistsusionimac 22;

A. Health/Disability Benefits ...

B. EmPloyee EAUCALION. ...cuuvvuivereeieececeeeeeeee et ee oo 22

C. & (o) 1T e VR 22;

D.

E.

F.

G.

H. Pregnancy/Childbirth (Pregnancy Disability Leave — PDL) .........cooovvvren........ 2727

L MIlHArY LEAVE .......couuervreernriiensiseneteceeeseosessesesessessesssssesssesseeessssesssseses e 30:

I Temporary Disability Leave.....

K. Continuation of Benefits

L. JUTY SEIVICE LEAVE ...cv vttt eeeeeee e oo e e e

M. Bereavement LEAVE ........vuuerrvuemsreereusesseneseeeeeseseeeeeseeeeeoeeess oo eeeeeeses oo

N. Personal Leave Without Pay

0. Catastrophic Leave Program

P. Abandonment 0f POSIHON ....vu.ve.eeereeeeeereeeeeee oo 33

Q. COBLMUILY c.v.ovuisiaisisusesssanssmmiosssssisssessississsisssisssessosasssssssssessonssssosssoosesnsocssss

A. Non-Smoking

B. Drugs and Alcohol
C.
D.
E.
F.
65261.0000130567852.1 i 0

47



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)
Page
G AULOMODIlE ACCIACIL....vvvveerveenee oo
H Automobile Accident-Disciplinary Procedtres..........emrvvnmvvveervvesoovessoo.
I BACKHOR .iisssssuisissininnanensemrsonssssissssisssssssitisssssiossisssos
I Injury and Illness Prevention Procedures (IIPP)
K Workers” COMPENSAtION ....u.....evveeeee e ee oo 41.
L. Workplace Violence and Security .......................
VII. WORKPLACE GUIDELINES

Hours of Work

District Equipment and PIOPEILY ...u.vuvuvurveneeenceeceeseereessessesesssresessessooos oo 50:
Solicitation, Distribution & Bulletin Boards
Uniforms and Protective CLOthing..............eveeoeeeceoreeeeeereee oo 51

(ITICVEIICES .. eossusinvasosvessss isssonine svessissiusnsasss osssessssssassssasonsssesmssantonstomsesbesensintinne 51

FPOMOZEIRA-""mommoomp

INSPECLIONS/SEAICHES..........couveceme ittt ee oo eeeeseeeressessssssssseessesesseesss s
PErsonal PIOPEILY .........ceecuerrmereeitersnetseee e sescasesseeeesesesseesssesssssess e essssnns
VI EMPLOYMENT SEPARATION........evvvveuuennsneseessssmsneeessesesseesssssssssseeeeeesssoeeeeeeo
A. ReSIgNAtion.........c.veeevmrveriinnnsenseeseesesecens
B. TEIMINALION. ... ettt es s e oo 54
C. Personal Possessions & Return of DiSIriCt PLOPEITY......ceuveeeeeeeeeeeeerereererrnnns 5454
B MISCELLANEOUS...cooocusssisvsssasvassssntissssensysissss sisss5585 56885 ersnmans ssrosessasissssssussssesssiassseiass 5555

65261.00001\30567852.1

48



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)
Page
A. Personal VEhiCle USAZE .......eveveveueeeeirereieeeeeeseeeessesesesesesssersessesessssss o sesesesens 5555
B. PATKING ... ..cecopecusisisivssrsssisasssmsssssnssnssrisbinsisstdisnssssassessonssssssonssssonsnssnssnssaeseiossasens 5555
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK ..o, 5656

65261.00001\30567852.1

-iv-

49



1. INTRODUCTION

A. WELCOME To OUR DISTRICT!

We’re very happy to welcome each employes to the i

BistrietEast Kern Health Care District (hereinafter “SSCSBEKHCD” or the “District”). Thanks
for joining us! The District would like our employees to feel that their association with the District
will be a mutually beneficial and pleasant one.

Our employees are joining an organization that has established an outstanding reputation for
quality services. Credit for this goes to every one of our employees. We hope that every employee
will find satisfaction and take pride in their work here.

B. HANDBOOK PURPOSE

The Handbook contains policies that govern employment with SSCSDEKHCD. The Handbook is
designed as a guide to ensure consistent, fair, and uniform treatment of all employees. The Board
of Directors has approved the provisions contained herein. SSCSDEKHCD reserves the right to
amend, supplement or rescind any provisions of this Handbook as it deems appropriate with or
without notice. Employees shall be advised of changes in policies, benefits and/or procedures.

This Employee Handbook is presented as a matter of information and has been prepared to inform
employees about the District’s policies and benefits provided to our valued employees, as well as
the conduct expected from them. While this handbook is not intended to be a book of all rules and
regulations applicable during your employment or a contract, it does include some important
guidelines about which employees should know. Except for the at-will employment provisions,
the Handbook can be amended at any time with or without notice. The policies and procedures
contained herein supersede any, and all previously issued policies, procedures, rules or instructions
related to human resource management at SSCSBEKHCD.

It should also be noted that any benefits described in this Handbook are only brief summaries.
Official plan documents should be consulted for further information regarding each benefit
program. In the case of an actual or apparent conflict between the benefit summaries set forth in
this Handbook and the terms of the official plan documents, the provisions of the official plan
documents, as interpreted at the sole and absolute discretion of the plan administrator, shall control.
The actual benefits provided, as well as eligibility requirements, are determined by the official
plan documents.

The General ManagerBoard of Directors, as Appointing Authority, shall have unilateral authority
to interpret and implement the provisions contained herein. The General ManagerBoard of
Directors may develop and issue procedures, consistent with the Handbook, to facilitate
implementation. A copy of this Handbook shall be made available to all employees.

All employees shall receive and agree to abide by the provisions of this Handbook and are
responsible for reviewing and understanding the contents herein. Employees shall sign and return
an “Acknowledgement of Receipt of Employee Handbook” form confirming receipt and
understanding of the Handbook.

No one other than authorized management may alter or modify any of the policies in this Employee
Handbook. No statement or promise by a supervisor or designeo is to be interpreted as a change in
policy, nor will it constitute an agreement with an employee.

65261.00001\30567852.1 1

50



Should any provision in this Employee Handbook be found to be unenforceable, invalid, or void,
such a finding shall only invalidate the portion of the Handbook that is found to be un-
enforeeableenforceable. and the remainder of the Handbook shall remain in full force and effect.
Nothing in this Handbook is intended to infringe upon employee rights under applicable federal
and state law.

We ask that employees read this Handbook carefully, become familiar with the District and our
policies, and refer to it whenever questions arise.

AMENDMENT PROCEDURE

This Handbook may be amended and changed from time to time as conditions require and as
deemed appropriate by the Board of Director of the District. Subject to the requirements of the
law, the District reserves the right to add to, delete from, or modify this plan either on an individual
or organization-wide basis with or without notice.

65261.00001\30567852.1 2

51



II. EMPLOYMENT

A. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

SSCSPEKHCD is an equal opportunity employer. It is SSCSDEKHCD’s policy to provide equal
employment opportunity for all applicants, employees, volunteers, interns, and persons performing
services pursuant to a contract, in all areas of employment including recruitment, hiring, training,
promotion, compensation, benefits, transfer, social/recreational programs and general treatment
during employment. SSGSBEKHCD does not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of race,
religion, religious creed (including religious dress and religious grooming), color, national origin,
ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital
status, sex (including pregnancy, perceived pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or related
medical conditions), gender, gender identity (including transgender identity), gender expression,
age (40 or over), sexual orientation, military and veteran status, or any other basis protected by
federal, state or local laws.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS

SSESDEKHCD shall make reasonable accommodations for the known physical or mental
disabilities of an otherwise qualified applicant/employee who is otherwise able to safely perform
all of the essential functions of his or her position unless undue hardship for the District would
result in accordance with applicable federal, state or local law. It is the responsibility of each
employee and supervisor along with the General- ManagerBoard of Directors to follow this policy.
Any applicant/employee who requires an accommodation in order to perform the essential
functions of the job should contact the General-ManagerBoard of Directors and request such
accommodation.

POLICY AGAINST HARASSMENT

As set forth more fully in the District’s Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation Reporting
Policy, the District strictly prohibits unlawful harassment on the basis of protected classes under
applicable law as mentioned above. (Harassment may consist of verbal, physical, or visual types.)
This policy applies to all phases of the employment relationship including hiring, promoting,
transfers, etc. Management considers this to be an extreme form of personal abuse and will take
appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination, against any employee exhibiting
such misconduct. Any applicant who encounters any form of harassment should immediately
report the conduct to the General Manage:Board of Directors (or the President or Vice President
of the Board of Directors where the General ManagerBoard of Directors is perceived as biased)
and is entitled to a prompt fair review of his or her case.

POLICY AGAINST RETALIATION

The District similarly strictly prohibits retaliation against any employee for making a good-faith
complaint of discrimination or harassment or for cooperating, assisting, testifying, or participating
in any of the complaint procedures described in more detail in the Harassment, Discrimination,
and Retaliation Reporting Policy below. Claims of retaliation are taken seriously and are subject
to the same complaint procedures.

B. PRE-EMPLOYMENT PROCESS
Prior to making an offer of employment, the District may conduct a job-related background check
after proper notice has been provided and authorization obtained in accordance with applicable

65261.00001\30567852.1 3

52



federal and state law. A comprehensive background check may consist of prior employment
verification, professional reference checks, education confirmation for certain positions and credit
checks. Third-party services may be hired to perform these checks. All final candidates for
employment must take and pass a drug and alcohol test along with his or her pre-employment
physical and pass a criminal background check after receiving a contingent job offer of
employment, but prior to starting work. Please note that despite its legal status in California,
marfjuana, including medical marijuana, remains an illegal drug under applicable federal law.

C.  AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT STATUS

Employees are not hired for any definite or specified period of time even though employee wages
are paid regularly. Employees are at-will with the District, shall have no property interest
whatsoever in their employment with the District, and their employment can be terminated at any
time, with or without cause and with or without prior notice by either the District or the employee
and without any evidentiary hearing or any other pre-termination due process. District policy
requires all employees to be hired at-will and this policy cannot be changed except by a written
contract signed by the employee and the General ManagerBoard of Directors, There have been no
implied or verbal agreements or promises to an employee—including. but not limited to.
procedures describing how Upper District administers employee _discipline. termination.
workplace investigations. employee assistance programs. maintenance of employee qualification
and other personnel management functions—that they will be discharged only under certain
circumstances or after certain procedures are followed. There is no implied employment contract
created by this Handbook or any other District document or written or verbal statement or policy.

It is understood and recognized by and between District management, the Board, and the Police
Officers of the District that police officers have rights under the Public Safety Officers Procedural
Bill of Rights Act pursuant to Government Code section 3300, et seq. It is further understood and
acknowledged that the Police Department also operates according to an additional policy and
procedure manual that is tailored specifically to Police operations.

D. IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE

In accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Immigration Act of
1990, SSCSDEKHCD will hire only those individuals who are authorized to work in the United
States. All individuals who are offered employment shall be required to complete and sign the
Immigration and Naturalization Service form 1-9. This form requires the employee to attest that
he/she is authorized to work in the United States and that documents submitted are genuine. Strict
compliance with this legal requirement is a condition of continued employment. Former employees
who are rehired must also complete the form if they have not completed an 1-9 with the District
within the past three (3) years, or if their previous 1-9 is no longer retained or valid.

E. INTRODUCTORY PERIOD

For a minimum of the first six (6) months of employment a new employee with the District are
subject to an Introductory Period. —this-igrefers i ;
andis-forone{1)year-This introductoty or probationary period is intended to give new and rehired
employees the opportunity to demonstrate his/her ability to achieve a satisfactory level of
adaptation and performance, and to determine whether the new position meets the mutual
expectations of the new hire and the District. SSCSBEKHCD uses this period to evaluate
employee capabilities, work habits, conduct and overall performance and at the end of the

65261.00001\30567852.1 4

53



introductory or probationary period will conduct an evaluation of the employee’s performance.
Upon successful completion of the introductory or probationary period, introductory or
probationary employees become Regular employees. The District reserves the right, however, to
extend the introductory or probationary period should it determine, in its own discretion, that
additional time is necessary.

At the end of the introductory or probationary period, the supervisor will discuss each employee’s
Job performance with them. During the course of the discussion, employees are encouraged to give
their comments and ideas as well.

At all times, whether during or after the introductory or probationary period, employment is at-
will. Please understand that completion of the introductory or probationary period does not
guarantee continued employment for any specified period of time, nor does it require that an
employee be discharged only for cause. Please also understand that completion of the introductory
or probationary period does not imply that employees now have a contract of employment with
the District, other than at-will. Completion of the introductory or probationary period does not
alter the at-will employment relationship.

A former employee who has been rehired after a separation from the District of more than one year
is considered an introductory or probationary employee during his/her first six (6) months
following rehire.

F. EMPLOYMENT CLASSIFICATIONS

The District has established the following Employee Classifications for compensation and benefit
purposes only. An employee’s supervisor will inform the employee of their classification, status,
and responsibilities at the time of hire, rehire, promotion or at any time a change in status occurs.
These classifications do not alter the employment at-will status.

1. Introductory Employee: A newly hired employee for the first six (6) months of his
or her employment. Newdshired police-officersshall be considered-introductory
employeesfor-ene—{1)year—A former employee who has been rehired after a
separation from the District of more than one (1) year will be considered an
introductory employee for the first six (6) months following rehire.

2. Regular Employee: An introductory employee shall become a regular full time or
part time employee only upon receipt of written confirmation from the supervisor
and appropriate management staff that the introductory period has been
satisfactorily completed.

3. Full Time Regular Employee: An employee who is regularly scheduled to work an
average of thirty (30) hours or more per week (the hours to be worked are
established and then reviewed annually) is considered a full time employee.

4. Part Time Regular Employee: An employee who is regularly scheduled to work
less than thirty (30) hours per week on average (the average hours are established
and reviewed annually) is considered a part time employee.—exeept-under—the
CALRPERS plan:

5. Temporary Employee: An employee who is scheduled to work on a tcmporary
basis, for a specific need of the District. Temporary employees will not receive any

65261.00001130567852.1 &)

o4



benefits unless specifically authorized in writing or required by applicable law.
Temporary employees are non-exempt and are compensated on an hourly basis.

Should a temporary employee be hired into a full time or part time job, the
employee will enter the introductory period pursuant to the guidelines of this
Handbook.

For the purpose of establishing accruals, etc., the anniversary date for a temporary
employee is the date of hire as an introductory employee.

6. Salaried Employees: Salaried employees, unlike employees in the other
classifications described in this chapter, must work all hours required to fulfill the
responsibilities of their positions. These employees receive the same benefits as

regular full time employees. Salaried-positions-in-the Districtinclude-the General
Muanager-and the Chief of Police,

8.7. _ Exempt: Employees whose positions meet specific tests established by the Fair
Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and applicable state law and who are exempt from
overtime pay requirements. The basic premise of exempt status is that the exempt
employee is to work the hours required to meet his/her work responsibilities. This
includes supervisors as well as designated office personnel.

9:8.  Non-Exempt: Employees whose positions do not meet FLSA and state exemption
tests and who are paid overtime wages for overtime hours worked in accordance
with applicable law.

G. PERSONNEL RECORDS

The District will maintain various employment files while an individual remains an employee of
the District. If any changes with respect to personal information, such as a change in home address
and telephone number or a change of name occur, employees are required to notify their supervisor
or the General-ManagerBoard of Directors so the appropriate updates can be made to the files. The
District will take reasonable precautions to protect employee files and employee personally
identifiable information in its records.

All Employment, Payroll, Personnel and Benefits Files are available for review by the employee
and General-ManagerBoard of Directors. Access to these files is limited. These files are kept in a
locked safe, at all times, and are accessed by the General ManagerBoard of Directors for
information, documentation and filing purposes only.

In the event that an employee wishes to review his/her file(s), he/she must submit a written request
to their supervisor or the GeneralManagerBoard of Directors to inspect his/her personnel records

or for a copy of such records._The District may redact or withhold personnel records in accordance
with Labor Code section 1198.5.

65261.00001\30567852.1 6

55



H.  EMPLOYEE REFERENCES

The District restricts release of information regarding current and former employees provided to
individuals and entities outside the District. This information is restricted to the employment dates
and positions held in the District for that person. This is done to protect the District and its
employees and in conformance with applicable law. Unless otherwise required by law, Tthis
information will only be released upon your signed consent form submitted by the requesting party.

L JOB VACANCIES/POSTINGS/TRANSFERS

Iit is the policy of the District to promote qualified individuals from within rather than to select
persons from outside the organization to fill vacancies in established positions or to fill newly
created positions,|

When job openings occur, the District will, at its discretion, post those openings in order to provide
District employees the opportunity to submit their applications. However, if the District determines
that it is in its best interest to hire from outside the organization, it retains the full discretion to do
s0.

Management reserves its right to place employees where, and in whatever jobs it deems necessary.
All job transfers, job changes, reassignments, promotions or lateral transfers are at the discretion
of the District, and employees are not guaranteed any specific job title, job duties, or rate of pay.

J. EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES

SSCSDEKHCD seeks for its staff the best possible candidates through appropriate search
procedures. There shall be no bar to appointment of relatives per se. However, the General
ManagerBoard of Directors reserves the right to exercise appropriate discretion in each case.
“Relative” means spouse, mother, father, stepmother, stepfather, or person who has acted in place
of one of these, father-in-law, mother-in-law, child, stepchild, brother, sister, brother-in-law, and
sister-in-law. SSCSBEKHCD will accept and consider applicants for employment from relatives
of a current employee, as defined above. Applicants must identify any individual who is a relative,
as defined above, already employed by SSCSBEKHCD at the time he/she applies for employment.
Employees’ relatives may not be eligible for employment where potential problems of supervision,
safety, security, morale, or potential conflicts of interest exist. In cases where a potential conflict
arises such as might occur through a romantic relationship or marriage of two employees, even if
there is not managerial relationship involved, the parties may be separated by reassignment or
terminated from employment. If the relationship is established afier employment, and the
determination is made to separate, then the individuals concerned must decide within thirty (30)
calendars days, which individual will be transferred or terminated. Again, the General
ManegerBoard of Directors reserves the right to exercise appropriate discretion in each individual
case.

No employee shall vote, make recommendations, or in any way participate in decisions about any
personnel matter which may directly affect the selection, appointment, promotion, termination,
other employment status, or interest of a relative.

When an individual is considered for appointment in a department in which an immediate family
member is already assigned, review of this fact shall be required at all appointing levels. The
objective of this review shall be to assure equity to all members of the department.

65261.00001\30567852.1 7

Commented [CN1]: Consider removing, unless this is a pre-

Lestablished policy.

]

56



Applicants and employees have an affirmative duty to immediately notify the District of a
relative’s application for employment with the District, or establishment of such relationship
during employment.

K. REDUCTIONS IN FORCE

Under some circumstances, the District may need to restructure or reduce its workforce. If it
becomes necessary to restructure the operations or reduce the number of employees, the District
may take into account operational requirements, the skill, productivity, ability and past
performance of those involved and, where those factors are equal, the employee’s length of service
will determine who shall be subjected to layoff.

L. OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

No District employee shall be permitted to accept employment in addition to or outside of District
Service if:

1. The additional or outside employment leads to a conflict or potential conflict of
interest for said employee; or

2. The nature of the additional or outside employment is such that it will reflect
unfavorably on the District; or

3. The duties to be performed in the additional or outside employment are in conflict
with the duties involved in District service,

M. USE OF DISTRICT MATERIALS

An employee who does have additional or outside employment shall not be permitted to use
District records, materials, equipment, facilities or other District resources in connection with said
employment. The employee may submit a request to the General ManagerBoard of Directors, who
may authorize the use of District materials as specified herein or provide the employee with
information acquired from such materials.

65261.00001\30567852.1 8

57



M. CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOR

A. GENERAL CONDUCT GUIDELINES

Orderly and efficient operation of the District requires that employees maintain proper standards
of conduct and observe certain procedures. These guidelines are provided for informational
purposes only and are not intended to be all-inclusive. Nothing herein is intended or shall be
construed to change or replace, in any manner, the “at-will” employment relationship between the
District and the employee. Employees have no right of progressive discipline. Employees may be
disciplined, up to and including immediate termination, should the employee engage in any of the
inappropriate conduct described below. Nothing herein is intended to infringe upon any employee

legal rights permitting employees to discuss their terms and conditions of employment-as-pretected

under-applicable-federal-and-state Jaw. The District views the following as a non-exhaustive list of

inappropriate behavior:

1. Negligence, carelessness or inconsiderate treatment of District customers and/ or
their matters/ files.

2 Theft, misappropriation or unauthorized possession or use of propetty, documents,
records or funds belonging to the District, or any client or employee; removal of
same from District premises without authorization.

3. Divulging confidential information, of any kind, to any unauthorized person(s) or
without an official need to know.

4. Obtaining unauthorized confidential information pertaining to customers or
employees.

3. Changing or falsifying client records, District records, personnel or pay records,
including time sheets without authorization.

6. Willfully or carelessly damaging, defacing or mishandling property of a client, the
District or other employees.

7. Inefficiency, incompetence, inattention to or dereliction of duty, or failure to
perform assigned duties in a satisfactory manner.

8. Causing spoilage or rework through inattention, carelessness or the disregarding of
work processes ot instructions.

9. Taking or giving bribes of any nature, or anything of value, as an inducement to
obtain special treatment, to provide confidential information or to obtain a position.
Acceptance of any gratuities or gifts must be reported to a supervisor or managet.

10.  Entering District premises without authorization.

11.  Engaging in any type of workplace violence, including making threats.

12.  Violation of any District rule, policy or procedure.

13.  Willfully or carelessly violating security, safety, or fire prevention equipment or
regulations.

14, Unauthorized use of District vehicles and equipment for personal use.

65261.00001\30567852.1 9

58



15.

Ilegal conduct, creating a disturbance on District premises or creating discord with
customers.

16.  Use of abusive language.

17. Any rude, discourteous or un-businesslike behavior, on or off District premises,
which is not protected by Section 7 of the National Labor Relations Act (NLRA)
or other applicable state law and which adversely affects the District services,
operations, property, reputation or goodwill in the community or interferes with
work.

18.  Insubordination or refusing to follow instructions from a supervisor; refusal or
unwillingness to accept a job assignment or to perform job requirements.

19.  Failure to observe scheduled work hours; failure to notify a supervisor as soon as
practicable in the event of an absence due to illness; failure to report to work when
scheduled; unauthorized or excessive use of sick leave or any other leave of
absence.

20.  Leaving the office during scheduled work hours without permission; unauthorized
absence from assigned work area during regularly scheduled work hours.

21.  Sleeping or loitering during regular working hours.

22.  Recording time for another employee or having time recorded to or by another
employee.

23.  Failure to accurately record all time worked, as well as meal period time off or
falsifying time records.

24.  Useor possession of intoxicating beverages or illegal use or possession of narcotics,
marijuana or drugs (under state, federal or local laws), on District premises during
working hours or reporting to work under the influence of intoxicants or drugs so
as to interfere with job performance, or having any detectable amounts of drugs in
an employee’s system.

25.  Distribution of, or sale of alcohol or any illegal substance.

26.  Unauthorized possession of a weapon on District premises.

27.  Illegal gambling on District premises.

28.  Falsification of one’s employment application, medical or employment history.

29.  Falsifying insurance records or documentation.

30.  Failure to report an accident or injury to your supervisor, or to be treated by a
District physician.

31.  Unauthorized operation or use of vehicles, machines, supplies, tools, or equipment.

32.  Abuse, misuse, careless or intentional damage of any District property, tools,
equipment, or the property of fellow employees, customers or guests.

33. Improper use and disposal of hazardous waste.

34.  Abuse of established break periods.

65261.00001\30567852.1 10

59



35, Unauthorized entertainment and visitation of family or friends on District premises.

36.  Engaging in any unsafe working practice that may endanger you, your co-workers,
customers or guests.

37. Allowing unauthorized persons in a work area or on work equipment or in vehicles.
38.  Violation of local, state or federal laws,

39.  Failure to notify District supervisor upon taking any prescribed medication that may
impair their ability to perform their respective job duties.

B. HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION, AND RETALIATION REPORTING

The District strictly prohibits all forms of unlawful harassment, discrimination, and retaliation
(“Unlawful Practices”) in the workplace in order to maintain a productive and safe working
environment. The purpose of this policy is to provide all employees with a clear understating of
the District’s procedure for filing and investigating complaints concerning Unlawful Practices.

Policy Statement
The District has adopted a zero-toler:
and retaliation. The-de iseipl
el Egnsl '
It is the policy of the District to provide each employee and applicant with an employment
opportunity and work atmosphere that is free from discrimination. Accordingly, the District does
not discriminate nor does it tolerate discrimination on the basis of race, religion, religious creed
(including religious dress and religious grooming), color, national origin, ancestry, physical
disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex (including
pregnancy, perceived pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or related medical conditions), gender,
gender identity (including transgender identity), gender expression, age (40 or over), sexual
orientation, military and veteran status, or any other basis protected by federal, state or local laws
(“Protected Categories™).

ance pol

icy in regards to unlawful harassment, discrimination,

olatiopn-o h nA 3 h ad

The District is also commitied to providing a work environment that is free from unlawful
harassment. In furtherance of this commitment, the District strictly prohibits all forms of unlawful
harassment, including but not limited to harassment on the basis of any of the Protected Categories.
The workplace is not a place for engaging in, or for having to fend off harassing remarks,
depictions, or representations. Every employee has a right to a wotk in an environment free from
harassment, regardless of the intent of the parties involved.

Similarly, the District strictly prohibits retaliation against any employee for making a good faith
complaint of discrimination or harassment or for cooperating, assisting, testifying, or participating
in any of the internal or external complaint procedures described below. Claims of retaliation are
taken seriously and are subject to the same complaint procedures.

Persons Covered

This policy is applicable to all applicants and employees of the District, including supervisors and
managers. The District prohibits managers, supervisors, and employees from engaging in any

65261.00001130567852.1 11

60



Unlawful Practice against co-workers, customers, vendors, suppliers, independent contractors and
others doing business with the District. In addition, the District prohibits customers, vendors,
suppliers, independent contractors and other third parties doing business with the District from
harassing District employees.

b ardbrddsechmrrbnatstonbad dasriatetobro e
5 v 1

Prohibited Conduct

Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment (including pregnancy, perceived pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or
related medical conditions, gender identity, gender expression, sex stereotype, sexual orientation,
gender and transgender harassment) is defined as unwanted sexual advances, or visual, written,
verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature that creates an intimidating, offensive, or hostile
working environment or that interferes with an employee’s work performance. Such conduct
constitutes prohibited, unlawful harassment when:

1) Submission to the conduct is made either an explicit or implicit condition of
employment or promotion;

2) Submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for an employment
decision; andor

3) The unwelcomed comments or conduct based on sex unreasonably interfere with an
employee’s work performance or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work
environment

Examples of sexual harassment include, but are not limited to, unwelcome sexual propositions,
hugging, kissing, or other offensive physical contact of a sexual nature; lewd gestures, remarks or
innuendoes; unwelcome discussions of sexual practices or anatomy, and sexually offensive
posters, photographs, drawings, cattoons, jokes, stories, nicknames, or comments about
appearance; joking about sex; degrading words or terms of a sexual nature; prolonged staring or
leering; and continued invitations to social events outside the workplace after being told such are
unwelcome.

Other Types of Harassment

Harassment can take many forms beyond sexual harassment when based on a Protected Category.
All other forms of harassment are also strictly prohibited. Such harassment includes, but is not
limited to, the following examples:

e Verbal conduct such as making or using derogatory comments, epithets, slurs, jokes,
or verbal abuse;

e Visual conduct such as prolong staring or leering at a person, gestures, and displaying
of objects, posters, photographs, cartoons, or drawings;

o Written conduct such as suggestive or obscene letters, emails, drawings, notes or
invitations; and

e Physical conduct such as assault, unwanted touching, or blocking normal movement,
or violating someone’s “personal space.”

65261.00001\30567852.1 12

61



Please note that within the workplace, our right to free speech is necessarily subject to our legal
duty to create and foster a workplace free of harassment or discrimination.

Discrimination & Retaliation

Any adverse employment action taken on the basis of a Protected Category constitutes unlawful
discrimination and is strictly prohibited. “Adverse employment action” is defined as an action that
results in a substantial adverse change in the terms and conditions of an employee’s employment
including, but not limited to, decisions relating to hiring, firing, demoting, failing to promote,
laterally transferring, and giving unwarranted and unfounded poor performance evaluations.

“Retaliation” is a form of an adverse employment action that is taken against an individual for
opposing any legally prohibited employment practice or engaging in any legally protected
employment activity. The District strictly prohibits all forms of retaliation.

Reporting Procedures
Internal Reporting

The District’s complaint procedure provides for an immediatetimely, thorough, objective and
confidential investigation of any claim alleging an Unlawful Practice, appropriate disciplinary
action against one found to have engaged in an Unlawful Practice, and appropriate remedies for
any victim of an Unlawful Practice._ Notwithstanding the process detailed below. the Board of
Directors may delegate any responsibility related to the handling of a complaint to another District

management employee and/or outside. neutral third-party.

Any employee who believes that he or she has been the victim of an Unlawful Practice or any
employee who observes or otherwise becomes aware of such conduct has a duty to immediately
notify the General-ManagesBoard of Directors, who is responsible for investigating such
complaints. An employee is not required to report the complaint to the General-ManagesBoard of
Directors if the General- ManagesBoard of Directors is the individual who is engaging in the
unlawful conduct, but may in the alternative report the conduct to the President of the Board of
Directors.

Supervisors and other members of management who receive complaints or who observe unlawful
conduct must-should immediately-inform the General-ManagerBoard of Directors or the President
of the Board of Directors other appropriate personnel within a reasonable timeframe so that an
investigation can be initiated.

All complaints should be as detailed as possible, including the names of individuals involved, the
names of any witnesses, direct quotations when language is relevant, and any documentary
evidence (notes, pictures, cartoons, etcetera).

The District, including the Board of Directors. will maintain confidentiality to the extent possible.
Any supervisor who is informed of a complaint alleging an Unlawful Practice by an employes, or
any other individual, must report said complaint to the General-ManagerBoard of Directors

65261.00001\30567852.1 13

62



immediately and must otherwise keep the matter confidential. The-General-ManagerBoard of
Directors-must-also-keepthe-matie fidential-and-not-disele ersen-whe-i

e-the-matte o-ah

the—complaint—Any supeisor who fails to comly with this paragraph
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

ill be subject to
Investigation

Upon the filing of a complaint with the District, the complainant will be provided with a copy of
this policy. All incidents of prohibited discrimination, harassment and/or retaliation that are
reported will be subject to an impartial, fair, timely and thorough investigation. The investigation
will reach reasonable conclusions based on the evidence collected. The District will document the
timely, thorough, and objective investigation of the allegations to ensure reasonable progress is
being made in the investigation. The District will inform the complainant of the progress of the
investigation upon request.

The General ManagerBoard of Directors is the impartial person designated by the District to
investigate complaints of Unlawful Practices. The General-ManagerBoard of Directors may,
however, delegate the investigation at his/her discretion to a qualified, impartial investigator. In
the event the Unlawful Practice complaint is against the General ManagerBoard of Directors, a
qualified, impartial investigator shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.

Cooperation

All employees are required to cooperate truthfully and in good faith with the District in any
investigation under this policy. Knowingly making a false charge of an Unlawful Practice or a
false statement in connection with an investigation, or deliberately interfering with any such
investigation is also a violation of this policy and will subject an employee to discipline, up to and
including discharge.

Corrective Action

At the conclusion of the timely investigation, if it is determined that an Unlawful Practice has
occurred, the District will take immediate timely and effective remedial action commensurate with
the circumstances. Corrective action may include, for example: training, referral to counseling, or
disciplinary action, including but not limited to, verbal or written warning, suspension, transfer,
demotion, and termination of employment, depending on the circumstances. With regard to acts
of harassment by customers or vendors, corrective action will be taken after consultation with the

General- ManagerBoard of Directors.

The complainant will be notified when the investigation has been completed and will be informed
of the general outcome of the investigation, i.e., whether the complaint has been substantiated or
unsubstantiated. However, the complainant is not entitled to know the corrective action, if any,
imposed on the accused wrongdoer as that information is protected by the accused wrongdoer’s
right to privacy. Appropriate action will be taken to ensure the employee who has been found to
have been discriminated against, harassed and/or retaliated against will not be discriminated
against, harassed and/or retaliated against in the future, including but not limited to redistribution
of this policy, training, transfer, etcetera.

Retaliation

65261.00001\30567852.1 14

63



No employee will be subject to any form of retaliation for reporting any violation or participating
in any investigation under this policy truthfully and in good faith. Employees who believe they
have been retaliated against in violation of this policy should utilize the same complaint procedure
described above.

Anti-Harassment Training

All employees hired as or promoted to a supervisory or management position must undergo at least
two (2) hours of interactive sexual harassment training within the first six (6) months of assuming
a new supervisory or management position. Additionally, all supervisors and managers must
complete at least two (2) hours of interactive sexual harassment training at least once every two
(2) years thereafter. An employee who fails to comply with this section may be subject to
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

External Complaint Procedure

The U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and the California Department of Fair
Employment and Housing are authorized to accept and investigate complaints of employment
discrimination, harassment and retaliation and to mediate settlements. State and federal laws also
prohibit retaliation against employces because they have filed a complaint with the EEOC or
DFEH, participated in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing with the District, or opposed any
practice made unlawful by Title VII or the FEHA.

For more information, contact the General-ManagerBoard of Directors. Contact information for
the DFEH can be obtained at www.dfeh.ca.gov. Contact information for the EEOC can be obtained
at Www.ee0c.gov.

Questions regarding this policy should be directed to the General-ManagerBoard of Directors.

C. ANTI-BULLYING

In addition to the District’s anti-harassment, -discrimination and -retaliation policy, the District
believes it necessary to delineate a policy regarding abusive conduct, as such bullying has
numerous negative effects on both individual employees and the District as a whole. Abusive
conduct in the workplace may cause the loss of trained and talented employees, reduce productivity
and morale and create legal risks. The District believes all employees should be able to work in an
environment free of harassment and bullying.

Abusive conduct is defined as conduct of an employer or employee in the workplace, with malice,
that a reasonable person would find hostile, offensive, and unrelated to an employer’s legitimate
business interests. Some examples of abusive conduct in the workplace include repeated acts such
as:

1. Verbal abuse, such as the use of derogatory remarks, insults and epithets, verbal or
physical conduct that a reasonable person would find threatening, intimidating or
humiliating, or gratuitous sabotage

Unwarranted ot invalid criticism
Blame without factual justification
4. Being treated differently than the rest of the employees in a work group

65261.00001130567852.1 15

64



5 Being the target of cussing or disrespectful language

6 Exclusion or social isolation

7. Being the target of shouting or other behavior intended to humiliate the employee
8 Excessive “prank” jokes or teasing of an employee

9. Consistently undermining the work or position of an employee

The District considers abusive conduct unacceptable and will not tolerate it under any
circumstances. Supervisors are to assume the responsibility to ensure employees are not subject to
this type of conduct. Any employee who bullies a co-worker will be subject to disciplinary action,
up to and including termination of employment.

The District encourages all employees to report this in accordance with the same complaint
procedure as outlined above in the District’s “Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation
Reporting” policy. All safeguards and guidelines applicable to complaints thereunder are equally
as applicable to complaints of workplace bullying. The GeneralManagerBoard of Directors retains
discretion to determine whether a complaint warrants the initiation of a formal investigation.

D. COMMUNICATION “OPEN DOOR” PROCEDURE

The District as outlined above has a specific procedure detailed in the separate “Harassment,
Discrimination, and Retaliation Reporting” policy that should be used to report concerns or
complaints related to possible harassment, discrimination, retaliation, or abusive conduct in the
workplace.

However, in addition to the formal complaint mechanism, the District subscribes to the open door
policy at all times and encourages all employees to come forward, when necessary, to share how
we might be able to help with a particular situation. lWe have initiated certain steps to help you
communicate your concerns and thoughts in a safe and confidential manner. Employees may bring
a particular concern, suggestion, or complaint to the General-ManagerBoard of Directors or their
supervisor. In most cases, he or she will be able to give you an answer within three (3) working
days. If for some reason the issue cannot be resolved in this time period, your supervisor will
follow up promptly with an updated status to your concerns. If you do not feel comfortable talking
to your direct supervisor, we suggest you speak with the General ManagesBoard of Directors,

Although the District cannot guarantee that in each instance the employee will be satisfied with
the result, the District will attempt in each instance to explain the result to the employee if the
employee is not satisfied. The District will also attempt to keep all such expressions of concern,
the results of any investigation, and the terms of the resolution confidential. In the course of
investigating and resolving the matter, however, some dissemination of information to others may
be necessary or appropriate.

E. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Employees will generally receive an initial appraisal of their job performance and upon the
completion of their six (6) month introductory period, and anmuatty—periodically thereafter,
typically once a year. This evaluation may be either written or oral.

If in this appraisal employees are given an evaluation sheet or other written document, employees
will be required to sign it. An employee’s signature does not necessarily indicate that the employee
agrees with all the comments, but merely that the employee has been given the opportunity to

65261.00001\30567852.1 16

—

Commented [CN2]: Consider ing, given admini

burden.

65



examine the evaluation and fully discuss the contents of it with his/her supervisor. The completed
and signed evaluation form, if any, will be placed in the employee’s personnel file and the
employee will receive a copy of the performance evaluation. Any employee responses shall be
maintained with the evaluation and made part of the employee’s file. In addition to the formal
annual review, informal counseling sessions may be conducted from time to time. Positive
performance evaluations do not guarantee increases in salary or promotions.

F. CORRECTIVE ACTION

A high level of job performance is expected of each and every employee. In the event that an
employee’s job performance does not meet the standards established for the position, employees
should seck assistance from their supervisor to attain an acceptable level of performance. If
employees fail to respond to or fail to make positive efforts toward improvement, corrective action
may ensue, including termination of employment.

—~Corrective action is one tool the District may select to
enhance job performance. The District is not required to take any disciplinary action before making
an adverse employment decision, including discharge. Corrective action may be in the form of a
written or oral reprimand, notice(s) of inadequate job performance, suspension, discharge or in
any combination of the above, if the District so elects. The District reserves its prerogative to
discipline, and the manner and form of discipline, at its sole discretion.

65261.00001\30567852.1 17

66



IV. COMPENSATION

A. PAY PERIODS

Pay periods shall be every two (2) weeks (Tuesday). Pay vouchers shall be inclusive of pay for all ___{ Formatted: Highlight

hours in the two (2) preceding workweeks. In the event a payday falls on a holiday, paychecks will
be distributed on the preceding workday. ??

B. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS
Appropriate deductions are taken from the pay of all employees as required by state and/or federal
law.

C. TERMINATION PAY

Resigning, retiring, and dismissed employees shall be paid on the regular payday for the last pay
period worked. Upon separation from employment for any reason, employees are expected to
promptly return all District property in their possession.

D. SALARY RANGE; COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENTS __—{ Formatted: Highiight

Once each year, the Gereral ManagerBoard of Directors considers and recommends cost of living
adjustment increases. The Board of Directors will approve such recommendations based on the
General ManagerBoard of Directors’s recommendations, budget constraints and other potential
factors.??

E. MERIT RAISES

Employees, with the exception of the General ManagetBoard of Directors land Police Chief, with _—{ Commented [CN3]: I this a position?

a minimum of six (6) full calendar months of employment with the District shall be eligible for
merit increase consideration.

The General ManagerBoard of Directors and the tPolice Chiefwould be subject to merit raises that __—{ Commented [CN4]:

the Board directly approves. Merit raises are not automatic and are subject to the following criteria:
1. The merit raise increase stays within the established salary range.

2, The employee has received positive evaluations.

presenting the proposed increase to the employee. The General-ManagerBoard of
Directors reserves the right to not approve merit increases based on budget
restrictions and/or poor work performance. The GeneralManagerBoard of
Directors will set the start date for a merit increase.

5.3. The General-ManagerBoard of Directors must approve merit increases prior to

G.F.  OVERTIME

65261.00001\30567852.1 18

67



Occasionally, you may be asked to, and/or be required to, work overtime. The District complies
with all applicable federal laws with regard to payment of overtime work.

At times, employees are required to work overtime when assigned. Overtime is not to be worked
without prior approval and must be authorized by a supervisor in advance. Working unauthorized
overtime or the refusal or unavailability to work overtime is not acceptable work performance, and
is subject to discipline, up to and including termination. Nonetheless, the District will pay
employees for all hours actually worked in a given workweek in accordance with applicable law.

Overtime for the District is defined more broadly than under the FLSA as District policy provides
overtime in all of the following situations:

1. Time worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a workweek.
2. Time worked on a designated holiday.

3. Time spent on an actual emergency response computed at the employee’s overtime
rate, when an off-duty employee is required to return to duty.

Whether an employee is eligible to receive overtime pay under these definitions depends on his or
her classification as explained below.

For the purposes of determining eligibility to receive overtime, personnel are identified by the __—{ Formatted: Highiight

following two (2) categories.
i Non-salaried (Non-Exempt) Employees:

a. Work beyond regular workday: Employees may be requested to work in
excess of the regular workday by the General-ManagerBoard of Directors
or their supervisor. Work beyond the regular workday shall be permitted
only on advance approval of the General- ManagesBoard of Directors or the
employee’s supervisor. However, the District does not compensate hours
worked in excess of the regular workday at an overtime rate unless those
hours are beyond forty (40) in the workweek.

b. Termination of employment: In accordance with the FLSA, if an employee
has any unused compensatory time off accrued at termination, the employee
shall be paid for such unused compensatory time off at the employee’s final
rate of pay or the average rate received by the employee during the last three
(3) years of his or her employment, whichever is higher.

e Time off during the workweek: If a non-salaried, non-exempt employee
needs to take time off and desires to make up the time rather than to be
docked or have the time charged to the appropriate leave, said employee
may make up the time, with the approval of the employee’s supervisor,
provided said time is made up within the same workweek in which the time
was taken. The General-ManagerBoard of Directors or the employee’s
supervisor has the authority, however, to require the employee to take time
off within the established workweek on an hour for hour basis. In other

words, make up time within the workweek is hour for hour and not deemed
overtime.

2. Salaried (Exempt) Employees:

65261.00001\30567852.1 19

68



a. Salaried, exempt employees are not eligible for additional compensation or
compensatory time off for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in the
designated workweek and are required to work the hours necessary to fulfill
the responsibilities of the position.

b. Such employees who are absent from work for one (1) or more full days
due to illness or personal reasons and without sufficient leave accruals to
cover the absence, will have their pay reduced accordingly in that pay
period. In cases where such absence is for less than one (1) full day where
sufficient leave is not available, he/she is not subject to such reduction in
pay, but may be subject to discipline, up to and including termination,
should such absences violate District policy and/or affect quantity or quality
of work product.

H.G. Cowmp TIME POLICY

___—{ Formatted: Highlight

Only non-exempt employees are eligible to elect to receive compensatory time off. At the
employee’s option, compensatory time off, or “comp time” hours can be earned up to a total of
forty (40) hours by any employee eligible to receive overtime pay. When the maximum number of
comp time hours has been reached, the hours worked in excess of the normal work day or week as
defined in the Overtime Pay Work Schedule assigned to the employee shall be paid as overtime
wages. No further comp time shall be accrued until the comp time balance is reduced below the
maximum of 40 hours.

In order to receive comp time in lieu of overtime pay, the employee must enter into a written
agreement with the District stating generally that the employee would like the option to receive
comp time prior to completion of the work. Subsequently once the employee does work overtime
in a pay period, the employee must make a notation on his/her timesheet to indicate that he/she
would like to receive comp time in lieu of overtime pay. To request the use of comp time for time
off would require completion of a time off request form. The approval will depend in part on the
work requirements of the District and the vacation schedules of other employees. If your
employment with the District ends, any accrued comp time shall be paid pursuant to your current
rate of pay or the average rate received by the employee during the last three (3) years of his or
her employment, whichever is higher.

All non-exempt employees who work more than forty (40) in one workweek may receive comp
time, in lieu of overtime pay, at the rate of 1.5 times the employee’s hours for:

Time worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a workweek.
Z Time worked on a designated holiday.

Time spent on an actual emergency response computed at the employee’s overtime
rate, when an off-duty employee is required to return to duty. all hours worked in
excess of forty (40) hours in any one workweek.

LH. HoLipAY

Full time and part time non-exempt employees working at the discretion of the General
ManagerBoard of Dircctors on a District recognized holiday as detailed in the “Holidays™ section
below are paid at time and one half (1.5) for actual hours worked, plus the holiday pay.

65261.00001\30567852.1 20

69



Temporary workers are not eligible for holiday pay and should they work a District recognized
holiday, that day is treated as any regular workday for payment purposes.

1:l.  WORK ASSIGNMENTS

In addition to specific duties that may accompany an individual’s job responsibilities, each job
also includes “and other assigned duties.” Employees may be required to perform duties or tasks
of a fellow employee who is absent or for a position that is temporarily vacant or the job duties of
their position may be altered. Employees will be compensated at their regular rate of pay while
performing other assigned duties.

65261.00001\30567852.1 21

70



V. BENEFITS

B.A. EMPLOYEE EDUCATION

All regular full-time employees are encouraged to further their education, thereby improving job
skills and knowledge. To foster this constructive approach, employees are encouraged to take
advantage of worthwhile courses at schools, colleges, or through correspondence. The first step
will be receiving prior written approval for the educational class desired. For qualified courses, the
District shall reimburse employees for their costs of registration, books and laboratory and other
fees for materials. The District may cover the costs of travel, parking or meals -based upon prior
approval.

To qualify, a course must:

L. Be part of a curriculum which is approved by the Gereral-ManagesBoard of
Directors (i.e. undergraduate or graduate degree program at a college or university,
certificate program or other technical program at a technical college).

OR

2. Be related to the employee’s work and benefit the District through improved or
more effective job performance which is approved by the General ManagerBoard
of Directors.

Unless otherwise approved, all class and study time must be outside the employee’s normal
working hours and the course must be completed in a satisfactory manner. A passing grade must
be achieved for reimbursement provisions of this policy to apply. Upon completion of the course,
the employee shall submit a request for reimbursement along with receipts and verification of
successful completion to obtain the requested reimbursement. Evidence of successful completion
of the course with a minimum grade of “C” or the equivalent thereof and receipts for the allowable
expenses must be submitted prior to reimbursement.

E:B. _HOLIDAYS
Regular full-time and Part-Time employees are entitled to the following paid holidays observed
by the District:

65261.00001\30567852.1 22

71



Holiday Date(s) ~_{ Formatted: Highlight ]
New Year’s Eve -1/2 Day December 31 /( Formatted: Highlight ]
New Year’s Day January 1 __—{ Formatted: Highlight ]
President’s Day Third Monday in February A Formatted: Highiight )
Memorial Day Last Monday in May ~{ Formatted: Highlight ]
Independence Day July 4th /ﬁormatted: Highlight )
Labor Day First Monday in September /ﬁormathed: Highlight ]
Thanksgiving Pt Tj‘f{l}l}l}lji&ggir;ﬁ]gz:mber o /(Formatted: Highlight ]
Christmas Bgenber 24ih(1/2 Day) ___—{ Formatted: Highiight )
December 25 (Full Day)

Other days or parts of days may be designated as holidays with pay. No holiday pay will be paid /Ermatted: Highlight

to an employee who is on an unpaid status, or on any leave of absence. If a Holiday falls on a
Saturday, or Sunday, the Holiday will be observed on the previous Friday, or the following
Monday, respectively. Full time and part time non-exempt employees working at the discretion of
the General ManagerBoard of Directors on a District recognized holiday are paid at time and one
half (1.5) for actual hours worked, plus the holiday pay. ;

Part-Time regular employees will accrue Holiday pay on a pro rata basis. For example, an
employee who works forty (40) hours out of Eighty (80) hour two-week period shall accrue four
(4) hours of Holiday pay.

65261.00001\30567852.1 23

12



G.C. VACATION

The SSESDEKHCD provides vacation benefits to eligible employees to enable them to take paid
time off for rest and recreation. The District believes that this time is valuable for employees in
order to enhance their productivity and make their work experience with the District personally
satisfying. The District also provides long-service employees with additional vacation benefits as
years of service are accumulated. The District further encourages all employees to use accrued
amount not later than the calendar year immediately following the year in which the vacation was
earned — whenever possible.

This policy shall apply to regular and introductory period full time and pat time employees. The
policy does not apply to temporary employees, as temporary employees are not eligible to accrue
vacation time.

All full-time regular employees accrue paid vacations according to the following schedule:

___—{ Formatteq: Highlight

Employment Years Vacation Days
First 5 Years 10 days/80 Hrs. No&e talgen 1111 i 5 | Formatted: Highiight
TUITULS Ut Ulll})lU_)’lut«llL
Years 6 through 9 15 days/120 Hrs. Begm; aftar S ___—{ Formatted: Highlight
daivelsdaly
10 and beyond 20 days/160 Hrs. Bcgm; i { Formatted: Highlight
anniversary

{ Formatted: Highlight

Vacation days begin to accrue upon hire. Vacation days are accrued on a bi-weekly, per pay period
basis over the course of the year based on the amount of vacation days you are eligible to receive.
Employees are eligible to begin using vacation time after 6 months of employment. Vacation time
may catry over into the next year, subject to the accrual restrictions described below.

Part Time and Temporary Employees

Vacation accrual for Part Time District employees shall be calculated based upon the length of
employment and accrue on a pro-rata basis. Part time employees shall accrue the appropriate
percentage of their hours worked relative to the total full time hours available for that month. For
example: an employee in his/her third year of employment who works 80 hours out of a 160 hour
work month will accrue 3.333 vacation hours for the month, Temporary employees do not accrue
vacation.

Upon termination of employment for any reason, the District shall compensate the employee for
his/her accumulated unused vacation time at his/her straight time rate of pay at the time of
termination.

The District will not require an employee to take vacation time in lieu of sick leave or leave of
absence during periods of illness. However, the employee may elect to take vacation time in case
of extended illness where sick leave has been fully used.

The District realizes that at times emergencies arise and employees may need additional funds
above their ordinary pay. While the District desires employees to use accumulated vacation for
recreation, rest and relaxation, at the discretion of the General-ManagerBoard of Directors,
employees may request such pay from accumulated vacation with the reason for the request in

2

65261.00001\30567852.1

73



writing. The General ManagesBoard of Directors may approve the request. Denials of such request
can be appealed with the Board of Directors.

Vacations need to be scheduled with the General ManagesBoard of Directors with sufficient notice
so as to not disrupt the workplace.

Maximum Accrual

For non-exempt employees, vacation accruals may not exceed 300 hours. When an employee’s
vacation accrual reaches 300 hours, vacation will no longer accrue until such time the balance
drops below 300 hours.

For exempt employees (salaried), vacation accruals may not exceed 600 hours. When an
employee’s vacation reaches 600 hours, vacation will no longer accrue until such time the balance
drops below 600 hours.

L. Vacation pay shall be paid to the employee in the regular course of the District’s
business during the period of his/her time off for vacation at the employee’s current
rate of pay.

2. Vacation time will be reviewed annually, on/around the 8th of December, and
employees, who would otherwise end the year with more than four (4) weeks of
vacation, may be paid down to four (4) weeks, at their current rate of pay, on the
final paycheck of the year at the District’s discretion. Employees may choose to
have vacation pay paid out to a qualified 457 Retirement Plan in the event that the
District determines that it will pay down vacation time to four (4) weeks.

3 Vacation pay in emergencies may be requested in writing. Such pay from
accumulated vacation time with the reason for the request. Approval is at the
General-ManagerBoard of Directors’s discretion. Denials of such request may be
appealed to the Board of Directors.

4. All Vacations must be requested and approved in writing.

If a holiday falls within a vacation period, that day shall be considered as a paid
holiday, and not vacation time.

6. The General-ManagerBoard of Directors may periodically review accumulated
vacation and, at his/her discretion, enforce vacation time to be taken.

An employee is not permitted to borrow on future accrual of vacation benefits. If an employee has
used any vacation days before they have been accrued and then leaves the employment of the
District, the overdrawn amount must be repaid to the District.

H:D. PAID SICK LEAVE

A full-time regular employee begins to accrue paid sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours of paid
sick leave per month beginning on the first day of employment with the District to be paid at
employee’s current rate of pay. All other employees who are not full-time will accrue paid sick
leave on a pro-rata basis.

An employee is not eligible to begin using paid sick leave until his or her 90th day of employment
with the District.

65261.00001\30567852.1 25

14



An employee can only accrue paid sick leave up to a cap of 800 hours of sick leave. Sick leave
does not accrue once the cap is reached, but accrual begins again when accrued sick leave drops
below this cap. Any unused accrued paid sick leave carries over year to year while continuously
employed.

An employee may use accrued paid sick leave for one of the following reasons:

o The diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition of, or preventative care
for, an employee or an employee’s family member; or

e To attend legal proceedings, or to obtain medical treatment, counseling or other victims’
services for domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

A “family member” for these purposes is defined as a child (a biological, adopted, or foster child,
stepchild, legal ward, or a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis), a parent (a
biological, adoptive or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an employee or the
employee’s spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis when the
employee was a minor child), a spouse or registered domestic partner, a grandparent, grandchild
and sibling. Additionally, paid sick leave may be used for an employee who is a victim of domestic
violence, sexual assault or stalking.

An employee shall provide reasonable advance notification of his or her need to use accrued paid
sick leave to their supervisor if the need for paid sick leave use if foreseeable (e.g. doctor’s
appointment scheduled in advance). If the need for paid sick leave use is unforeseeable, the
employee shall provide notice of the need for the leave to his or her supervisor as soon as is
practicable.

Paid sick leave will not be considered hours worked for purposes of overtime calculation.

An employee will receive compensation for 50% of his or her unused accrued paid sick leave upon
termination, resignation, retirement or other separation from employment from the District at the
employee’s final rate of pay.

If an employee separates from employment with SSGSBEKHCD and is re-hired by the District
within one (1) year of the date of separation, previously accrued and unused paid sick leave hours
that were not paid out upon the employee’s separation shall be reinstated. However, if a rehired
employee had not yet met the 90 days requirement of probationary employment, at the time of
separation, the employee must still satisfy the 90 days of employment requirement collectively
over the periods of employment with the District prior to using sick leave. The employee will be
credited the number of days he or she worked previously for the District.

The District strictly prohibits any form of retaliation or discrimination against an employee for
attempting to use or using paid sick leave under this policy. Employees who believe they have
been discriminated or retailed against must report their concerns to the General-ManagerBoard of
Directors.

Other Benefits

It is solely the Employee’s responsibility to apply for any disability benefits for which they may
be eligible as a result of illness or disability, including California State Disability Insurance,
workers’ compensation insurance, and/or any other disability insurance benefits. Paid sick leave
benefits will be fully integrated with other benefits available, such that at no time will you be paid
more than your regular compensation.

65261.00001\30567852.1 26

75



EMEA/CERA leave—In order to be eligible for leave under the Family Medical Leave Act
(FMLA)/California Family Rights Act (CFRA)leave, all three of the following requirements must
be met:

D) 1 ammnling hie fo

1) An employee has worked for the District for at least 12 months;

2) An employee has worked a minimum of 1,250 hours during the 12-month period
immediately preceding any leave request; AND

3) As of the date of a leave request, the District employs lat least 50 full- and/or part-time [Commenmd [CN5]: CFRA applies to employers w/ § or more
employees at the employee’s worksite or within 75 road miles of the worksite cmployees

Please refer to the “Personal Leave Without Pay” section below for information on how to request
unpaid leaves.

J:F. PREGNANCY/CHILDBIRTH (PREGNANCY DiSABILITY LEAVE — PDL)
In accordance with applicable law and this policy, eligible employees are entitled to a leave of
absence and/or transfer on account of pregnancy, regardless of length of service.

Pregnancy Disability Leave

A woman is “disabled by pregnancy” if, in the opinion of her health care provider, she is unable
to work at all or is unable to perform one or more of the essential functions of her job or to perform
these without undue risk to herself, to the successful completion of her pregnancy, or to other
persons.

Any employee who is disabled due to pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions is
provided with Pregnancy-Disability Leave (“PDL”) for the period of actual disability up to four
(4) months, or 17 1/3 weeks per pregnancy. PDL is provided under California state law. Employees
who regularly work more or less than a 40-hour workweek are entitled to such leave on a pro rata
basis.

Notice of Leave/Transfer or Other Reasonable Accommodation Requests

Pregnant employees should notify the General-ManagerBoard of Directors as soon as possible
regarding their intent/need to take a leave of absence, to transfer, or for a reasonable
accommodation due to pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions. Such notice should
specify the anticipated timing and duration of the leave, transfer, or reasonable accommodation.

Where the need for a leave of absence, transfer, or reasonable accommodation is foreseeable,
employees must provide such notice at least 30 days prior to the date the leave, transfer, or
reasonable accommodation is to begin. Further, employees must consult with the General
ManagerBoard of Directors and make a reasonable effort to schedule any planned medical
treatment or supervision so as to minimize any disruption to the District’s operations. Actual
scheduling is subject to the approval of the employee’s health care provider.

65261.00001\30567852.1 27

76



Where 30 days’ advance notice is not possible, notice must be given as soon as possible. However,
the District will not deny a PDL, transfer, or reasonable accommodation where the need for leave
is an emergency or was otherwise unforesecable on the basis that an employee did not provide
sufficient advance notice.

The District shall respond to the leave or transfer request as soon as practicable and, in any event,
no later than 10 calendar days after receiving the request. The District shall attempt to respond to
the leave request before the date the leave is due to begin. Once given, approval shall be deemed
retroactive to the date of the first day of the leave.

Pay During PDL
An employee on PDL must use any or all accrued sick Leave at the beginning of any otherwise

unpaid leave period. An employee may substitute any accrued vacation or floating holiday hours
for PDL.

Unless using sick leave or vacation, PDL is unpaid leave.
The receipt or entitlement to sick leave or SDI benefits will not extend the length of PDL.
Sick leave, vacation, and floating holidays do not accrue during unpaid portions of PDL.

Benefits During PDL

During PDL, the District will continue to pay for the employee’s participation in the District’s
group health plans, to the same extent and under the same terms and conditions as would apply
had the employee continued in employment continuously for the leave period.

Thus, the employee must continue to pay her share of the health plan premiums during the leave.
The employee must make arrangements with the District for the payment of such premiums.

The District may recover from the employee the premiums that the District paid to maintain
coverage for the employee under the group health plan if the employee fails to return from leave
after the period of leave has expired and the employee’s failure to return is for a reason other than:

o The continuation, recurrence, or onset of a health condition that entitles the employee to
PDL, unless the employee chooses not to return after the PDL, in which case the District
can recover such premiums;

e Non-pregnancy related medical conditions requiring further leave, unless the employee
chooses not to return to work following the leave, in which case the District can recover
such premiums; or

o  Other circumstances beyond the employee’s control.

Similar to other unpaid leaves, in accordance with District policy, employees on PDL will accrue
employment benefits only when paid leave is being substituted for unpaid leave and only if the

employee would otherwise be entitled to such accrual.
Medical Certification

65261.00001\30567852.1 28

17



An employee requesting PDL must provide medical certification from her health care provider.
Failure to provide the required certification in a timely manner (within 15 days of the leave request)
may result in denial of leave benefits until such certification is provided.

Any such PDL medical certification from a health care provider shall provide the following
information:

1) The date on which the employee became disabled due to pregnancy, childbirth, or a related
medical condition;

2) The probable duration of the period or periods of disability; and

3) An explanatory statement that, due to the disability, the employee is unable to work at all
ot is unable to perform any one or more of the essential functions of her position without
undue risk to herself, her pregnancy, or to other persons.

In the case of a Pregnancy-Disability transfer or reasonable accommodation, the medical
certification shall provide the following information:

1) The date on which the need to transfer or reasonably accommodate became medically
advisable;

2) The estimated duration of the reasonable accommodation or transfer;

3) An explanatory statement that, due to the employee’s pregnancy, the transfer or reasonable
accommodation is medically advisable; and

4) A description of the requested reasonable accommodation or transfer.

Recertifications are required if PDL is sought after expiration of the time estimated by the health
care provider. Failure to submit required recertifications can result in termination of the leave.

Return to Work

An employee who timely returns to work at the expiration of her PDL will be reinstated to her
former position upon release to return to work by her health care provider, consistent with
applicable law.

e Where a definite date of reinstatement has been agreed upon at the beginning of the leave,
the employee will be reinstated by the date agreed upon, provided that the employee has
provided medical certification of her fitness for duty.

o If the actual reinstatement date differs from the original agreement, the employee will be
reinstated within two (2) business days, where feasible, after the employee notifies the
District of her readiness to return and provides medical certification of her fitness for duty.

65261.00001\30567852.1 29

78



e Tailure to return to work, without good cause, on the next work day following the
expiration of pregnancy disability leave may be grounds for termination of employment.

The employee is not, however, entitled to any greater right of reinstatement than she would have
had if she had not taken leave. Thus, reinstatement to the “same position™ may be denied if:

e For legitimate business reasons unrelated to the employee having taken a pregnancy
disability leave or transfer, the employee would not otherwise have been employed in her
same position at the time reinstatement is requested; or

o FEach means of preserving the job ot duties for the employee (such as leaving it unfilled or
filling it with a temporary employee) would substantially undermine the District’s ability
to operate safely and efficiently.

Also, the employee has no greater right to reinstatement to a “comparable position™ or to other
benefits and conditions of employment than an employee who has been continuously employed.
Thus, reinstatement to a comparable position may be denied if:

e There is no comparable position open on the employee’s scheduled date of reinstatement
or within 60 calendar days thereafter; or

o The employee would not have been offered a comparable position if she would have been
continuously at work during the PDL or transfer period.

sG. _MILITARY LEAVE
If employees are on an extended military leave of absence, they are entitled to be restored to their
previously held position or similar position, if available, without loss of any rights, privileges or
benefits provided the employee meets the requirements specified in the Uniformed Services

Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA).

An employee who is a member of the reserve corps of the Armed Forces of the United States or
of the National Guard or the Naval Militia will be granted temporary leave of absence without pay
while engaged in military duty as required by state employment law. A letter or a copy of orders
from the employee’s commanding officer is required to establish the dates of duty, and should be
provided to the General ManagerBoard of Directors as soon as possible.

<. TEMPORARY DISABILITY LEAVE
The District recognizes that a temporary disability may preclude an employee’s attendance at
work. Where the District becomes aware of such temporary disability, either through an
employee’s request for a reasonable accommodation or other legally recognized means, the
District will attempt to reasonably accommodate the needs of the employee by engaging in an
interactive process to determine if there is a reasonable accommodation that will both meet the
needs of the employee and not impose an undue hardship on the District. The duration of a
disability leave under this section shall be consistent with applicable law, but in no event shall the
leave extend past the date on which an employee becomes capable of performing the essential
functions of his or her position, with or without reasonable accommodation. For more information

65261.00001130567852.1 30

79



please contact the General ManagerBoard of Directors. If a leave is granted, any extensions will

be subject to the same considerations.
Where applicable, the District may request the employee to provide documentation that:

1) Describes the nature, sevetity, and duration of the employee’s temporary disability;
2) Describes the activity that the temporary disability limits;

3) Substantiates the need for leave;

4) Provides an estimate of the dates and duration of the leave; and

5) Provides the name and credentials of the employee’s health care provider

In the event that the documentation is determined to be insufficient, the District shall provide the
reasons why the documentation is insufficient and give the employee an opportunity to timely
provide additional information to remedy the insufficiency(ies). If the employee fails to provide
such additional information, the District will deny the leave until such documentation is provided.

For leaves extending beyond one (1) year, the District may require that the additional
documentation substantiating the need for the leave be provided on a yearly basis.

Prior to returning to employment with the District, employees will be required to submit written
medical certification of their ability to resume work, including any restrictions. Upon returning to
work, if employees qualify, they will be reinstated to their former position or one that is
comparable, depending upon the availability of any position at that time.

The District observes and complies with all federal and state medical leave regulations that pertain
to our employees.

During any Temporary Disability Leave, the District will continue to pay for the employee’s
participation in the District’s group health plans, to the same extent and under the same terms and
conditions as would apply had the employee continued in employment continuously for the leave
period. Thus, an employee must continue to pay his/her share of the health plan premiums during
the leave. The employee must make arrangements with the District for the payment of such
premiums.

Any unused accrued vacation, floating holidays, or sick leave shall be used prior to the effective
date of the temporary disability leave.

65261.00001\30567852.1 31

80



pt, Line spacing: Exactly 11.95 pt, No bullets or numbering,

*——“ Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.05", Space Before: 15.3
Font Alignment: Baseline

<———{ Formatted: Space Before: 15.3 pt ]

pt, Line spacing: Exactly 11.95 pt, No bullets or numbering,
Font Alignment: Baseline

‘-*‘l Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.05", Space Before: 15.3 1

AA:l. JURY SERVICE LEAVE

If an employee is summoned to report for jury duty, they will be granted a leave when the employee
notifies and submits a copy of the original summons for jury duty to his or her supervisor.
Employees will not be compensatedreeeive-theirregular—full-pay for the duration while serving
jury duty. The District reserves the right to request that they seek to be excused from or request
postponement of jury service if the absence from work would create a hardship to the District. This
applies to Introductory and Regular Full Time employees only. All other employees will be granted
leave without pay.

Employees are to report to work on any day, or portion thereof that is not actually spent in the
performance of jury service. For each week of jury duty, a certificate of jury service shall be
certified by the Court and filed with the District no later than Wednesday of the following week.

Exempt employees will be paid in accordance with FLSA requirements.

65261.00001130567852.1 32

81



BB.J. PERSONAL LEAVE WiTHOUT PAY

Upon written request, approved by the General ManagerBoard of Directors, a regular full time
employee may be granted a personal leave of absence without pay not to exceed thirty (30) days.
Conditions of such leave of absence shall be determined by the General-ManagerBoard of
Directors based on the District’s needs and requirements. Requests for personal leaves of absence
longer than thirty (30) days’ duration must be approved by the Board of Directors. This benefit is
effective following successful completion of six (6) months of service.

No vacation credit will be earned during any month an employee is absent without pay in excess
of five (5) consecutive full working days. Employees on a personal leave of absence without pay
are not eligible to receive holiday pay.

The District will continue to pay its share of the premiums for disability, medical, dental, vision,
and the like insurance for qualified employees on authorized personal leave of absence without
pay for up to thirty (30) days on such leave. Thus, an employee must continue to pay his/her share
of the health plan premiums during the leave. The employee must make arrangements with the
District for the payment of such premiums. Thereafter, continuing such premium payments will
be at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Should any District insurance coverages be
terminated, the General-ManagerBoard of Directors will notify the employee of such termination
and inform the employee of available options. Upon return to work, employees become eligible
for reinstatement in accordance with the terms of the agreement with the insurance carrier then in
effect.

EE:K. ABANDONMENT OF POSITION
Consistent absences from work or tardiness with or without prior notification may lead to
disciplinary action, including reprimand, suspension, demotion or dismissal.

Any unauthorized absence from work is considered cause for dismissal. Absence from work
without permission for three (3) consecutive days shall be considered a resignation, unless the
absences are attributable to an unforesecable need to use sick leave under the District’s Paid Sick
Leave policy and it is not practicable for an employee to provide notice within three (3) days.

The General-ManagerBoard of Directors [personnel director br other responsible managing

/{ Commented [CN6]: Is this a position?

employee may reinstate the employee who has been voluntarily absent without leave for three (3)
consecutive days if the employee provides a satisfactory explanation. If the employee is reinstated
after providing a satisfactory explanation, back pay for the period of absence may be allowed,
including the employee’s use of vacation or “comp” time to cover the period of absence.

FE:L. CONTINUITY
Continuous Service - Calculation

65261.00001130567852.1 33

82



For introductory and regular full time and part time employees, length of
continuous service with the District will be used as the basis for determining
benefits such as vacation time. Length of continuous service will also be one of the
considerations in promotions, demotions and layoffs.

Continuous service with the District will start with the date of employment and will
continue until one of the following occurs:

a. An employee is discharged
b. An employee voluntarily terminates his/her employment; or
¢ An employee is laid off.

Absence: Continuity of an employee’s service will not be broken by absence for the following
reasons, and his/her length of service will accrue for the period of such absence.

1.
2.
3

Absence by reason of industrial disability;
Authorized absence without pay for less than thirty (30) das in a calendar year; or

Absences governed by applicable state and/or federal laws such as military or
national guard service.

Reemployment of Laid Off Employees:

1.

Regular employees who are laid off will be placed on the reemployment list and
shall receive seniority based on previously earned length of service.

Previous regular employees who were laid off and called back for work not being
full time in nature will have their employment service records maintained so that
they accumulate length of service as they work on an “hour for hour” basis.

Previous temporary employees who are rehired within eighteen (18) months of their
last date of employment shall have their employment service records restored to
include previously earned length of service.

65261.00001\30567852.1 34

83



VI. HEALTH, SAFETY, AND SECURITY

A. NON-SMOKING

The District recognizes that smoking of any kind (including but not limited to: cigarettes,
vaporizers, marijuana, and any kind of oil used for smoking purposes) and use of any smokeless
tobacco product in the workplace can adversely affect the public and co-workers. The District is
committed to a philosophy of good health and a safe work place.

Smoking of any kind and use of smokeless tobacco products, therefore, is not permitted in any
District buildings, facilities, equipment, or vehicles. Smoking devices include, but are not limited
to, cigarettes, pipes, vaporizers, water pipes, or any other recreational inhalable device. Smokeless
tobacco products include, but are not limited to, chewing tobacco, snuff, dip, snus, and all
dissolvable smokeless tobacco products including lozenges, orbs, sticks, and strips.

Employees wishing to smoke should do so during their break times, outside District buildings, in
designated areas, and in accordance with local ordinances. This policy covers all District premises
at all times, including before and after normal working hours.

Any employee who violates this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including
termination.

B. DRUGS AND ALCOHOL

The District is dedicated to providing employees with a workplace that is free of drugs and alcohol
and strictly prohibits drugs and alcohol in the workplace. The District discourages drug and alcohol
abuse by its employees. The District has a vital interest in maintaining safe and efficient working
conditions for its employees. Substance abuse is incompatible with health, safety, efficiency and
success at the District. An employee, who has any detectible amounts of drugs or alcohol while on
the job or on District property compromises the District’s interest, and endangers the employee’s
own health and safety and the health and safety of others. Any identified usage of drugs or alcohol,
or any detectible amount during working hours or on District property will be grounds for
discipline, up to and including termination.

The District has a zero tolerance policy regarding drugs and alcohol. All final candidates for
employment are required take and pass a drug and alcohol test along with his or her pre-

employment physical after receiving an offer of employment, but prior to starting work. Refusal
to submit to such testing will be treated in the same manner as a positive result.

Applicability
1) This substance abuse policy applies to all District employees on the job.
2) This policy applies at all times while District employees are on District premises.

3) This policy applies to District employees conducting or performing District business,
regardless of location.

65261.00001\30567852.1 35

84



4) This policy applies to all District employees operating or responsible for the operation,
care, or custody of District property or equipment.

5) This policy applies to District employees responsible for the safety of other in connection
with District business.

Prohibited Substances
As used in this policy, “prohibited substances” include, but are not limited to, the following:

Drugs

Recreational and medical marijuana (regardless of legal status in California), legally prescribed
drugs to the extent they are abused, amphetamines, cocaine, opiates, phencyclidine, and all other
illegal controlled substances.

Alcohol

The use of beverages or substances, including any medication containing alcohol, such that it is
present in the body at a detectible level while actually performing, ready to perform, or
immediately available to perform any District business, is prohibited. “Alcohol” is defined as the
intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol, or other low molecular weight alcohol
including methyl or isopropyl alcohol.

Prohibited Conduct

Possession, Use, Manufacture and Trafficking

No employee shall engage in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession,
receipt, sale, purchase or use of a prohibited substance or alcohol on District premises, in District
vehicles, or while conducting District business off the premises.

Drug Paraphernalia

No employee shall engage in the possession, distribution, sale, manufacture or use of paraphernalia
normally used for consumption or use of prohibited substances or alcohol on District premises, in
District vehicles, or while conducting District business off the premises.

Impairment

All employees are prohibited from being under the influence of alcohol, marijuana (regardless of
whether prescribed or legally obtained), or other prohibited substances during working hours. Any
person other than the person for whom they are prescribed is prohibited from using such
prescription drugs in the work place. Such drugs will be used only in the manner, combination and
quantity prescribed, and the employee shall advise his or her supervisor prior to operating
machinery, vehicles or equipment that he or she is taking such medication. Any employee who is
reasonably suspected of being impaired, under the influence of a prohibited substance, or otherwise
not fit for duty due to substance abuse shall be removed from his or her duties and be given the
opportunity to explain the factors supporting the supervisor’s determination of reasonable
suspicion. Employees should be advised that the District has zero tolerance for any positive test
indicating prior use of controlled substances, including marijuana.

65261.00001\30567852.1 36

85



Alcohol

No employee may report for duty or remain on duty when under the influence of alcohol and/or
when his or her ability to perform assigned functions is adversely affected by alcohol. No employee
shall use alcohol while on duty or while performing safety sensitive functions.

Testing for Prohibited Substances

Pre-Employment Screening

All applicants for employment with the District shall be subject to a pre-employment physical,
which shall include urine controlled substance testing. Such pre-employment screening practices
are designed to prevent the employment of individuals who use illegal drugs or whose use of legal
drugs indicates a potential for impaired or unsafe job performance. If the applicant is under the age
of 18, a consent form authorizing the examination and testing must be signed by the applicant’s
parent or guardian. All offers of employment shall be contingent upon the applicant passing the
pre-employment physical and drug and alcohol test.

Rehabilitation

The District wishes to assist employees who recognize that they have a problem with alcohol or
other drugs that may interfere with their ability to perform their jobs in a satisfactory manner.
Employees who have a problem with alcohol or drugs and who decide to enroll voluntarily in a
rehabilitation program will be given unpaid time off to participate in the program unless it would
result in an undue hardship to the District to provide the time off. It is the responsibility of the
employee to seek this help before alcohol or drug problems lead to disciplinary action. Once a
violation occurs, subsequent use of the assistance program may have no bearing on the
determination of discipline.

Waiver of Disciplinary Action
Discipline or termination that is waived or held in abeyance pending rehabilitation should be done
on the condition, set forth in writing, that the employee:
e Successfully complete an approved rehabilitation program;
o Faithfully comply with maintenance and therapeutic measures (€.g., attendance at AA or
NA meetings); and
e Be subject to periodic testing without further reasonable cause.

C. SAFETY POLICY STATEMENT

It is our policy that accident prevention is considered of primary importance in all phases of our
operation and administration. It is our intention to provide healthy working conditions and to
establish and insist upon safe practices at all times by all employees. The prevention of accidents
is an objective affecting all levels of the organization and its activities. It is, therefore, a basic
requirement that each employee make safety an integral part of their daily responsibilities.

Every effort will be made to provide adequate training to all employees. However, it is equally the
responsibility of each employee to accept and follow established safety regulations and procedures
and to cooperate fully in accident prevention. Employees should immediately report all

nonfunctioning, hazardous equipment to their supervisor. Failure to do so may subject an employee
to discipline.

65261.00001\30567852.1 37

86



In the event an employee becomes injured, or witnesses an injury during working hours, he/she
must report it immediately to the nearest available supervisor. Employees are to render any
assistance requested by the supervisor.

Any injury that occurs on the job, even a slight cut or strain, must be reported to your supervisor
as soon as possible, or within twenty-four (24) hours. Under no circumstances should an employee
leave a shift without reporting that an injury occurred. Failure to do so may subject an employee
to discipline.

Unsafe working conditions must be reported to your supervisor or the General- ManagerBoard of
Directors immediately. Failure to do so may subject an employee to discipline. If you are in doubt
about how to perform a job safely, it is important that you ask your supervisor for assistance and
instruction. Fellow employees that need help should be assisted.

Drug and/or alcohol screening will be required following any work-related accident or any
violation of safety precautions or standards, if there is “reasonable suspicion” of a drug and/or
aleohol connection, whether or not an injury resulted from the accident or violation.

Please consult the District’s Injury and Illness Prevention Program for more information.

D. DRIVING SAFETY

The safety and well-being of our employees is of critical importance to the organization. Therefore,
we each have a responsibility to not only protect ourselves when on the road but also to protect
those around us. Employees that are required to drive on District business must comply with all
California driving laws at all times and consistently apply and follow all the safety procedures
below.

1. All employees required to drive as part of their job duties must possess a valid
California motor vehicle driver’s license/auto insurance and possess a good driving
record commensurate with the District’s ability to protect its insurability under its
automobile liability policies. Copies of each employee’s current California driver’s
license and personal vehicle insurance card are to be maintained in the employee’s
personnel file. Failure to maintain a good driving record, which affects the
employee’s ability to operate a vehicle, is cause for disciplinary action.

2. All employees are expected to wear seat belts at all time while in a moving vehicle
being used for District business, whether they are the driver or a passenger.

3. Use of handheld cell phones, whether personal or business-owned, while behind
the wheel of a moving vehicle is strictly prohibited. This includes the use for
making or receiving phone calls, sending or receiving text messages or e-mails, and
downloading information from the web. If you need to engage in any of these
activities while driving, you must pull over to a safe location and stop your vehicle
prior to using your cell phone.

4. Employees are required to turn off cell phones or put them on vibrate before starting
their car. Employees may consider changing their voice mail message to indicate
that they are unavailable to talk, as they are driving. Employees are permitted and
encouraged to communicate to customers, associates, and business partners of the
policy as an explanation as to why calls may not be returned immediately.

65261.00001\30567852.1 38

87



3 Although use of cell phones under any circumstances is strongly discouraged while
driving, the use of hands-free technology may be warranted in emergency
circumstances only.

6. The use of other handheld electronic devices, such as ‘I-Pads, i-Pods, laptops,
electronic readers, and the like are strictly prohibited while driving a vehicle on
District business.

/2 Engaging in other distracting activities including, but not limited to, eating, putting

on makeup, reading or changing radio stations or music, is also strongly
discouraged while driving, even when in slow-moving traffic.

8. Use of alcohol, drugs or other substances, including certain over-the-counter cold
or allergy medications that in any way impair driving ability, is strictly prohibited.

9. All employees are expected to follow all driving laws and safety rules such as
adherence to posted speed limits and directional signs, use of turn signals and
avoidance of confrontational or offensive behavior while driving.

10.  Employees should never allow anyone to ride in any part of the vehicle not
specifically intended for passenger use and/or any seat that does not include a
working seat belt. Unauthorized individuals are not allowed in District vehicles.

11.  Employees must promptly report any accidents to local law enforcement as well as
to the District in accordance with established procedures.

12.  Employees are also required to report any moving or parking violations received
while driving on District business and/or in District vehicles.
13. Smoking is not allowed in District vehicles or equipment.

14.  Employees are required to safely secure or lock the vehicle in the District yard,
except when on call.

Failure to adhere to these procedures may result in disciplinary action, up to and including
termination of employment.

E. USE OF PRIVATE VEHICLES

Unless specifically authorized by the General-ManagerBoard of Directors, an employee shall not
use his/her personal vehicle on District Business. See also the “Personal Vehicle Usage™ section
below.

In certain circumstances when an employee receives prior approval the use of a private vehicle is
authorized. An employee who uses his’her own vehicle for District business must meet the
following criteria:

1. Must possess a valid California Driver’s license, along with a good driving record.

2 Must provide proof of Insurance coverage.

3 Must sign a written statement of acknowledgement & release of liability provided
by the District.

Police Officers must take their District vehicles home in order to be able to respond to
emergency calls. Police Officers are responsible for any IRS obligations related to personal use

65261.00001130567852.1 39

88



of District vehicles.

Similarly, Public Works employees who are on call must take home a District vehicle during the
on call timeframe. Public Works employees are also responsible for any IRS obligations related
to personal use of District vehicles.

F. MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT
The employee shall be reimbursed at the business mileage rate allowed by the Internal Revenue
Service, as it may be amended.

A completed expense account form is required.

G. AUTOMOBILE ACCIDENT

If an employee is involved in an automobile accident,-or cited for a California Vehicle Code
violation while on District business (personal or District car) he/she must report the accident to
his/her supervisor immediately. Employees should request and obtain a police report and police
investigation at the scene of the accident. If a supetvisor, or General ManagerBoard of Directors
is not available, it should be reported to the Board President. All infractions should be reported
within 24 hours. Do not discuss the accident with outside parties.

All vehicle violations will be reported to SDRMA, which insures the District vehicles.

A copy of the accident report and/or California Vehicle Code violations will be maintained in the
employee’s personnel file.

H. AUTOMOBILE ACCIDENT-DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES

The following are disciplinary procedures for all employees who drive on district business. A
review of driving records will indicate into which of the following categories an employee may be
placed, if any DMV driving records for employees must be submitted to the District quarterly and
whether driving violations are noted as possible points on the employee’s record.

1. Class I: Attendance in defensive driving class.
a. Two (2) points (as determined by the DMV) within thirty-six (36) months

b. Any moving violation in a District Vehicle
c. Any chargeable accident, when a driver has received a point violation.
2. Class IT: Twelve (12) month driving probation (any point violations within this

probation will trigger a class III category).
a. Three (3) points or more within thirty-six (36) months.

b. Two (2) points within thirty-six (36) months if result of an accident in which
the driver was charged with a public offense, Penal Code sections 23100
through 23249.58
c. Any chargeable accident and any violation on the same date in a District
vehicle.
65261.00001\30567852.1 40

89



3. Class TII: Suspension, with or without pay, up to and including termination.

a. Violation by an employee of other applicable District disciplinary
standards, including but not limited to, inexcusable neglect of duty, misuse
of District property and/or violation of safety procedures.

b. Notification by the District’s insurance carrier that it will not provide
insurance coverage for a particular employee will be grounds for dismissal
of the concerned employee.

4. Class IV: Suspension of driving privileges will result in automatic termination of
employment.

a. Six (6) or more points within thirty-six (36) month.

b. Driving while under the influence (DUI) in a District vehicle or in a private
vehicle while on District Business.

K:1.__INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROCEDURES (ILPP)
In accordance with our policy to provide a safe and healthy working environment, it is our
intention to implement and maintain an Injury and Illness Prevention Program. The District’s
injury and illness procedures are maintained as a separate policy. Please consult with the

General-ManagerBoard of Directors to reference them.

LsJ. _ WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

All employees are covered by Workers® Compensation Insurance, effective the first day of
employment. Workers® Compensation Insurance provides employees and/or his/her beneficiaries
with certain benefits in the event of job-related illness, injury or accidental death. If an employee
sustains a job-related illness or injury, he/she should report the illness or injury to his/her
supervisor the day it occurs. Failure to do so could result in a delay of benefits by the insurance
carrier. All payments for lost wages or salary due to a legitimate job-related illness or injury,
medical treatment, and any other benefits will be made by the Workers® Compensation Insurance
carrier as required by law. Please see the General-ManagerBoard of Directors for more
information.

K. WORKPLACE VIOLENCE AND SECURITY
The District has adopted a “zero-tolerance” policy against workplace violence. Consistent with
this policy, acts or threats of physical violence, including intimidation, harassment, and/or
coercion, which involve or affect the District or which occur on District property, will not be

tolerated.

Acts or threats of violence include conduct that is sufficiently severe, offensive, or intimidating to
alter the cmployment conditions at the District, or to create a hostile, abusive, or intimidating work
environment for one or several District employees. Examples of workplace violence include, but
are not limited to, the following:

65261.00001\30567852.1 41

90



a) All threats or acts of violence occurring on District premises, regardless of the relationship
between the District and the parties involved in the incident.

b) Al threats or acts of violence occurring off District premises involving someone who is
acting in the capacity of a representative of the District.

¢) All threats or acts of violence occurring off District premises involving an employee of the
District if the threats or acts affect the legitimate interests of the District.

d) Any acts or threats resulting in the conviction of an employee or agent of the District, or
of an individual performing services for the District on a contract or temporary basis, under
any criminal code provision relating to violence or threats of violence that adversely affect
the legitimate interests and goals of the District.

Specific examples of conduct that may be considered threats or acts of violence include, but are
not limited to, the following:
a) Hitting or shoving an individual.
b) Verbally threatening an individual or his/her family, friends, associates, or property with
harm.

¢) Threatening gestures or other non-verbal conduct that could reasonably be interpreted as a
threat or intimation of violence.

d) The intentional destruction or threat of destruction of District property.
e) Harassing or threatening phone calls.

f) Harassing, surveillance or stalking.

g) The suggestion or intimation that violence is appropriate.

h) Unauthorized possession or inappropriate use of firearms or weapons.

The District’s prohibition against threats and acts of violence applies to all persons involved in the
District’s operation, including, but not limited to, District personnel, contract, and temporary
employees, and anyone else on District property. Violations of this policy by any individual (1) on
District property; (2) acting as a representative of the District while off District property; or 3)
while off of District property when his/her actions affect the District’s business interests, will lead
to disciplinary action (up to and including termination) and/or legal action as appropriate.

Any employee who is physically threatened by a co-worker or is aware of a threat to an employee,
customer or vendor, or is aware of another individual who has been subjected to or threatened with
violence, must report this information to his/her supervisor or manager, as soon as possible.

Do not assume that a threat is not serious; bring all threats to your supervisor or Department Head.

All threats will be promptly and thoroughly investigated, and all complaints which are reported to
management will be treated with as much confidentiality as possible. The District may, however,
need to disclose results of an investigation under appropriate circumstances, for example, in order
to protect individual safety. The District will not tolerate retaliation against any employee who
makes a good faith report of workplace violence.

Weapons are also strictly prohibited at the District. Weapons include, but are not limited to: any
hand gun, rifle, or shotgun; any knife unrelated to your assigned job; any bombs, explosives or

65261.00001\30567852.1 42

91



fireworks; or any other device or object designed to inflict injury on another human being.
Violation of this District policy will result in immediate disciplinary action, up to and including

termination.

65261.00001\30567852.1 43

92



VII. WORKPLACE GUIDELINES

A. JHOURS OF WORK 22,

/{Formatted: Highlight

The office hours for the District are Monday through Friday 8 am. until 4:15 p.m. A normal { Formatted: Highlight

workweek for a full-time employee will consist of forty (40) hours. Hours for individual employees
vary by Department and are established by your supervisor. Some of the positions of the District
require weekend and on-call duties. The District endeavors to make the work hours accommodate
the SSCSBEKHCD residents and employees, while also remaining flexible. Employees are
expected to be at their work area, ready to work at their scheduled time. If an employee is scheduled
to work more than forty (40) hours in a week, the District will properly compensate the employee
for all hours worked, including overtime premiums when applicable.

Employees will be given their individual duty hours upon hire and at the time of any change in
position. If the normal duty hours are changed or if the District changes its operating hours,
employees will be given written notice to facilitate any personal planning. The District is open to
suggestions you may have in this area.

Hours Consecutive: The regular hours of work each day shall be consecutive, except for
interruptions for meal and break periods.

Worlaweek: The workweek shall consist of seven (7) consecutive days from one minute past twelve
o’clock (12:01) AM. Saturday through twelve o’clock (12:00) midnight Friday. The standard
workday begins at 12:01 a.m. and ends at 12 midnight, unless otherwise provided.

Flexible Work Schedule: The District and the employees may jointly agree to work a flexible work
schedule with some workdays exceeding eight (8) hours. The General-ManagerBoard of Directors
at his/her sole discretion may discontinue a jointly agreed to flexible work schedule if he/she
concludes operations have been adversely affected.

On Call Hours: A schedule shall be maintained by the General-ManagerBoard of Directors and
other responsible managing employees whereby qualified maintenance employees shall be
assigned on a rotational basis to be “on call” on weekends, holidays and other times not considered
regular hours of work for District employees.

Full-time Police Officers and Public Works employees work a 4/10 schedule. This schedule shall
be periodically subject to review in order to determine whether it is mutually beneficial to both
employees and the District.

B. RECORD OF WORK HOURS

All employees must accurately record all time worked and the start and end time of each unpaid
meal period, regardless of when and where the work is performed. Off-the-clock work (engaging
in work assignments or duties that are not reported as time worked) is prohibited. No member of
management may request, require or authorize non-exempt employees to perform work without
compensation. Any possible violations should be reported promptly to a supervisor or the General
ManagerBoard of Directors, Failure to record all time worked is grounds for discipline, up to and
including termination.

C. MEAL PERIODS

65261,00001\30567852.1 44

93

h 58



The District provides at least a 30-minute unpaid meal period to employees who work five (5)
hours or more. Employees working six (6) hour or twelve (12) hour shifts may agree to waive
their first or second meal periods, respectively in accordance with the California Labor Code.

D. REST PERIODS
The District provides non-exempt, full-time regular employees one (1) 105-minute paid rest break
for every four (4) hours worked to be taken at the discretion of the employee.

E. ATTENDANCE/TARDINESS

Employee attendance is a major concern of the District. Unsatisfactory attendance, including
tardiness and leaving work early is unacceptable performance. Employees will be rated in their
performance appraisal in the categories of attendance and punctuality.

If an employee is ill, injured or an unexpected emergency arises which prevents them from coming
to work, the employee must notify their supervisor as soon as practicable. If an employee is
physically unable to contact their supervisor, they should make a good faith effort to have another
person to make the contact on their behalf.

When an employee calls in absent, he/she is to advise the District of his/her expected date of return.

Repeated absences, excessive absences (excused or unexcused) or a pattern of absences are
unacceptable job performance. If an employee is absent for three (3) days and has not provided
proper notification, the District will assume that the employee has abandoned their position and
may be treated as having voluntarily terminated employment with the District, unless the absence
is attributable to an unforeseeable need to use sick leave under the District’s Paid Sick Leave policy
and it is not practicable for an employee to provide notice within that timeframe.

If an employee becomes ill at work, he/she should notify his/her supervisor immediately. If an
employee is unable to perform his/her job task, an employee may be sent to his/her treating doctor
or home for the remainder of the day or until able to work again. Employees will be paid only for
time actually worked and may use accrued paid sick leave.

Employees shall be at their workstation, ready to begin work at the start of their scheduled work
time or resumption of work duties. If employees are not prepared, they will be considered tardy.
Excessive tardiness, whether excused or unexcused, constitutes unacceptable work performance.
Excessive tardiness (defined as more than 3 unexcused tardy days, in a 30-day period or more than
5 unexcused tardy days, in a 3-month period). If an employee is tardy, his/her wages will be
reduced by the amount of time he/she is tardy, calculated in whole minutes according to the
District’s clock.

All absences are to be arranged as far in advance as possible. This includes vacations and time off
for other reasons. If a doctor or dental appointment must be scheduled during the workday, it
should be scheduled as early in the morning or as late in the afternoon as possible.

F. PERSONAL APPEARANCE/PUBLIC RELATIONS

The District is judged by the collective and individual performance of its officers and employees.
The District has a particular interest in preserving its reputation and the reputation of its employees.
The District is a professional business based on the trust and goodwill it engenders from its
customers. Tn addition to providing excellent services, customers only do business with the District
if they are also treated with courtesy, patience and appropriate deference. Employees are to treat

65261.00001\30567852.1 45

94



all residents with the utmost courtesy. Thus, the District holds itself and its employees to the
highest standards of lawful and ethical conduct. Employees will be evaluated in their performance
appraisal in this category.

: 5 5 : siet: A good employee will approach
his/her job duties and responsibilities with a positive attitude and respect. A neat personal
appearance and good grooming habits reflect respect for oneself and the workplace. Employees
are expected to dress in a manner that is appropriate for working.

»

Employees must be very careful that their relationships with residents or vendors or other activities
do not subject eneself-themselves or the District to a conflict of interest or violation of applicable
law or regulation.

This policy is intended to alert employees to the need for discretion at all times and is not intended
to inhibit normal business communications. In addition, nothing in this policy is intended to
infringe upon employee rights to discuss their terms and conditions of employment as protected
under applicable federal and state law.

G. CONFIDENTIALITY/CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The-rule-of thumb-to-remember-is-thet-aAll information gathered by, retained or generated by the
District is confidential. There shall be no disclosure of any confidential information to anyone
outside the District without the appropriate authorization. Confidential information may include
internal reports, policies, procedures and other internal business-related communications.

It is an employee’s duty and responsibility to safeguard all confidential information. This includes
the dissemination of information by any available means, including but not limited to in-person
disclosure, telephone, fax, and email.

When any inquiry is made regarding an employee or any former employee, the inquiry must be
forwarded to the General-ManagerBoard of Directors without comment from the employee. When
any inquiry is made regarding any client, the inquiry must be forwarded to the General
ManagerBoard of Directors.

Confidential information shall be disclosed and/or discussed only on a “need to know” basis.
Conversation of a confidential nature must never be held within earshot of the public or customers.

H. Girt PoLicY
Guidelines for accepting and providing gifts, entertainment, and services are as follows:

1. An employee or his/her immediate family may not accept from, or provide to,
individuals or companies doing or seeking to do business with the District, gifts,
entertainment, and/or other services or benefits unless the transaction meets all of
the following guidelines:

a. Is customary and gives no appearance of impropriety and does not have
more than a nominal value;
b. Does not impose any sense of obligation on either the giver or the receiver;
c. Does not result in any kind of special or favored treatment; and
65261.00001\30567852.1 46

95



d. Cannot be viewed as extravagant, excessive, or too frequent considering all
the circumstances including the ability of the recipient to reciprocate at
District’s expense.

c. Is given and received with no effort to conceal the full facts by either the
giver or receiver.

Each employee must notify the General-Manage:Board of Directors of receipt of any gifts,
entertainment, and/or services.

L OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES

Employees may engage in ouiside employment or personal educational activities during non-
working hours, provided that such activities do not interfere with their job performance or
constitute a conflict of interest. Prior to accepting outside employment, employees are to notify
their supervisor in writing. The notice must contain the name of the potential company, the title
and nature of the position, the number of working hours per week and the time of scheduled work
hours. If the position constitutes a conflict of interest or interferes with the employee’s job, at any
time, employees may be required to curtail or terminate such activity.

No employee of the District shall take part in any campaigning as a representative of the District,
nor use his or her position with the District as an influence in the outcome of an election held for
the purpose of determining members of the Board of Directors.

J. ELECTRONIC ASSETS USAGE

The District recognizes that use of the Internet has many benefits for the District and its employees.
The Internet and email make communication more efficient and effective. Therefore, employees
are encouraged to use the Internet appropriately. Unacceptable usage of the Internet can place the
District and others at risk.

The following guidelines have been established for using the Internet and email in an appropriate,
ethical and professional manner:

1. The District Internet and email access may not be used for transmitting, retrieving
or storing of any communications of a defamatory, discriminatory or harassing
nature or materials that are obscene or X-rated. No messages with derogatory or
inflammatory remarks about an individual’s race, age, disability, religion, national
origin, physical attributes, sexual preference or any other protected categories shall
be transmitted. Harassment of any kind is strictly prohibited.

2. Abusive, discriminatory, and harassing language and any illegal activities —
including piracy, hacking, extortion, blackmail, copyright infringement, and
unauthorized access to any computers on the Internet or email — are forbidden.

3. Do not use the system in a way that disrupts its use by others. This includes
excessive dial-in usage, sending or receiving many large files and “spamming”
(sending email messages to thousands of users).

4, The Internet is full of useful programs that can be downloaded, but some of them
may contain computer viruses that can extensively damage our computers. Be sure
to virus-check downloaded files immediately. Also, many browser add-on
packages (called “plug-ins™) are available to download. There is no guarantee that

65261.00001\30567852.1 47

96



such will be compatible with other programs on the network and such may cause
problems; therefore, please refrain from downloading such plug-ins.

5. Each employee is responsible for the content of all text, audio or images that he/she
places or sends over the District’s Internet and email system. No email or other
electronic communications may be sent which hides the identity of the sender or
represents the sender as someone else. Also, be aware that the District’s name is
attached to all messages so use discretion in formulating messages.

6. Email is not guaranteed to be private or confidential. All electronic communications
are District property. Therefore, the District reserves the right to examine, monitor
and regulate email messages, directories and files, as well as Internet usage. Also,
the Internet is not secure so don’t assume that others cannot read or possibly alter
messages.

1 Tnternal and external email messages are considered business records and may be
subject to discovery in the event of litigation. Be aware of this possibility when
sending email within and outside the District.

All District-supplied technology, including computer systems and District-related work records,
belong to the District and not the employee. Employees should understand, therefore, that they
have no right of privacy with respect to any messages or information created, collected, or
maintained on the District’s electronic communication resources, including personal information
or messages, even when the employee utilizes passwords. The District routinely monitors usage
patterns for its email and Internet communications. Although encouraged to explore the resources
available on the Internet, employees should use discretion in the sites that are accessed.

Since all the computer systems and software, as well as the email and Internet connection, are
District-owned, all District policies are in effect at all times. Any employee who abuses the
privilege of District-facilitated access to email or the Internet, may be denied access to the Internet
and, if appropriate, be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

K. SoCIAL MEDIA

with-family ds-and-co-workers-around-the-w : cever—ulUse of social media
alse-may presents certain risks and carries with it certain responsibilities. To assist you in making
responsible decisions about your use of social media, we have established these guidelines for
appropriate use of social media. This policy applies to all employees of the District.

Guidelines

The District encourages employees to post freely and exchange opinions and ideas on interactive
websites in a way that is constructive and follows all District policies and codes of conduct.
Accordingly, the following policy is intended to set forth the terms of the District’s policy on
employee use of blogs and other interactive websites. This policy covers employees creating,
posting, commenting, or uploading to any Internet website, including media sites, chat rooms,
bulletin boards, newsgroups, discussion groups, non-District email groups, personal websites,
video sharing sites, picture sharing sites, dating sites, and social networking sites (e.g. MySpace,
Facebook, Twitter, etc.), whether or not such sites are set to private. Failure to follow this policy
may lead to disciplinary measures, up to and including immediate termination of employment.

65261.00001\30567852.1 48

97



Nothing in this policy is meant to contravene employees’ rights to engage in protected concerted
activity concerning terms and conditions of employment.

Employees participate in online publishing -at their own risk and are personally and legally
responsible for their postings and online comments. The District will not assume any liability or
risk for an employee’s blogging or posting online. The following are illustrative of the types of
relevant laws implicated by blogging, but are not intended to be comprehensive: privacy, libel,
defamation, harassment, copyright, data theft, disclosure of material non-public information, and
disclosure of confidential or trade secret information.

As an employee of the District, people may think your views are the views of the District. If you
participate in online social media sites and other forms of online publishing and discussion about
the District, its employees or products, or that in any way identifies the District, you must not
represent or suggest that your opinions or positions are endorsed by the District.

Know and Follow the Rules

Employees are expected to refrain from posting any content that is discriminatory, harassing,
retaliatory, or otherwise illegal or injurious—when—blogging. Employees should avoid using
statements, photographs, video or audio that reasonably could be viewed as malicious, obscene,
threatening, or intimidating, that disparage others, or that might constitute harassment or bullying.
Examples of such conduct might include offensive posts meant to intentionally harm someone’s
reputation or posts that could contribute to a hostile work environment on the basis of race, sex,
disability, religion, or any other status protected by law or District policy.

Using Social Media at Work

Refrain from using social media while on work time or on District-provided equipment-we-provide,
unless it is work-related as authorized by your manager or consistent with the Electronics Assets
Usage. Do not use District email addresses to register on social networks, blogs or other online
tools utilized for personal use.

Media Contacts

Employees should not speak to the media on the District’s behalf without contacting the General
ManagesBoard of Directors. All media inquiries should be directed to the General ManagerBoard
of Directors.

L. DISTRICT PHONE USAGE/PERSONAL CELL PHONES

The telephones of the District are to be restricted to business calls for District business. All
employees are required to be professional and conscientious at all times when using District
phones and to refrain from usage of personal cell phones, including texting and downloading of
web content unless subject to emergency situations and/or as authorized by a supervisor.-in-an

The use of personal cell phones or other mobile devices is strongly discouraged during working
hours for personal use, including phone calls, texting and downloading of web content. However
the District recognizes that from time to time an employee will need to use his/her personal cell
phone during working hours. Employees are instructed to keep these instances to a minimum to

65261.00001\30567852.1 49

98



the extent possible and not allow the use to interfere with job performance. Employees who violate
this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

M.  DISTRICT EQUIPMENT AND PROPERTY

District vehicles, equipment, tools, machines, supplies and desks are District property meant to be
used for business and operations purposes only. They must be maintained and kept clean according
to District rules and regulations. There shall be no abuse, misuse, careless or intentional damage
of any District property, tools, vehicles, equipment, or the property of fellow employees, customers
or guests. The use of any District property is guided by policy. The District reserves the right to
inspect all District property to ensure compliance with its rules and regulations, without notice to
the employee and/or in the employee’s absence.

An employee who does have additional outside employment shall be permitted to use District
records, materials, equipment, facilities or other District resources in connection with said
employment only upon receipt of prior approval. The employee may submit a request to the
General ManagerBoard of Directors, who may authorize the use of District materials as specified
herein or provide the employee with information acquired from such materials.

N. SOLICITATION, DISTRIBUTION & BULLETIN BOARDS

Solicitation or Distribution
In order to avoid disruption of District operations, the following rules shall apply to solicitation
and distribution on District property:

1) Employees

o Employees may engage in solicitation on District premises only during their
nonworking time.

o Employees may distribute non-District literature only during nonworking time and only
in non-work areas. If an employee is unsure whether an area is a work or non-work
area, he or she should consult his or her supervisor for clarification.

2) Non-Employees

e Non-employees may not solicit or distribute literature on District property at any time
for any purpose

“Working Time” means time when the employee is supposed to be working. “Nonworking Time”
means time during meals or breaks and before or after work or during other specified periods
during the workday when employees are properly not engaged in performing their work tasks.

Bulletin Boards

Bulletin boards are provided to help keep employees and guests informed of District events,
changes in policies and other matters of interest to guests and employees. Postings on these boards
are limited to items posted by the District, including statutory and legal notices, safety and
disciplinary rules, District policies, memos of general interest relating to the District, and other

65261.00001\30567852.1 50

99



District items. All postings require the prior approval of the General-ManagerBoard of Directors.
No postings will be permitted for any other purpose.

0. |[UNIFORMS AND PROTECTIVE CLOTHING

Full-time employees who are required to wear a uniform as part of their job requirements will
receive one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) annually as a uniform allowance and as such are
responsible for any IRS obligations this may incur. T

P.  |GRIEVANCES

The District as outlined above has a specific procedure detailed in the separate “Harassment,
Discrimination, and Retaliation Reporting” policy that should be used to report concems or
complaints related to possible harassment, discrimination, retaliation, or abusive conduct in the
workplace. For other workplace issues, the provisions of this Grievance Procedure may be utilized.

The District provides this Grievance Procedure at its sole discretion and as such its decision to
allow employees to utilize this procedure does not affect the at-will status of any District employee.
The District reserves the right to impose any level of discipline it deems appropriate without
adhering to the procedures detailed herein. Employees should not construe this Grievance
Procedure as a promise or guatantee of continued employment for any specified period of time,
nor does it require that an employee be discharged only for cause.

These procedures are designed to resolve grievances informally and to provide an orderly
procedure for such resolution.

Each person involved in a grievance shall act quickly so that the grievance may be solved
promptly. Each person shall make every effort possible to complete action within the time limits
contained within these grievance procedures; however, the other parties involved may agree to
extend the time limits.

An employee or employees should present grievances as soon as possible after the event or events
that gave rise to the concerns by submitting a brief written grievance to his or her immediate
supervisor. The written grievance should set forth the factual and other basis for the employee’s
complaint. The employee shall strive to submit the written grievance within five (5) working days
after the facts which gave rise to the grievance.

Initially, a grievance shall be personally discussed between the employee and his or her supervisor.
The employee shall have a decision or response from the supervisor within five (5) working days.

L. If a grievance is not resolved to the satisfaction of the grievant at the first informal
step, the grievant may initiate a formal grievance in writing. The formal grievance
shall be initiated within ten (10) working days of the decision rendered in the
informal grievance procedure. A formal written grievance shall state the date and
nature of the grievance, and shall state all specific facts or omissions upon which
the grievance is based. The formal grievance shall be filed with the General
ManagerBoard of Directors.

2. Within five (3) working days after the filing of the formal grievance, the Generat
ManagerBoard of Directors shall give his or her decision in writing to the grievant.

3. If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered by the General
ManasesBoard of Directors, the grievant may appeal the decision in writing within

65261.00001\30567852.1 51

[

Commented [CN7]: Consider removing, unless this a pre-

established policy.

100



five (5) working days to the Board of Directors. If the grievant does not appeal the
decision to the Board in writing within five (5) working days, the issue will be
considered settled. The appeal shall state the date and nature of the grievance, and
shall state all specific facts or omissions upon which the appeal is based.

4. At its next available regular meeting following the filing of the appeal, the Board
shall have a meeting with the grievant and/or his representative. After considering
the matter, the Board shall issue a decision concerning the employee’s appeal. The
grievant will be notified in writing of the board’s decision. The decision of the
Board of Directors shall be final.

Q. INSPECTIONS/SEARCHES

The District believes that maintenance of a workplace that is free of drugs, alcohol and other
harmful materials is vital to the health and safety of its employees and to the success of the
business. The District also intends to protect against the unauthorized removal of District property.
In addition, the District intends to ensure its access at all times to District premises and District
property, equipment, information, records, documents, and files. Accordingly, the District has
established this policy concerning inspections and searches for prohibited materials and for District
property on District premises. This policy applies to all employees.

1. Definitions:

a. “Prohibited materials” means firearms or other weapons, explosives and/or
hazardous materials or articles, illegal drugs or other controlled substances,
drug-related paraphernalia, alcoholic beverages, or District property that
you are not authorized to have in your possession

b. “District premises” includes all premises and locations owned or leased by
District, or under the control of the District, including parking lots and
storage areas.

¢. “Reasonable suspicion” includes a suspicion that is based on specific
personal observations such as an employee’s manner, disposition, muscular
movement, appearance, behavior, speech, breath odor, information
provided to management by law enforcement officials, by a security service,
or by other persons belicved to be reliable or a suspicion that is based on
other surrounding circumstances.

d. Possession” means having the substance or property on one’s person or
otherwise under one’s control.

Access to District Property - In order to assure access at all times to District property and because
you may not always be available to produce various documents, records, files or other items of
District property that are properly in your possession when they are needed in the ordinary conduct
of the District’s business, the District reserves the right to conduct a routine inspection or search,
at any time, for District property. In addition, the District reserves the right to access at all times
information and communications stored in District computer files, on District mobile devices, and
in District voicemail boxes and email systems.

Routine searches or inspections for District property may include an employee’s office, desk, file
cabinet, closet, computer files, voice mail, electronic mail, District-issued electronic device or

65261.00001\30567852.1 52

{

Commented [CN8]: Consider removing, given administrative

burden.

J

101



similar places where employees may store District property or District-related information,
whether or not the places are locked or protected by access codes and/or passwords.

Because even a routine search for District property might result in the discovery of an employee’s
personal possessions, all employees are encouraged to refrain from bringing into the workplace
any item of personal property that they do not wish to reveal to the District.

Prohibited Materials - Inspections or searches for prohibited materials on District premises will be
conducted whenever the District has reasonable suspicion to believe that you may be in possession
of such materials, in violation of this policy.

Note: Inspections or searches for District property and/or prohibited
materials may include your office, desk, file cabinet, closet or
similar places where you may place personal possessions, whether
or not such places are locked. Inspection or searches for prohibited
materials may also include your vehicle (when on District premises),
or your pockets, purse, briefcase, lunch box, or other item of
personal property that you possess while on District premises.

If you are found to be in possession of prohibited materials in violation of this policy and/or in
violation of other related guidelines, you will be subject to discipline, up to and including
termination, regardless of the reason for conducting the search or inspection.

If you refuse to cooperate with a search or inspection that is based on reasonable suspicion that
you are in possession of prohibited materials, the District may take that refusal into consideration
in determining appropriate disciplinary action. Discipline will be based on all available
information, including the information giving rise to the reasonable suspicion. It is therefore to
your advantage to cooperate with the search or inspection, whenever prohibited materials are
present.

R. PERSONAL PROPERTY

The District is not liable for lost, misplaced or stolen property. Employees should take all
precautions necessary to safeguard their personal possessions. Employees should refrain from
having their personal mail sent to the District because mail may be automatically opened.

Employee work areas and any othet District property are subject to inspections and searches at any
time, with or without notice. Desks and office areas are to be kept as neat and organized as possible.

65261.00001\30567852.1 53

102



VIIL EMPLOYMENT SEPARATION

A. RESIGNATION

Employees are requested to provide a minimum of two (2) weeks’ written notice of their intent to
resign, though it is not required. An employee’s notice of resignation to voluntarily terminate
employment with the District should be submitted to his/her supervisor or manager. An exit
interview may be requested.

B. TERMINATION

As detailed further in Section ILC.. Aall employment with the District is “at will” employment.
This means that the employee has not been hired for a specified duration, but that he/she can
terminate his/her employment with the District or the District can terminate the employment at
any time, with or without cause, and with or without prior notice. An employee’s at-will
employment status cannot be changed by any oral modifications.

C. PERSONAL POSSESSIONS & RETURN OF DISTRICT PROPERTY

Any District property issued to employees, such as computer equipment, keys, tools, or District
credit cards, must be returned to the District at the time of termination. Employees will be
responsible for any lost or damaged items. Upon separation of employment, employees are to
remove their personal possessions.

65261.00001130567852.1 54

103



IX. MISCELLANEOUS

A. PERSONAL VEHICLE USAGE

Employees are not to drive a personal vehicle for District business unless authorized to do so. If
the job requires an employee to operate his/her personal vehicle, then the employee shall be
required to submit proof of a current and valid state driver’s license. If employees use their own
vehicle, either by authorization or requirement, to carry out the business of the District, they must
submit a photocopy of the cover page of their insurance policy covering that vehicle as proof of
that insurance. The employee is also required to provide the District with an accurate accounting
as to the mileage and other costs of operating the employee’s own vehicle so the district may
adequately compensate the employee for use of their personal vehicle.

Insurance must be maintained current as a term and condition of continuing employment for that
particular position.

B. PARKING

The District provides employees with parking at no cost. All parking is at an employee’s own risk.
It is recommended that employees and visitors lock their vehicle and take other appropriate
safeguards. Employees are not to park in areas reserved for visitors.

65261.00001\30567852.1 55

104



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

1 have received, read, and am familiar with the Stallion Springs Community Services DistrictEast
Kern Health Care District Employee Handbook. I specifically acknowledge that I have read and
understand the following policies: Equal Employment, Reasonable Accommodations, At-Will
Employment Status, General Conduct Guidelines, Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation
Reporting, Anti-Bullying, Overtime, Paid Sick Leave, Family Care Leaves, Pregnancy/Childbirth
(Pregnancy Disability Leave — PDL), Drugs & Alcohol, Workplace Violence and Security, and
Inspections/Searches. I agree to abide by the provisions of the Employee Handbook. T understand
that my employment with Stallioa-Springs-Community-Services DistrietEast Kern Health Care
District is “at-will,” as detailed further in Section II.C.. which means that both the District and I
may terminate the employment relationship at any time, for any reason or no reason, with or
without notice. I understand that the District may modify or revise this Handbook from time to
time at its sole discretion, with or without notice. I also understand that only an Officer of the
District can make an agreement to alter the at-will employment, and that such an agreement must
be in writing and signed by the Officer.

I understand that the District retains the right to make decisions involving employment as needed
in order to conduct its work in a manner that is beneficial to its employees and the District.

My signature below certifies that T understand that the foregoing concerning my employment and
the circumstances under which my employment may be terminated. I also understand that if I
violate the rules, policies, and procedutes set forth herein that I may be subject to discipline, up to
and including termination of my employment. This Handbook supersedes all prior agreements,
understandings, and representations concerning my employment. I understand that this Handbook
refers to current benefit plans maintained by the District and that I must refer to the actual plan
documents and summary plan descriptions as these documents are controlling. I understand that if
I have questions regarding this Handbook that I can discuss with the General ManagerBoard of
Directors.

I have had a chance to review this Acknowledgment of Receipt of Employee Handbook with a
District representative, and/or with an attorney of my own choosing. I execute this Agreement
intentionally and voluntarily, and agree to be bound by its terms.

Dated Signature
Print Name
65261.00001\30567852.1 56

105



8/27/2021 Gmail - RESOLUTION AND BOARD ITEMS

M Gmaﬂ East Kern Health Care District <eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com>

RESOLUTION AND BOARD ITEMS

4 messages

East Kern Health Care District <eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com> Wed, Aug 18, 2021 at 8:17 AM
To: Alex Lemieux <ALemieux@omlolaw.com>
Cc: David <daranda300@gmail.com>

Good morning Alex;

Attached is a resolution that is on the agenda, David said to forward to you for pre-approval. He also wanted me to check
with you on the status of the handbook review. With that said, | am attaching the proposed resolution, the Handbook, and
the draft agenda for the September meeting.

Thanks,

Linda Cook

East Kern Health Care District
Consultant

Phone 760-373-2804

Cell: 661 220-6100

Fax 760-373-1054

PO Box 2546

California City CA 93504

3 attachments

@ Resolution 21-08-01 Designating Reserve Accounts.DOC
= 44K

@ EKHCD Employee Handbook With Markups.docx
841K

~ September 7 2021 regular meeting agenda.docx
— 75K

Alexander Lemieux <ALemieux@omlolaw.com> Wed, Aug 18, 2021 at 2:36 PM
To: East Kern Health Care District <eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com>
Cc: David <daranda300@gmail.com>

Good Afternoon Linda — | have no issues with the proposed resolution. Regarding the handbook, | have forwarded it to
my colleague that specializes in employment law for a once-over. | don't really anticipate any issues since its already
been vetted.

Alex Lemieux

OLIVAREZ MADRUGA LEMIEUX O'NEILL, LLP

500 S GRAND AVE, FLOOR 12, LOS ANGELES, CA 90071
TEL: 213.213.9835 * FAX: 213.744.0093

[Quoted text hidden] l ’Q 6

East Kern Health Care District <eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com> Wed, Aug 18, 2021 at 3:27 PM
To: Alexander Lemieux <ALemieux@omlolaw.com>

hitne-lImail annnla rnmimailiiNik=7TRAaR710d1 Rusiow=ntleaarrh=sl&narmthid=thrasd_a0L2Ar7RQRIRRAR220RAA NORRcimnl=men_all2Ar7RRRA7R0 112



9/3/2021 Gmail - Fwd: Employee Manual

N’ G maﬂ East Kern Health Care District <eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com>

Fwd: Employee Manual
2 messages

david aranda <daranda300@gmail.com> Wed, Sep 1, 2021 at 7:57 PM

To: eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com
Linda. We can talk about this Friday morning thanks
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Alexander Lemieux <alemieux@omlolaw.com>

Date: September 1, 2021 at 4:31:36 PM PDT

To: David <daranda300@gmail.com>, Rubi Foley <directorfoley@ekhcd.org>
Subject: RE: Employee Manual

Hello Rubi and David. | had our employment law specialist look at the handbook. Attached is the
handbook with some of his suggested revisions in redline. He also left a few comments for sections that
the District may want to consider removing—some of which would just add an unnecessary
administrative burden, in his opinion--unless there’s some underlying reason to keep it. Let me know if
you have any questions.

From: David <daranda300@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, August 9, 2021 11:17 AM

To: 'Rubi Foley' <directorfoley@ekhcd.org>; Alexander Lemieux <ALemieux@omlolaw.com>
Subject: FW: Employee Manual

Hello Rubi and Alex: | had Linda mark up the Stallion Employee Policy Book for the both of you to
review. Some items noted in yellow, | was not sure if the East Kern Health Care District should have in
their book. Please provide me comments ASAP so that we can present a clean copy to the Board for
approval. Thankyou. Rubi, a reminder that | asked you to look at Pads and make a recommendation
what we want to purchase for the Board of Directors. Thanks David.

From: Linda Cook [mailto:admin@ekhcd.org]
Sent: Monday, August 9, 2021 8:45 AM

To: David Aranda <daranda300@gmail.com>
Subject: Employee Manual

See attached updated employee manual. 1 0 7

hitps://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=764e5719d1 &view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-{%3A1709757 130280486489&dsqt=18&simpl=msg-f%3A17089...

1/3



AGENDA SUPPORTING INFORMATION AGENDA#15

Subject: Approval of the Finance Manager and Office
Manager's Job Descriptions for EKHCD.

Submitted by:  David Aranda, BHI Consultant
Meeting Date: September 7, 2021

Background:  The Board of Directors has approved two part time
positions for the district. One individual, Linda Cook is
the Finance Manager currently working part time for
the district. Her job description is attached. The other
position is the agreed upon part time office manager
position that is currently being advertised. The job
description is attached.

Recommendation: Approve both job descriptions.

108



East Kern Health Care District

Finance Manager
Job Description

Job Title: Finance Manager REPORTS TO: Board

Hours of Work: Flexible Schedule: Flexible Part-Time
Location: District Office/Home Travel Required: | As needed

Hourly: $40.00/hr Position Type: Part Time

HR Contact: General Manager Date posted:

Applicant(s): Linda Cook Posting Expires:

Applications Accepted By:

PHONE OR E-MAIL: MaiL: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EAsT KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
8101 BAY AVENUE
CALIFORNIA CiTY, CA 93505

Job Description

DEFlNITION/SUMMARY:

UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AND WITH A MINIMUM OF SUPERVISION:

>
>

YV V VY

V V.V V V VYV V VYV V

PROCESS ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
INVOICES: TO TENANTS

PERFORMS RECEPTIONIST DUTIES AS NEEDED.

PREPARES MISCELLANEOUS DOCUMENTS RELATED TO ACCOUNTING.

PREPARES ALL EXCEL SPREADSHEETS, JOURNAL VOUCHERS, ETC., TO UPDATE RECORDS FOR PAYROLL, ACCOUNTS
RECEIVABLE, AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

PREPARES MONTHLY AND YEAR TO DATE PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENTS EACH MONTH.
PREPARES TRANSFERS OF FUNDS BETWEEN BANK ACCOUNTS AND FUND ACCOUNTS.
PREPARES BUDGET VERSUS ACTUAL REPORTS EACH MONTH.

PREPARES BALANCE SHEET FOR ALL BANK ACCOUNTS AND DISTRICT FUND ACCOUNTS.
BALANCES AND RECONCILES BANK/FUND ACCOUNTS EACH MONTH.

PREPARES A MONTHLY SPREADSHEET FOR BANK BALANCES FOR BOARD PACKET.
PREPARES A SPREADSHEET OF MONTHLY PROPERTY TAX INCOME.

PREPARES REPORTS AS REQUESTED BY THE BOARD & CONSULTANTS.

MAINTAINS THE SIGNATURE CARDS AND FORMS FOR ALL BANK ACCOUNTS.

109




>

DOES THE REPORTS FOR AND ACCOUNTING FOR THE PRE AND FINAL YEARLY AUDITS WHICH ARE AUDITED BY A
FIRM THAT IS SPECIALIZED IN GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES.

> IMAINTAINS AND UPDATES THE DISTRICTS FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION RECORDS ALONG WITH CPA.
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:
>  HiGH ScHOOL DIPLOMA WITH BUSINESS EMPHASIS, OR THE EQUIVALENT THEREOF; ASSOCIATE DEGREE IN
COMPUTER SCIENCE, ACCOUNTING, OR BUSINESS, OR THE EQUIVALENCY THEREOF.
> SHALL POSSESS A VALID CALIFORNIA DRIVER’S LICENSE AND SATISFACTORY DRIVING RECORD.
> IMUST POSSESS FOUR YEARS OF INCREASINGLY RESPONSIBLE CLERICAL AND SECRETARIAL EXPERIENCE, AND IN
KEEPING OR REVIEWING ACCOUNTING OR FISCAL RECORDS.
> KNOWLEDGE OF DISTRICT POLICIES & PROCEDURES.
> KNOWLEDGE OF BASIC/ELEMENTARY ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES.
>  ABILITY TO ACCURATELY TYPE AT A MINIMUM SPEED OF FORTY (40) WORDS PER MINUTE
> ABILITY TO PROFICIENTLY OPERATE 10-KEY ADDING MACHINE
>  ABILITY TO PROFICIENTLY USE, OR QUICKLY LEARN; MICROSOFT WORD, EXCEL AND QUICK BOOKS PROCESSING
SOFTWARE, QUICKBOOKS ONLINE.
ENVIRONMENTAL DEMANDS:
» OUTSIDE: SELDOM WORKS OUTSIDE IN A VARIETY OF WEATHER CONDITIONS RANGING FROM SNOW TO +100°
> INSIDE: ALMOST ALWAYS WORKS INDOORS IN TEMPERATURE-CONTROLLED ENVIRONMENT.
> FUMES/GASES: EXPOSURE TO VARIOUS COLOGNES/PERFUMES, FUMES FROM PRINTING CARTRIDGES AND DUST
FROM STORED SUPPLIES.
> Noise/VIBRATION: OFFICE MIACHINES.
MENTAL REQUIREMENTS:
> READING: READ LETTERS, REPORTS, MEMOS, MESSAGES, COMPLEX FINANCIAL DOCUMENTS, AND OPERATING
MANUALS FOR OFFICE EQUIPMENT.
> WRITING: WRITES REPORTS, LETTERS, MEMOS, MESSAGES; FILLS OUT FORMS AND DOCUMENTS.
» MATH: ABILITY TO PERFORM SEMI COMPLEX MATH AND ACCOUNTING CALCULATIONS. ABILITY TO APPLY
CONCEPTS SUCH AS FRACTIONS AND PERCENTAGES, RATIOS AND PROPORTIONS TO PRACTICAL SITUATIONS.
> ATTENTION TO DETAIL: HIGH LEVEL CONCENTRATION AND ATTENTION TO DETAIL FOR EXTENDED PERIODS OF
TIME REQUIRED IN PRODUCING REPORTS, CORRESPONDENCE, AND DOCUMENTS.
> REPETITION: ROUTINE DAILY WORK PRACTICES, INCLUDING KEYBOARDING AND OPERATION OF OTHER OFFICE
MACHINES, FILING, ETC.
> JUDGEMENT: ABILITY TO WORK INDEPENDENTLY, PRIORITIZE WORK AND MAKE DECISIONS REGARDING CORRECT
FORMATTING OF WORK AND IMPLEMENTATION OF SAME. ABILITY TO DEFINE PROBLEMS, COLLECT DATA,
ESTABLISH FACTS, AND DRAW VALID CONCLUSIONS. ABILITY TO WORK FACE-TO-FACE WITH OTHERS AND
FORMULATE APPROPRIATE INSTRUCTIONS TO ACHIEVE DESIRED GOALS.
» SOCIAL SKILLS; ABILITY TO RELATE COOPERATIVELY WITH MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC, AND DISTRICT PERSONNEL.
» COMMUNICATION SKILLS: ABILITY TO QUICKLY ORGANIZE AND COMMUNICATE THOUGHTS ORALLY AND

WRITTEN. ABILITY TO UNDERSTAND COMMUNICATIONS FROM OTHERS




East Kern Health Care District Mo B ot kon

EALTH
CARE

Finance Manager

A

Job Description

DISTRICT

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS:

»  ABILITY TO STAND FOR EXTENDED PERIODS OF TIME.

> ABILITY TO HEAR AND UNDERSTAND SPEECH AT NORMAL LEVELS
> ABILITY TO COMMUNICATE SO OTHERS WILL BE ABLE TO CLEARLY UNDERSTAND A NORMAL CONVERSATION.
> ABILITY TO BEND AND TWIST, SIT, STOOP, KNEEL, PUSH, PULL, AND CRAWL.
> ABILITY TO LIFT 50 POUNDS.
> ABILITY TO CARRY 25 POUNDS.
> ABILITY TO REACH IN ALL DIRECTIONS.
> ABILITY TO WORK AT HEIGHTS.
> ABILITY TO ASCEND AND DESCEND A STEP LADDER.
Reviewed By: Date:
Approved By: Date:

111



B East Kern Health Care District

DRAFT: Job Description
Office Manager

DISTRICT

Job Title: Office Manager REPORTS TO: Board of Directors
Hours of Work: Varies Based on Job needs Schedule: Approximately 16-20 hours per
On-Call Requirements week
Location: District Office Travel Required: | As needed
Level/Salary Range: | $17.00-$25.00 /hr Position Type: Part Time
HR Contact: Date posted:
Applicant(s): Posting Expires:
Applications Accepted By:
PHONE OR E-MAIL: MaiL:
eastkernhealthcaredistrict@gmail.com East Kern Health Care District
760-373-2804 or 661-220-6100 8101 Bay Avenue
California City, CA 93505

Job Description

DEFINITION/SUMMARY:

THE OFFICE IMANAGER OVERSEES DAY TO DAY OPERATIONS OF THE DISTRICT. THE INDIVIDUAL WILL ADMINISTER THE
DISTRICT AND HAS EXCLUSIVE MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF THE OPERATIONS AND WORKS OF THE DISTRICT, SUBJECT
TO APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AND PROVIDES DAY-TO-DAY LEADERSHIP FOR THE DISTRICT.

> ATTENDS ALL MEETINGS OF THE DISTRICT BOARD, AND SUCH OTHER MEETINGS AS THE BOARD
SPECIFIES FROM TIME TO TIME.

> EMPLOYS SUCH ASSISTANTS AND OTHER EMPLOYEES AS IS DEEMED NECESSARY FOR THE PROPER
ADMINISTRATION OF THE DISTRICT AND THE PROPER OPERATION OF THE WORKS OF THE DISTRICT.

> MAINTAINS A CORDIAL RELATIONSHIP WITH ALL PERSONS ENTITLED TO THE SERVICES OF THE DISTRICT,
AND ATTEMPTS TO RESOLVE ALL PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE COMPLAINTS. SHOULD ENCOURAGE CITIZEN
PARTICIPATION IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE DISTRICT.

> SEEKS TO CARRY INTO EFFECT THE EXPRESSED POLICIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, INCLUDING
PLANNING THE SHORT, MEDIUM, AND LONG-TERM WORK PROGRAM FOR THE DISTRICT, FACILITATING
CONSTRUCTIVE AND HARMONIOUS BOARD RELATIONS. SHALL TRANSLATE THE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
OF THE BOARD TO THE COMMUNITY.

> SHALL PREPARE AND MANAGE THE DISTRICT BUDGET, CONDUCTING STUDIES, MAKING ORAL AND
WRITTEN PRESENTATION.

>  WILLING TO MEET WITH CONTRACTORS, LIGHT CLEANING

SUMMARY: THE OFFICE MANAGER WILL PROVIDE RECEPTIONIST DUTIES, TELEPHONE SUPPORT AND
VARIOUS ADMINISTRATIVE WORK TO MAKE THE AGENCY FUNCTION PROPERLY. THIS INDIVIDUAL WORKS
UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, PER POLICY. THIS INDIVIDUAL WOULD ALSO 11

1



East Kern Health Care District
DRAFT: Job Description
Office Manager

REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:

DESIRABLE QUALIFICATIONS:

ENVIRONMENTAL DEMANDS:

»

>
>

>

MENTAL REQUIREMENTS:

>

>

TRAINING MODE FROM THE START TO LEARN THE OTHER RELATED FUNCTIONS, MANAGEMENT OF THE
DISTRICT, WORKING WITH AN ELECTED BOARD AND EVENTUALLY GAINING THE FORMAL POSITION OF

BOARD CLERK. THE POSITION HAS SIGNIFICANT OPPORTUNITY FOR AN UPWARDLY MOBILE INDIVIDUAL
LOOKING FOR A CAREER. TRAINING WILL BE ENCOURAGED AND SUPPORTED AND LEARNING ON THE JOB WILL
BE DAILY.

> MUST POSSESS A VALID CALIFORNIA DRIVER’S LICENSE.
> MUST HAVE GOOD COMMUNICATION AND BE A MOTIVATOR

> UNDERSTANDS THE CHALLENGES OF RUNNING AN OFFICE.

> POSSESSION OF A SPECIAL DISTRICTS ADMINISTRATION CERTIFICATE.
> THE ABILITY TO EFFICIENTLY PREPARE ANNUAL BUDGETS AND LONG-TERM REVENUE/OUTLAY PLANS.

> THE ABILITY TO EFFECTIVELY COMMUNICATE, BOTH WRITTEN AND VERBAL, WITH THE CONSTITUENTS
AND OTHER AGENCY PERSONNEL.

> THE ABILITY TO MEET AND SERVE THE PUBLIC COURTEOUSLY AND EFFICIENTLY.

OUTSIDE: FROM TIME TO TIME WILL WORK OUTSIDE IN A VARIETY OF WEATHER CONDITIONS RANGING FROM
SNOW TO +100°

INSIDE: ALMOST ALWAYS WORKS INDOORS IN TEMPERATURE-CONTROLLED ENVIRONMENT.

FUMES/GASES: EXPOSURE TO VARIOUS COLOGNES/PERFUMES, FUMES FROM PRINTING CARTRIDGES AND DUST
FROM STORED SUPPLIES.

NOISE/VIBRATION: OFFICE MACHINES.

READING: READ LETTERS, REPORTS, MEMOS, MESSAGES, COMPLEX FINANCIAL DOCUMENTS, AND OPERATING
MANUALS FOR OFFICE EQUIPMENT.

WRITING: WRITES REPORTS, LETTERS, MEMOS, MESSAGES; FILLS OUT FORMS AND DOCUMENTS.

MATH: ABILITY TO PERFORM SEMI -COMPLEX MATH AND ACCOUNTING CALCULATIONS. ABILITY TO APPLY
CONCEPTS SUCH AS FRACTIONS AND PERCENTAGES TO PRACTICAL SITUATIONS.

ATTENTION TO DETAIL: HIGH LEVEL CONCENTRATION AND ATTENTION TO DETAIL FOR EXTENDED PERIODS OF
TIME REQUIRED PRODUCING REPORTS, CORRESPONDENCE, AND DOCUMENTS.

113



East Kern Health Care District
DRAFT: Job Description
Office Manager

B oot Ken
IEALTH

" CARE

DISTRlCT

> REPETITION: ROUTINE DAILY WORK PRACTICES, INCLUDING KEYBOARDING AND OPERATION OF OTHER OFFICE
MACHINES, FILING, ETC.

> JUDGMENT: ABILITY TO WORK INDEPENDENTLY, PRIORITIZE WORK AND MAKE DECISIONS REGARDING CORRECT
APPLICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF WORK PROCEDURES. ABILITY TO DEFINE PROBLEMS, COLLECT DATA,
ESTABLISH FACTS, AND DRAW VALID CONCLUSIONS. ABILITY TO WORK FACE-TO-FACE WITH OTHERS AND
FORMULATE APPROPRIATE INSTRUCTIONS TO ACHIEVE DESIRED GOALS.

SOCIAL SKILLS:

> ABILITY TO RELATE COOPERATIVELY WITH MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC, AND DISTRICT PERSONNEL.

COMMUNICATION SKILLS:

> ABILITY TO QUICKLY ORGANIZE AND COMMUNICATE THOUGHTS ORALLY AND WRITTEN. ABILITY TO
UNDERSTAND COMMUNICATIONS FROM OTHERS.

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS:

> THIS POSITION REQUIRES 6+ HOURS SITTING, 1-3 HOURS STANDING, WALKING, PUSHING, PULLING STOOPING,
BENDING, KNEELING, GRASPING AND GRIPPING. FREQUENTLY REQUIRES 3-6 HOURS OF REPETITIVE MOVEMENTS,
TALKING, HEARING, READING, WRITING, FILING, AND TYPING. RARELY REQUIRES CLIMBING OR TWISTING AND

CRAWLING.
Reviewed By: Date:
Approved By: Date:

114



AGENDA SUPPORTING INFORMATION AGENDA # 16

Subject: Discussion and approval to spend money for the
following capital item’s;

A. Rooftop AC $8,000.

B. Sprinkler System Inspection, Fire Extinguishers
$3,400
C. Fire Monitoring $4,000

D. Cement Pad at Adventist Health Modular $2000.
Submitted by:  David Aranda, BHI Consultant
Meeting Date: September 7, 2021

Background:  The District has not expended money on the needed
repairs both at the Bay Building and the N. Loop Buildings. Since my
arrival | have spent a good deal of time contacting various
vendors/contractors to move forward with needed repairs. This agenda
item attempts to start the process of needed items the district must
expend to meet fire requirements, requests of tenants, protect the
district against a liability claim and to provide nice business/medical
offices for our tenants.

A. Expend up to $8000 for a rooftop AC unit that provides air
conditioning in the Bartz building at 9300 N. Loop. The
district has used Reliable to perform various ac repairs both
at N. Loop and at Bay Ave. Reliable has provided the
needed support and made the repairs except for the rooftop
unit that supports air on a portion of the Bartz building. In
speaking to Reliable the unit that is not working is very old
and he cannot locate where the leak is in the coil system.
He is and has provided a quote for $6950 but the bid does



not include any duct repair/replacement that may be
needed.

| went into the Bartz building and spoke to their staff. The
lack of the A/C is effecting their server and other equipment
in the building so my concern is not only the comfort level of
the employees, patients but also the possibility of their
equipment failing by overheating.

| have contact five other AC companies in California City
and Tehachapi and found three do not provide commercial
service and two never returned my message.

Recommendation: Approve spending up to $8000 in assigning
Reliable Air Conditioning and Heating to provide a
new 4-ton AC unit at 9300 N. Loop.

B. The district had the Bay Ave. building inspected by the Fire
Chief which produced several specific items the district must
take care of per building/fire code. The sprinkler system
needs to have repairs made to the actual sprinklers, fire
extinguishers need to be replaced and the sprinkler system
must have a testing done of the system.
| contacted two contractors that specialize in this work. One
of the contractors toured the building but has failed to
provide me a price. The other contractor toured the
building, and his quote is $3,400.
Recommendation: Approve expending up to $4,380.00 for the sprinkler
system to be tested, sprinklers repaired and new fire extinguishers as
per fire code for the Bay Ave. Building.
C. In addition to the above-mentioned requirements the district
must also have a company monitor the fire alarm system.

1160



This involves a one-time installation cost and a monthly
cost. The company that does the burglar alarm monitoring
does not provide fire alarm monitoring. A company by the
name of Tel Tec came out and provide a quote for installing
a fire alarm monitoring system $302.65 and a monthly cost
to monitor the system $55/month.
Recommendation: At this point in my putting this report together |
would recommend the board approving contracting with Tel Tec to
provide the work and enter into a monthly monitoring agreement with
them.

D. The modular that was installed for Adventist Health did not
have a concrete pad constructed as people enter the stairs
to enter the building (the ADA ramp does have the concrete
pad, but few use that entrance because it is further away
from the office). The lack of the concrete pad is a concern
and a liability both for the employees of Adventist Health
and their customers. Because it is on the district property
the district would end up in a lawsuit should anyone get hurt.

Recommendation: Hire Sepulveda Development to perform the work at
a cost of $1800.

With this ASI | would like to inform the board of other concerns and
needs the district must consider regarding repair and maintenance of
the Bay Ave. building and N. Loop buildings. | am hopeful that we will
be able to consider and resolve the following issues in a timely manner.
1. Does the Board wish to pay Sepulveda Development
$4,380.00 to perform a walk-through of all the buildings and
prioritize a list of work that needs to be done?
117



. There are necessary roof repairs with estimates from
Sepulveda Development for $78,562 for the Bay Ave. building
and $72,502 for the three buildings at N. Loop.

. There are the repairs to the Bay Ave. building as required by
the Fire Department for $21,670 as priced by Sepulveda
Development.

. There is the need to place a shade protection in front of
Adventist Health. Sepulveda Development recommends the
district purchase a gazebo from Costco (I saw a picture of one
he installed, looks nice) and he would install the unit with a
concrete pad $12,000.

. There is the need to remove a tree and bushes around the
front of the Adventist building and trim the other tree in front of
WestPoint Therapy. We have approval for this already.

. There is a need to redo the landscaping around all buildings to
make the property more drought resistant and less costly to
operate.

. There is a need to replace worn and tattered carpet which is a
definite trip hazard both at WestPoint Therapy and the Dr.’s
office. Replacement of the carpet with plank flooring is
$14,325.

. | may have more information about what is presented in this
AS| at the Board meeting on September 7, 2021.

. It should be noted that plumbing repairs were taken care of in
the Bay Ave. bathrooms, locks were changed but some more
work needs to be done and cleaning of the Bay Ave. building is
being done.

118



D -2, 1347 OGDEN STREET
:';? Q % BAKERSFIELD, CALIFORNIA 93305
= S LICENSE #534644
TEL: 661-322-1681 FAX: 661-322-4128
DATE: 9-1-2021

SUBIJECT: FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM REPAIR

JOB NAME:

BAY AVENUE BUILDING
8101 BAY AVE
CALIFORNIA CITY, CA

ATTN: DAVID

WE INCLUDE IN THIS QUOTATION REPLACING 13 PAINTED HEADS, INSTALLING A FDC SIGN, INSTALLING AN INSPECTORS
VALVE ON THE RISER, INSTALLING A CALC-PLATE AT THE ABOVE-MENTIONED PROJECT. WE INCLUDE ALL MATERIALS,
TAXES, DESIGN, AND PERMITS AND LABOR FOR THIS INSTALLATION. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO NFPA 13 AND

AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION REQUIREMENTS.

PRICE: THREE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED DOLLARS AND 00 /100

Hkkkk $3,40000 *RAkkd

CLARIJFICATIONS:

EXCLUSIONS:

1) PAINTING AND OR PATCHING OF WALLS OR
CEILINGS

2) FIRE ALARMS

3) INSULATING PIPE, IF REQUIRED

4) STRUCTURAL CALCULATIONS, IF REQUIRED

5) CUTTING STRUCTURAL MEMBERS TO CONCEAL
PIPING

6) ADDING STRUCTURAL WOOD OR STEEL TO
SUPPORT OUR PIPING

7) UNDERGROUND PLUMBING AND PIPING

8) ANTI-FREEZE SYSTEM, IF REQUIRED

9) SCAFFOLDING, IF REQUIRED

APPROVED BY:

10)
11)

12)
13)

15)
16)

17)

18)

RAISING AND OR LOWERING ANY EXISTING MAINS
OR LINES

PAINTING AND OR PATCHING OF WALLS OR
CEILINGS

SHUT DOWN FEES

PREVAILING WAGE

FIRE WATCH

UPGRADING SEISMIC BRACING AND OR HANGERS
SEPARATION OF SYSTEM FROM ADJACENT TENANT
SPACE

SPECIAL COLOR MATCHING FOR SPRINKLER
COVER PLATES

REPAIRS TO EXISTING SYSTEM

DATE:

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS FEEL FREE TO CONTACT
ME:

YOURS TRULY:

CHRIS PURSEL

BILLING:
COMPANY:

ATTN:

ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE, ZIP:

PHONE:

EMAIL:

119



Sepulveda Development i nvoice

" 21860 Everett Drive
california city

LIC. 812305

Bili Ta: Invoice# 555

East kernt Health. Invoice Date 8/16/2021
8101 Bay ave California

California City, 93505 invoice valid till  8/30/2021

Determination report and inspection for 8101 bay ave and 21900 8.2 4380.00
the 4 building on 9278 north loop Blvd. This report is 1o tell

u what needs to be fixed immediately. What needs to be

addressed in the next 6 month's. what needs to be

addressed in the next 12 month's. The 9278 north ioop has

4 buildings equaling 9,000 gf the 8101 Bay has 1 building

equaling 12,000 gf

4380.00

Total $4380.00

i was great doing business with you.

% . lmvoice

120



AGENDA SUPPORTING INFORMATION AGENDA #17

Subject: Discussion and possible approval of Adventist
Health request for East Kern Health Care District
to expend $30,241.00 for the painting of the
interior of the building (not the modular) and
replacing flooring that was not replaced via an
Adventist Health Care District Grant.

Submitted by: David Aranda, BHI Consultant
Meeting Date: September 7, 2021

Background: Attached please find a letter from Adventist Health
representative Jim Didion. His letter is self-
explanatory. The lease agreement between East
Kern Health Care District and Adventist Health
states a specific dollar amount to replace specific
flooring and then states a phase two list of items
with no specific dollar amount or vendor.

As noted in his letter he is requesting East Kern
Health Care District to spend $30,241.00 for both
flooring and painting.

My recommendation based on an estimate |
received from a local painter of $8000 is to give
Adventist Health two options:

1. The Board of Directors approve the flooring
quote from C.B.C.M. for $17,423 and East Kern

Health Care District will obtain quotes for painting
the interior. OR,

2. The Board of Directors approve the flooring
and painting quote by C.B.C.M. and pay $25,500

of the $30,241.
121

A few notes of interest:



1. The work that Solutions and More performed
was so poor that Adventist Health called back
C.B.C.M. to replace certain portions of the job.

2. Adventist Health expended grant money to
have portions of the floor replaced. The grant
money was used for several items in the Adventist
Health office and the grant money was not enough
to cover replacing all the floors, thus the
agreement in the October 1, 2020, lease.

3. C.B.C.M. is out of Bakersfield but does
extensive work for Adventist Health and Adventist
Health is very satisfied with their work.

| walked the job with Bonnie from Adventist Health
and C.B.C.M. representatives and am comfortable
with the work that needs to be done and the
vendor they are asking to do the work.

Recommendation: See Options 1&2 as presented, and | would
strongly encourage the board to approve one of
the two options, or the Board approve allowing
Adventist Health to choose which option they
would prefer.

122



August 25,2021

Mr. Dave Aranda and Board of Directors
East Kern Healthcare District

PO Box 2546

California City, CA 93505

Re: Improvements to 9350 North Loop Blvd., California City, CA 93505
Dear Mr. Aranda and Board Members,

Adventist Health Tehachapi Valley has leased and occupied the above referenced location since October 1, 2017
following the agreement between Adventist Health and Tehachapi Healthcare District. The original lease was extended
October 1,2020. As part of the extension, both parties agreed to certain improvements desired by both Adventist
Health and East Kern Healthcare District, outlined in lease dated October 1, 2020, Section 18.

The agreement states in Section 18(b) that the District will pay directly to Solutions and More the amount of $17,830.00
for the replacement of the viny! flooring in three exam rooms, waiting room, and restroom. Adventist Health hired
Solutions and More to provide other services prior to installing the flooring. Unfortunately, the quality was not
acceptable and Adventist Health does not recommend continuing the use of Solutions and More to install the flooring.

Adventist Health has obtained a new bid from C.B.C.M. Services, Inc. for the flooring replacement as well as interior
painting. Please see attached proposal dated July 7, 2021.

The price for these items exceeds the amount agreed upon in the lease dated October 1, 2020.

Adventist Health Tehachapi Valley respectfully requests the Board of Directors of East Kern Healthcare District approve
the cost increase from $17,830 to $30,241 to cover the full cost of renovations. East Kern Healthcare District will pay
C.B.C.M. directly upon satisfactory completion of the renovations.

Adventist Health Tehachapi Valley thanks the Board of Directors for this consideration and looks forward to a long
association serving the healthcare needs of the citizens of California City and surrounding communities.

Jim Didion
Director of Real Estate
Adventist Health Tehachapi Valley

Attachments
jmd

123



Date Estimate # o 4 0 ]

=l=]  SERVICE INC.

6625 Meany Ave Bakersfield, Ca

93308 LIC. 991809
Name / Address Job Location
Jones Lang LaSalle Americas Inc. Adventist Health
Mailstop # 45885-1223281 California City
PO Box 4135
Portland, OR 97208
Project
Description Total

Cal City Remodel ***REVISED 7-7-21***

Vinyl Plank - Furnish & Install MSI 20 Mil Prescott plank (Color:
Whitfield Grey) with new top set base in Waiting, Exam rooms
1,2 & 3, Lab. Includes matching transitions.

Sheet Vinyl- Furnish and Install Armstrong Connection Corlon
(Otter Grey) in 1 restroom with 6 inch coving & heat welding
seams.

$17,423.00

Painting- Painting walls, hard ceilings, doors and door frames.
priming as needed, painting two coats of finish. Covering items
not being painted.

$12,818.00

Note:

-Includes removal and disposal of existing glue down carpet,
prep existing sheet vinyl & vCT and Install new clink plank with
attached pad over existing.

-Remove and reset furniture + equipment.

-Work to be done in multiple phases. Trips to Cal City.

Total

124




Sepulveda Development INvolice

Adam Sepulveda
21690 Everett Drive
california city
LIC#912305

gill To: invoice# 305
Invoice Date 8/29/2021
invoice valid till  8/29/2021

East Kern Helth
8101 Bay Ave cal city

ttem Description

For the office on north loop take out old carpet 1300 gf 1 22200 22200.00

and put in lamnite flooring 1300
22200.00
Total $22200.00

it was great doing business with you,

payment deposit do start of job - 39100
after demo payment - $9100
at finish of job -$4000

i FEE Involcs

125



